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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

RERE

01 1 1 2006 The grand

opening of Linmark’s headquarters
at HITEC in Kowloon Bay which

covers an area of 70,000 sq. ft.

including 17 meeting rooms and
a vast display of products in the
expansive showrooms.
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1 51 1 2006 The Linmark

annual report of 2006 won the
Bronze Award in the 17th Annual
International GALAXY Awards 2006
Competition. A
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2601 2007 The annual

dinner of Linmark, its parent

company, Roly International Holdings
Ltd., and fellow subsidiaries held
with a futuristic theme. K
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12072007 The Linmark

design team took the 1st prize for the
Casual and Jeans-wear Group of the
Hong Kong New Fashion Collection
Award 2007 which was hosted by
the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council.
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FINANCIAL RHIGHLIGHTS

I RE

OPERATING RESULTS
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2007
—EZLHF
US$’million
EE-EPH

383.6
13.8

(27.9)
(30.9)

139.9
30.4
74.3

1.2
8.1%

1.8
2.5

4.3

2006
—ETRF
USS$ million

BEZXETT

288.3
15.3

13.1
10.5

209.5
37.6
104.8

1.1
8.4%

2.7
2.9

5.6

%
Increase/
(Decrease)

8, ORl)
33.0
(9.8)

N/A
N/A

(33.2)
(19.1)
(29.1)

9.1
(3.6)

(33.3)
(13.8)

(23.2)



Breakdown of Revenue by Nature
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Breakdown of Shipment Value by Market
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETREHESE

On behalf of the board of directors, | present the results of Linmark Group Limited (“Linmark” or
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 30 April 2007.

Consolidation of business was the key focus of Linmark in financial year 2007, and | am pleased to report
that our efforts have borne fruits. The Group was able to integrate all its operational functions into a
single platform and realign its allocation of resources to enhance operational efficiencies. As a result,
operating expenses decreased during the year.

During the year under review, Linmark adopted a series of effective initiatives to foster business growth.
Although its shipment value was affected by the departure of a customer in the US, the Group took the
opportunity to reallocate resources to other areas to achieve healthier profit margins.

In November 2006, Linmark opened a new showroom for displaying the various products of all of its
business units, giving customers a convenient one-stop shop experience. Furthermore, with our newly
acquired arms contributing to the enhanced design capabilities of the Group, we have been able to offer
more choices of innovative products to our customers.

The performance of Dowry Peacock Group Limited and its subsidiaries ("Dowry Peacock”) was affected by
increasing material costs, appreication of the Renminbi and deflation of prices of electronic products.
Although Dowry Peacock did not perform as well as we had expected, it brought in an encouraging number
of valuable customers and opened the different business segments of the Group to cross-selling
opportunities.

Looking ahead, with our various restructuring measures bearing fruits, the way is paved for the Group to

develop in steady strides in the foreseeable future. Linmark is expected to come out of the difficult times
in financial year 2008 as a stronger enterprise ready to seize new opportunities ahead.

1 6 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ITRBES

To improve business performance, the Group will focus on businesses
with higher margins. We will apply our capabilities in product design
and development to capture high margin customers. These
capabilities of ours are well-recognized as evidenced by our wining of
the Tst prize for the Casual and Jeans-wear Group of the Hong Kong
New Fashion Collection Award 2007 organized by the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council in July 2007. Management is confident
that the Group's design and development expertise will contribute to
the solid growth of the Group's business in the future.

Moreover, management expects the Group to benefit from the
synergiesresulting fromthe business consolidation efforts undertaken
in the past years. With a newly furnished showroom and all business
operationsintegrated into a single platform, as well as new customers
brought by Dowry Peacock, Linmark sees cross-selling opportunities
for its different businesses and will actively be tapping into those
opportunities.

| am pleased to report that two new directors joined the board of the
Company during the year. On 5 July 2007, we announced the
appointment of Mr. KWOK Tai Ki as an independent non-executive
director and Mr. Gregory Scott LEONG as a non-executive director of
the Company. Their experiences in the sourcing industry, the strategic
consultancy and mergers and acquisitions will be a valuable asset to
Linmark.

1 8 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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The Board also announced the retirement of Mr. FU Jin Ming, Patrick EZE&@ME# - HEALEEETAEEZESRBA
as an executive director of the Company with effect from 5 July 2007, 384 - =TT+ F - AR ABBREARRTNTE
after serving the Group in various senior positions for 38 years. | = o NRABEESEHMELEBEMENENRE
would like to take this opportunity to thank Mr. Fu for his past efforts ~ AREEMEKHNE S FEf -

and valuable contributions to the Group.

Finally, | would like to thank the management team for its hard work &% ' RARHEEBEFNBE —FHFEHI/E - 7§
in the past year and our shareholders for their unwavering supportto  BUSiIR RS F R ANEBEE T TBH LI o
the Group over the years.

WANG Lu Yen FE
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 21 August 2007 &E —ETHFNAZ+—H

Award winning “Pink Diamond” collection
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REPORT OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

THRHBRES

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For the year ended 30 April 2007, shipment value amounted to approximately US$874.1 million (equivalent
to HK$6,818.0 million), a decrease of approximately 4.9% as compared to approximately US$919.2 million
(equivalent to HK$7,169.8 million) for last year. The decrease was mainly due to the departure of US-based

customer Warnaco Inc.

Revenue increased by approximately 33.0% to approximately US$383.6 million (equivalent to HK$2,992.1
million). The significant increase was principally attributed to the acquisition of 60% interest in Dowry
Peacock in October 2005.

For the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group reported a loss after tax of approximately US$30.9 million
(equivalent to HK$241.0 million], against a profit of approximately US$10.5 million (equivalent to HK$81.9
million) for last year. The loss for the year under review was attributed to the one-time non-cash items of
approximately US$38.3 million (equivalent to HK$298.7 million], representing the impairment losses on
goodwill and patents and trademarks, net of adjustments to purchase consideration for acquisitions of
subsidiaries. Last year, the Group recorded a one-time non-cash income of approximately US$3.4 million
(equivalent to HK$26.5 million), representing the excess of interest in fair value of acquired subsidiaries’
net assets over cost of investment in relation to the acquisition of 60% interest in Dowry Peacock. Excluding
these one-time non-cash items in both years, the Group's adjusted profit would have been approximately
US$7.1 million (equivalent to HK$55.4 million) last year and approximately US$7.4 million (equivalent to
HK$57.7 million) for the year under review, represented a slight increase of approximately 4.2%.

Excluding the one-time non-cash items as mentioned above and the restructuring related expenses of

approximately US$2.0 million (equivalent to HK$15.6 million), the adjusted net profit after tax as a
percentage of shipment value improved from approximately 0.77% to 1.08%.

20 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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Peter Loris SOLOMON
Chief Executive Officer 17E 483




REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

THREHRES

With the Group's restructuring plan taking effect, operating expenses
excluding finance costs decreased by approximately US$4.6 million
(equivalent to HK$35.9 million), i.e. approximately 9.1%, to
approximately US$45.9 million (equivalent to HK$358.0 million). The
amount took into account:

1. doubtful debts charged to profit and loss accounts decreased by
approximately US$2.5 million (equivalent to HK$19.5 million] to
approximately US$3.4 million (equivalent to HK$26.5 million).
The Group made a provision of approximately US$5.9 million
(equivalent to HK$46.0 million) to receivables commended by
tightened credit policy in the last quarter of the previous year;

2. the decrease in operating expenses as a result of a number of

cost control measures;

3. full year of operating expenses incurred by the newly acquired
60%-owned subsidiary, Dowry Peacock; and

4. one-time expenses associated with the Group's restructuring
amounting to approximately US$2.0 million [equivalent to
HK$15.6 million).

Segmental analysis
The table below shows the difference between shipment value for the

year under review and the previous year:

BEEASRENEMENEEN  TOREVBERZK
& 5 SR > 494,600,000 2 7T (48 55 52 35,900,000 7
7T ) 0 BDUEL 4 #79.1% &= 49 45,900,000 7T (#8551
358,000,00087T) ° ZEeFET K ¢

1. REREE X R A 492,500,000 T (HER
19,500,000 JT. ) & 493,400,000%% 7T (SR
26,500,00087T) - AEEREFEOFERI
SEE MR Bt B AR FEH 495,900,000 7T
(¥4 46,000,000 7870 ) 2 BifE

2. ZIERARESIERAEBELERORD

3. fh60% s 2 FULEEHTE 2 B) Dowry Peacock FT
EEMNEFLERY

4 BBAEEEMHAMN—IXHEFET42,000,000%E5T

(¥Z52 15,600,000 7T) °

DD

TRECEFEEEFNNESREFERLE

Shipment Value
For the year ended 30 April

HEEHRE

BZNA=1tHILEE
2007 2006
—EZtF ZETRF
US$ 'million US$ ' million
BEER BHEET
Europe BOM 320.9 237.2
North America 1EZEM 303.8 L4445
Others Hi 249.4 2375
874.1 919.2
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The additional businesses from Dowry Peacock significantly boosted
performance of the European market. During the year under review,
shipment to Europe surged approximately 35.3% to approximately
US$320.9 million [equivalent to HK$2,503.0 million) from
approximately US$237.2 million (equivalent to HK$1,850.2 million).
Europe became the Group's market,

largest contributing

approximately 36.7% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipment to North America decreased by approximately 31.7% from
approximately US$444.5 million (equivalent to HK$3,467.1 million] to
approximately US$303.8 million (equivalent to HK$2,369.6 million).
Shipment to North America accounted for approximately 34.8% of the
Group's total shipment value. The sharp decline was mainly
attributable to the departure of Warnaco Inc.

Shipment grouped under "Others”, mainly represents shipment to
the southern hemisphere, increased by approximately 5.0% from
approximately US$237.5 million (equivalent to HK$1,852.5 million] to
approximately US$249.4 million (equivalent to HK$1,945.3 million).

R B Dowry Peacock &8 #h % 7% K & HE &) BUMN T 5
HRIF - REBEFER TR 2 ESRERY
237,200,000 7T (#8557 1,850,200,00078 T ) K i@ 1%
HN#4935.3% Z= #9320,900,0003 7T (#8574 2,503,000,000
BIL) e BN AREERATS  WASENES
BB 36.7% °

FIbEMN 2 48 2 B 49444,500,000% T (BHER
3,467,100,000% 7T ) J8 > #731.7% & %7 303,800,000 3
JL (FBEH 49 2,369,600,00087T) » At EMZ FiES
IEAREEMNEZLELNIL8% - (HEEXEED » =
Z M Warnaco Inc. TEAAKRE BEEEFTE

[Et | pEETHNESEFBRATEFERNM
B2 » A #9237,500,0003 7T (8 % 7 1,852,500,000
P IT) 1B E 495.0% = 49249,400,000% 7T (B F B
1,945,300,000787T) ©
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Indian tax case

In January 2007, Linmark lodged objections to the India Income-tax
Department against the assessment orders ["Assessment Orders”)
charging the Group for a tax of approximately US$10.5 million
(equivalent to HK$81.9 million) in respect of the operation of its India
office for assessment years 1999-2000 to 2004-2005. Based on
previous professional advice, Linmark made a tax provision of
approximately US$0.8 million [(equivalent to HK$6.2 million), which
was reflected in the Group's audited accounts for the year ended 30
April 2006.The Group hasrecordedafurther provision of approximately
US$228,000 (equivalent to HK$1.8 million] in respect of its tax
obligation of the tax assessment year up to 2007/2008 during the year
ended 30 April 2007. Linmark had recently engaged an international
accounting firm {who is not the Company's auditor) to review the tax
position of the Group's overall operations including India and the
findings indicated that the previous basis of calculating tax provision
for the operation of the Group's India office was considered

reasonable.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's financial position remains healthy with cash and cash
equivalents of approximately US$30.4 million (equivalent to HK$237.1
million) as at 30 April 2007. In addition, the Group had total banking
facilities of approximately US$58.0 million (equivalent to HK$452.4
million) including borrowing facilities of approximately US$8.6 million
(equivalent to HK$67.1 million) as at 30 April 2007.

The Group has a current ratio of 1.2 and a low gearing ratio of 0.1,
based on interest-bearing borrowings of approximately US$6.0
million (equivalentto HK$46.8 million) andtotal equity of approximately
US$74.3 million (equivalent to HK$579.5 million] as at 30 April 2007.
There has not been any material change in the Group's borrowings
since 30 April 2007.

Trade receivables decreased from approximately US$34.5 million
(equivalent to HK$269.1 million] as at 30 April 2006 to approximately
US$31.4 million (equivalent to HK$244.9 million) as at 30 April 2007.
As at 30 April 2007, trade receivables aged over 90 days were
approximately US$7.8 million (equivalent to HK$60.8 million) which
are being carefully controlled by management.

The Group's net asset value as at 30 April 2007 was approximately
US$74.3 million [equivalent to HK$579.5 million).
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THARREEZ
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As at 30 April 2007, there was a fixed and floating debenture over the
assets of Dowry Peacock to cover banking facilities granted to its
subsidiary in the ordinary course of business. The Group had no
material contingent liability as at 30 April 2007 and there has been no
material change since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under review
were denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Sterling.
During the year under review, the Group used foreign exchange
forward contracts to manage foreign exchange risks from Sterling
transactions. There was no outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts as at 30 April 2007.

REMUNERATION POLICY AND STAFF
DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

As at 30 April 2007, the Group had 744 staff. The total staff costs for
the year under review amounted to approximately US$26.7 million
(equivalent to HK$208.3 million) (2006: US$28.2 million (equivalent to
HK$220.0 million)). The Group offers competitive remuneration
schemes to its employees based on industry practices, individual and
the Group's performance. In addition, share options and discretionary
bonuses are also granted to eligible staff based on both the Group's

as well as individual performance.

PROSPECTS

During the year under review, Linmark undertook various
restructuring measures to increase efficiencies and to reorganize its
customer portfolio. These actions have begun to bear fruits which
are expected to pave the way for the Group's business to flourish in

the years to come.

Looking ahead into the year ending 30 April 2008, Linmark will seek
to improve margins by focusing resources on serving businesses
requiring the value-added services such as design and development.
This shift of focus may affect turnover of any unprofitable business
and that coupled with the departure of some customers as a result of
their merger and acquisition activities, are expected to lead to lower
levels of shipment volume in the year ending 30 April 2008. However,
management believes focusing on serving higher margin businesses
will enhance the Group's overall profitability in the long run.
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During the year under review, the Group has been reorganised into
different dedicated operational functions to improve competitiveness.
The initiative has enabled more focused allocation of resources for
enhancing operational efficiencies and lowering operating costs. The
Group's business operations have also been integrated onto a single
platform to derive synergies. The Group will continue to focus on
promoting organic growth and cross selling with existing customers,
and at the same time, apply its design and development capabilities
to actively promote its services to potential customers. The Group has
secured some new customers that expect to have an impact during
the second half of the financial year 2008.

In July 2007, the Group won the 1st prize for the Casual and Jeans-
wear Group of the Hong Kong New Fashion Collection Award 2007
organized by the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, recognizing
its design and development capabilities.

To boost efficiency and reduce operating costs of its sourcing office
network, management reviewed the Group's operation structure and
closed a number of non-performing offices during the year under
review. This strategic move has enabled the Group to control its
operating costs at a more reasonable level and enhance its
competitiveness. Benefits from the consolidation achieved in the year
under review are expected to be reflected in financial year 2008. The
Group will, however, continue to look for ways to consolidate its
operations and implement cost-saving measures to maximize
efficiencies and operating margins.

Despite pressure from unfavorable market conditions such as
increasing material costs, appreciation of the Renminbi and deflation
of prices of electronic products, the financial performance of Dowry
Peacock has been gradually improving as a result of efforts made
earlier in the year under review. However, with the business
environment persistently challenging, management will continue to
review the Group's operations with the aim of improving their financial

performance.

Although management continues to deal with short term challenges
on the business as the Group realigns its focus on customers and
allocation of resources, the business consolidation undertaken in the
past year has given Linmark a stronger foundation for exploiting new
opportunities. Linmark will continue to forge relationships with new
customers with the aim of broadening its clientele and management
is optimistic about the Group's long term prospects.
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Voluntary delisting of Roly International Holdings Ltd. on 30 April
2007 and cessation of publication practice

As set out in the Company's third quarterly results announcement
dated 16 March 2007 and two announcements dated 20 April 2007
and 30 April 2007 respectively, the Board had been informed that a
proposal ("Proposal”] from Rl Special Holdings Bermuda Limited ("Rl
Special”), a company owned by CFM Investments Limited, Titan |
Venture Capital Co., Ltd., FAT Capital Management Co., Ltd and R
Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited which is ultimately owned by
Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Asia Pacific Growth Fund V, L.P., was put
forward to the board of directors of Roly International Holdings Ltd.
("Roly International”] to seek a voluntary delisting of Roly International
from the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Upon the
Proposal having been approved by the shareholders of Roly
International on 26 March 2007 and its implementation, RI Special
became the controlling shareholder of Roly International. Since Roly
International is an indirect holding company of the Company, Rl
Special became the controlling shareholder of the Company.
According to the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
("Takeovers Code"), Rl Special has made mandatory unconditional
offers ("Offers”) for the securities of the Company not already owned
by it or parties acting in concert with it. Details of the Proposal and
the Offers were set out in the composite offer document dated 30
March 2007 issued jointly by the Company and Rl Special. As at the
close of the Offers on 20 April 2007, the level of acceptances did not
reach the prescribed level for exercising the rights of compulsory
acquisition available under the Bermudan Companies Act and/or
Rule 2.11 of the Takeovers Code, therefore, Rl Special was not entitled
to elect to proceed with a compulsory acquisition in respect of the
remaining shares of the Company.

Following the delisting of Roly International, subject to other
applicable regulatory requirements, the quarterly results of Roly
International group of companies, including those of the Group, would
no longer be made publicly available; and given the publication of
quarterly results by a Main Board listed issuer is not a mandatory
requirement under the Listing Rules, the Company has ceased the
practice of publication of three-month and nine-month results.

Peter Loris SOLOMON
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 August 2007
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENSREEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 53, is an executive director and the
chairman of the Company and is presently responsible for
the Group’s corporate and strategy planning. Mr. Wang
joined the Group in 1998. He is a co-founder, an executive
S director and chairman of Roly International, the indirect
holding company of the Company which was listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited from
February 1996 to April 2007, since 2000. Mr. Wang has also been appointed the
chairman and an executive director of Byford International Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”), since 2004.

Mr.Wang has over 25 years of experience in the trading and distribution business.
He was awarded Outstanding Businessman by Taiwan's Ministry of Economic
Affairs in 1985. Mr. Wang is a member of the China Overseas Friendship
Association, the deputy director general of the Retails and Supplies Committee
of China General Chamber of Commmerce, a vice-chairman of China Association
for Middle and Small Commercial Enterprises, the vice-chairman of China
Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a member of Garment
Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a member of the
Hong Kong Policy Research Institute Limited, a founder and a director of the
Taiwan Design Center, the chairman of the Soochow Management Academic
Foundation of Soochow University and the honorary chairman of Taiwan Business
Association [Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from Soochow University, Taiwan and an EMBA degree
from Guanghua School of Management, Peking University, PRC. Mr. Wang
received the Directors of The Year Awards 2005 hosted by The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Mr. Peter Loris SOLOMON, aged 48, was appointed an
executive director of the Company and the chief executive
officer of the Group in late February 2006. Mr. Solomon was
appointed a director and the chief executive of Tamarind
~ International Limited in 1991. The Tamarind business was
acquired by the Group in December 2004. Mr. Solomon is

primarily respon5|bte for the development of sales both in terms of signing new
accounts and managing existing customer relationships. Prior to joining
Tamarind, he was the managing director of Sussan Groups buying office in Hong
Kong. Mr. Solomon was a director of Stirling Group Plc., a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange, during the period 1999 to 2003. He has over 25 years of
extensive experience in the full spectrum of supply chain management.
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Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng, aged 56, has been an executive
director of the Company since 2002. He has also been an
executive director and the chief financial officer of Roly

International since 1995. Mr. Khoo advises the Group on
1 . corporate finance related matters. He has over 10 years of
. experience in corporate finance and financial management
industry. Mr. Khoo worked for an international accounting firm and an investment
bank prior to joining a subsidiary of Roly Internationalin 1994. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Southern Methodist University, Dallas,
Texas, the US. Mr. Khoo qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in the US and
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 49, is a non-executive director of
the Company. Mr. Wong has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since it was listed in 2002
and was redesignated as an executive director of the
Company and appointed an executive director and chief

- executive officer of Roly International in 2005. In July 2007,
he was further redesignated from executive director to non-executive director of
the Company. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of Lenovo
Group Limited ("Lenovo”), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from March 1999 to May 2007 and has been appointed the chief
financial officer and senior vice president of Lenovo since July 2007. He is also
an independent non-executive director of I.T Limited and China Unicom Limited,
both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was
an independent non-executive director of China Glass Holdings Limited from
May 2005 to May 2006, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He has more than 16 years of experience in investment banking business in
Greater China and was a director and chief executive officer of Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
prior to serving the Group as an executive director. Mr. Wong is a chartered
accountant of the United Kingdom and an associate member of the HKICPA. He
holds a Bachelor's degree of Science (with Honours) in Management Sciences
from The Victoria University of Manchester, the UK.

Mr. Gregory Scott LEONG, aged 38, has been a non-
executive director of the Company since July 2007. He is a
vice president of H&Q Asia Pacific (Hong Kong] Limited
("H&Q") which is a US-based private equity firm focusing on
investments in the Asia Pacific region. H&Q manages Asia
Pacific Growth Fund V, L.P., a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He has also been a director of Rl Special Holdings Bermuda Limited

("Rl Special’], Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited and RI Investment Holdings
Bermuda Limited, all of which are intermediate holding companies of the
Company, since December 2006. Prior to joining H&Q in 2005, Mr. Leong held
managerial positions with a US-based strategic consultancy firm and an
investment bank advising on mergers and acquisitions from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
Leong holds a Bachelor's degree of Business Administration from The George
Washington University, a Master’s degree of Business Administration from The
University of Chicago and a Master’s degree of International Public Policy from
The Johns Hopkins University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang,
independent non-executive director of the Company since

aged 46, has been an

2002. Mr. Wang is also the chief executive officer of
GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ listed online entertainment

k . and game provider. Previously, Mr. Wang was a co-founder
l and executive director of KGI Asia Limited, the investment

banking arm of the Koos Group of Taiwan. Mr. Wang also serves on the board of
directors of several finance and technology companies in the region and was
previously a member of the board of Softbank Investment International (Strategic)
Limited (now known as China Renji Medical Group Limited), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang received his Juris
Doctorate degree from Yale Law School and practised corporate and securities

law in Hong Kong and New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
the University of California at Los Angeles, the US.

Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden, aged 60, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2003. Dr. Woon
for Starbucks Coffee
Company, a company listed on NASDAQ, since May 2006. Dr.

is vice-president, Greater China,

- - Woon was the chief executive officer of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce from May 1997 to April
2006. He served as executive director of the Washington State China Relations
Council from 1994-97. A career US Air Force officer who retired as a Colonel in
1993, Dr. Woon served as China policy advisor for the US Secretary of Defense
from 1989-94, and was assigned to the US Embassy in Beijing from 1983-85. Dr.
Woon,whohasaPh.DinMathematics, wasanassociate professor of Mathematics
in the late 1970s at the US Air Force Academy. Dr. Woon is a member of the
Council on Foreign Relations based in New York. He is on the board of Ocean
Park. Dr. Woon was a member of the Hong Kong Council for Academic
Accreditation and a member of the Securities and Futures Commission Advisory
Committee. He was named Director of the Year in Hong Kong in the non-profit
category in 2001.
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Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 59, has been the
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2005. Mr. Tse is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, and the HKICPA. Mr. Tse
; N isa past president of the HKICPA. He joined KPMG in 1976
. andbecamea partnerin 1984 and retired in March 2003. Mr.

Tse was a non-executive Chairman of KPMG's operations in the PRC and a
member of the KPMG China advisory board from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Tse is currently
an independent non-executive director of Wing Hang Bank, Limited, CNOOC
Limited, China Telecom Corporation Limited, China Construction Bank
Corporation and Sinofert Holdings Limited, all listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. KWOK Tai Ki, aged 48, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since July 2007. He is an
associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and a fellow of the HKICPA. He worked for
KarstadtQuelle (Far East) & Co ("KQFE") where he gained

over 17years of experience in managing business operations

in supply chains. He was the chief executive officer of KQFE between 2005 and
2006. KQFE was the buying arm in Asia and wholly-owned subsidiary of
KarstadtQuelle AG, a major retail company listed on the German Stock Exchange.
He served the General Committee of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association
("HKEA"] from 1992 and was the honorary treasurer and vice chairman when he
retired from HKEA at the end of 2006. As a representative of HKEA, he also
served as the chairman of Vocational Training Council - Import/Export/Wholesale
Training Board from March 2005 to December 2006. Mr. Kwok holds a degree of
Bachelor of Commerce from The University of Western Australia and a degree of
Master of Business [Accounting) from Monash University, Australia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 37, has been the chief financial officer of the
Group since January 2006 and oversees the finance, shipping, human resources
and investor relations functions of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Wong was the
head of corporate development department of Roly International primarily
responsible for Roly International and the Group’s corporate development,
mergers and acquisitions and investor relations activities. Before joining Roly
International in 2000, he had worked at several major international financial
institutions where he gained extensive experience in finance and banking. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree in finance from Boston
University, the United States, and a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of British Columbia, Canada.
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Mr. Manuel Ignacio LOPEZ, aged 50, has been retitled as the chief merchandising
officer of the Group since May 2006 and oversees the merchandising functions
of the Group. Before joining the Group in 2002, Mr. Lopez was with Li & Fung
(Trading) Limited as general manager of operations. Prior to that, Mr. Lopez
served as executive vice president in charge of operations for Colby International
Limited for 14 years. Mr. Lopez holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from Georgia State University, the United States.

Ms. Nicole TREASURE, aged 44, has been the senior vice president of marketing
and business development since October 2006 and oversees the strategic
business growth of the Group. Ms. Treasure has over 20 years of experience in
business management, marketing, retail and operations. She has been based
in Asia for nine years and held senior management positions in creative and
product agencies with an emphasis on promotional marketing. Prior to moving
to Hong Kong, Ms. Treasure worked for her own management consultancy in
Australia for five years. Her studies include Marketing, Tourism and Psychology
along with Honours from the Australian Graduate School of Management of The
University of New South Wales.

Mr. Arthur Etienne Marie PRUJT, aged 40, has been the senior vice president
of group operations since July 2007. Before that, Mr. Pruijt served the Group as
the general manager of the offices in Thailand and Bangladesh and as the SBU
general manager of the Group's European accounts. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked as an account manager for a Dutch buying agency in Indonesia from
1993 to 1997 and as general manager for an Italian buying agency from 1997 to
2005. Mr. Pruijt has extensive experience in merchandising and quality control
as well as general management including financing, budgeting and human

resources.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 39, is the company secretary of the Company
and Roly International. Ms. Cheung joined a subsidiary of Roly International in
1997 as an assistant company secretary. She has over 15 years of company
secretarial experience gained in listed companies. Ms. Cheung holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy and is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, the UK.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NEERWME

The Company has adopted most of the Code Provisions as stated
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices ("CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”] Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices ("Code”) of the Company and
the Board is committed to complying with the Code to the extent
that the directors consider it is applicable to the Company and
practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise

an effective Board, sound internal controls, appropriate
independence policy, and transparency and accountability to all

shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions save for
modifications made to Code Provision B.1.3(a), details of which
will be explained below

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All directors should make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or
through Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position
to exercise its powers in an informed manner, all members of
the Board have full and timely access to all relevant information

and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.
Appropriate insurance cover for directors” and officers” liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the directors and officers of
the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate
activities of the Group has been arranged by the Company.
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Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises nine directors in total, with three
executive directors, two non-executive directors and four

independent non-executive directors. The directors of the

EZeNANBRARRAMBEERBILIRE
PIREE 2R &R -
EEgHAAHBANUESAN  BE=UH
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Company during the year and up to the date of this report were

as follows:

Name of Directors

EEpns

=

Positions

B

WANG Lu Yen
TR

Peter Loris SOLOMON

KHOO Kim Cheng
B £7 3R

FU Jin Ming, Patrick
B &5

WONG Wai Ming
=W
Gregory Scott LEONG

FER

WANG Arthur Minshiang
TEe

WOON Yi Teng, Eden

HUE

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

HENT

KWOK Tai Ki
EE

Chairman and executive director

EIRFRATES

Chief executive officer and executive director

TRABHRATES

Executive director

WITES

Executive director (retired on 5 July 2007)
HITEE(RZZEZTLFLHAHENK)

Non-executive director (redesignated from executive director to non-executive
director on 5 July 2007)
FATEE (R _TZTLFLADEBRTESTEESNRRAFRNTES)

Non-executive director (appointed on 5 July 2007)
NTEE(R_ZZLFLtARAEZE)

Independent non-executive director

BUIFATES

Independent non-executive director (who tendered his resignation which will take

effect on 31 August 2007)
BYFRTEF(EREFHT H_ZTLFN\A=Z+T—-—HRBER

Independent non-executive director

BYFMTES

Independent non-executive director (appointed on 5 July 2007)

BYFRTEFE (R _ZEZLFLARREZE)
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The list of directors by category is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. None of the members of the Board is
related to one another.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures
for nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of directors and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An
external recruitment agency may be engaged to assist in the
recruitment and selection process when necessary.
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On 5 July 2007, the appointments of Mr. KWOK Tai Ki as
independent non-executive director, Mr. Gregory Scott LEONG
as non-executive director; the retirement of Mr. Fu Jin Ming,
Patrick; the redesignation of Mr. WONG Wai Ming from executive
director to non-executive director and the change of qualified
accountant from Mr. WONG Wai Ming to Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng
were approved by unanimous consent of members of the Board.

Each of Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng, being an
executive director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company with an initial term of three years from May 2002 and
has continued thereafter until terminated by either party by not
less than six months’ notice in writing. Mr. Peter Loris
SOLOMON and the Linmark Group have entered into three
letters of appointment pursuant to which Mr. Solomon has been
appointed as chief executive officer and executive director of
the Company, managing director of Linmark (H.K.] Limited and
managing director of Linmark Development (BVI] Limited for an
initial term of two years commencing on 1 May 2006, during or
after which either party may terminate the appointment at any
time by giving to the other no less than twelve months™ notice
in writing or payment of twelve month’s salary in lieu of notice.

Each of the two non-executive directors, namely Mr. WONG Wai
Ming and Mr. Gregory Scott LEONG, has been appointed (or
redesignated in the case of Mr. WONG Wai Ming) on 5 July 2007
for a term of two years under a letter of appointment. The
appointments may be terminated by the non-executive directors
by not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Each of the four independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, Dr. WOON Yi Teng, Eden, Mr. TSE
Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. KWOK Tai Ki, has first been appointed
for a term of two years under a letter of appointment. Such
term has been/will be renewed for a further two years upon
expiry. The appointments may be terminated by the independent
non-executive directors by not less than one month’s notice in
writing.

The Company’s bye-laws provide that all directors are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three years and any new
director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.
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The Company's bye-laws also allow for removal of a director by
an ordinary resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular to be dispatched to shareholders of the
Company on or about 30 August 2007 will contain detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to directors whenever
necessary.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, four regular Board
meetings were held and the average attendance rate was
approximately 87.5%.

The Board met four times during the year ended 30 April 2007
for approving the audited final results for the year ended 30
April 2006, unaudited results for the three months ended 31
July 2006, unaudited interim results for the six months ended
31 October 2006 and unaudited results for the nine months
ended 31 January 2007.
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The individual attendance record of each director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee and Investment
Committee during the year ended 30 April 2007 is set out below:

EESERBE_FTTLFOA=ZTHLEFEN
52 BEZZEQMREZBESEmZMAA
HEREHIDT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER EEBRH

Audit Investment
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
EsgR BExg BEREES REZES
WANG Lu Yen A N/A N/A
F1E 5 A 5 A
Peter Loris SOLOMON 4 2% 2
KHOO Kim Cheng 4 4* 2
BB #8 R
WONG Wai Ming (Note 1) A 4* 2
=ER (MHE)
Gregory Scott LEONG (Note 2) N/A N/A N/A
FHE (HE2) A5 A 5 A 5@ A
WANG Arthur Minshiang 2 3 N/A
& 5@ B
WOON Yi Teng, Eden 2 2 N/A
SLAE 5 A
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius 4 4 N/A
A EDT 5@ R
KWOK Tai Ki (Note 3] N/A N/A N/A
B4 (P55 3) A5 A 5 5@ A
FU Jin Ming, Patrick (Note 4] 4 N/A 2%
B (P 5E4) i@ A
Number of meetings held 4 4 2
BITFZRE
Notes: BT
1. Mr. WONG Wai Ming was redesignated from executive director to 1. =EBREER TS ELFELARTHARNTESFE

non-executive director and ceased to act as a member of the
Executive Committee, Investment Committee and Strategy
Committee of the Board on 5 July 2007.

2. Mr. Gregory Scott LEONG was appointed as non-executive director
and member of the Investment Committee of the Board on 5 July
2007.
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3. Mr. KWOK Tai Ki was appointed as independent non-executive
director and member of the Audit Committee of the Board on 5
July 2007.

4. Mr. FU Jin Ming, Patrick retired as executive director and ceased
to act as a member of the Executive Committee and Strategy
Committee of the Board on 5 July 2007.

* The directors are not members of the committee at the relevant
time but attended the meetings by invitation.

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees
also circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant
members of the Board and Board committees.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made
available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are generally sent to all directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to
keep the directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer, qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,

corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
and final versions of minutes of board meetings are normally
sent to directors for their comment and records respectively, in
both cases within a reasonable time after each meeting is held.
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According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for a
substantial shareholder or a director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company's bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or

any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman is separate from that of the chief
executive officer of the Group. Currently, the two positions are
held by Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. Peter Loris SOLOMON (who
are not related to each other) respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing, details
of which are stated below.

The chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the
Board, in particular, the Executive Committee, on corporate and
strategic planning and ensure proper proceedings of the Board
and the Executive Committee.

Supported by the executive directors and the senior
management, the chief executive officer’s principal role is to
manage and operate the Group’'s day-to-day business, including
the implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted

by the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely, the
Audit

Committee, Investment Committee and Strategy Committee, for

Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee,

overseeing particular aspects of the Company’'s affairs.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on

the corporate website at www.linmark.com for reference.
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Current Structure of the Board

Executive Committee

WITRBE

Audit Committee

EZRBE

Remuneration Committee

FEZES

Investment Committee

RAZAR

Strategy Committee

REEZRE

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee consists of all the executive directors
as follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)

Peter Loris SOLOMON (chief executive officer)

KHOO Kim Cheng

FU Jin Ming, Patrick (ceased to act as member on 5 July 2007)
WONG Wai Ming (ceased to act as member on 5 July 2007)

EZSRRRES

Board of Directors
BEEE

Chief Executive Officer

TR

EXZECABRRNERBITHERS Lk
REMNBRAT  AIRAENERSRKBIER
MER  BERBARAXN -

HITEES
NITEBREAT 2 BRTEEMEMN :

FHE(ZEEEERF)

Peter Loris SOLOMON (7R #2%%)

B 88 R
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The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and

operation functions of the Group to the Executive Committee

save to the extent that certain powers and authorities are

reserved to the other Board committees or the full Board. The

powers and authorities reserved to the full Board include the

following but are not limited to:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d)

(e

(f)

(q)

(h)

matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a director;

making decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend
or pay dividend;

approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement
of the profits or losses in respect of annual results or
interim results and [ii) the related financial statements and/
or accounts;

approving any proposed change in the capital structure,
including any redemption of its securities listed on the Stock
Exchange;

approving any decision to change the general character or
nature of the business of the Company;

approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction,
very substantial acquisition or connected transaction within
the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules;

matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which

require an approval at a full board meeting; and

any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be
imposed upon the committees by the Board from time to
time.

The authorities reserved to the Remuneration Committee are

more particularly discussed below.

42 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

EXECeERBNTRESRARAKREBRENE
BREBRY  HEETHRERMENREMGES

I>=
2=

= &
B8

EREZFSRE -HE2REFTSRE

WERENENRE (ETER) :

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g

(h)

(5

BREERRER REZFREHRNE
I8

REBBEIR

CEFEHIXMNBE

HENNEARFEXREXTHREENRE
MERBROVEBABRER,HEEE

HWEBEARBOEMRBDES
BEEEBRMM EMAES

BIEAEM

HWEABENRARAREREEHFH LD
M E DR E

BB EME EH R AR 14R14AT TR TE R
ATHERS TERH FEERUBE
FHEAMERS
FPRAMEAREREZS SR LILE
MEHE: R

RBZRKPRH -

BRFHZESNENRN TXHEEFAN

SER



AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
directors as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)
WOON Yi Teng, Eden

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

KWOK Tai Ki (appointed member on 5 July 2007)

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’'s annual reports and accounts, interim reports and
quarterly results announcements and to provide advice and
comments thereon to the directors. The members meet
regularly with the internal auditor, external auditor and the
Company’s senior management for the review and supervision
of the Company’'s financial reporting and internal control
procedures. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
monitoring integrity of financial statements of the Company and
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report and
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held four
meetings to:

(a) review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, internal auditor or external auditor before
submission to the Board;

(b) review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditor; and

(c] review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company which took place during the year under review.

BEREEE

EREZBEH T ERBUIFNTESTMEMN

ITHgE(ZE8EXR)

SNE

HENT

BEHR -_ZZLFLAREARZERKE)

MEEZZE @R B /A QAR EINE XA
BATE KA o

ERZZEENIERAEREZ AR FRER
B FHRENFTEXELMH URHAES
REZZELER BRZEEXRBEHEAZ
ZEED - SNERBEMEARR S RERERTT
€% HARANMBHRERABEZREFE
TEENEE - i ERZEBETAEEE
ARAHBHRE  ARRFRERE - PHR
ERFERENERN  TESHPAHEKR
B B 75 o o

L

=,
=53

RACEFE  BHZEERTTAR
BR&

8

(a) BRVHHRELRE  LEEXEEZZH
ZEHAERSFED - AEBAXERAD X NS
RBEELNERNEAR TS EIER -

(b] Z2BINEZHBEIFAEITHN TR  BHE
SN BREM I BER - AN S R IR
W ERE - ENZERBIRINEZBED R
EFeRtEs &

o) BBEARAPBHRERS  AMEEXR
7 BREERGRABEFNTREREER
KT °

o BEREZBEENEBRARARADBEFE

PO AT M BEHE R 5 B3 A BRI 22 5 M0 K I f
fi o

—TT LA AEEE

43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

]

BRI E

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 30 April 2007
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the year under review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, the
majority of which are independent non-executive directors, as
follows:

WOON Yi Teng, Eden (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

WANG Lu Yen

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the chairman and/
or the chief executive officer of the Company about their
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
in compliance with the Code Provisions except modifications
have been made to Code Provision B.1.3 (a] such that the
Remuneration Committee has the power to do such things and
to approve all matters in relation to compensation regarding
all the directors and senior management in accordance with
the terms and conditions of their respective agreement/contract
with the Company, or as the case may be, the relevant subsidiary
of the Company and Code Provision B.1.3 (b) has been deleted.
In addition, the Remuneration Committee is also delegated with
the authority to exercise all the powers of the Board in relation
to the share option scheme of the Company.
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Management considers that the Remuneration Committee can
better serve its functions under the modified terms ("Modified
Terms”] of reference of the Remuneration Committee set out
above (i.e. the expansion of the scope of Code Provision B.1.3
(a) and the deletion of Code Provision B.1.3(b)) as its duties
under the Modified Terms are more extensive and onerous than
those prescribed in the Code Provisions. The Company therefore
proposes that the Remuneration Committee shall continue to
abide by the provisions of the Modified Terms in the future.

On 24 July 2007 and 3 August 2007, meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review and approve the
remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior
management and no directors were involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee comprises three executive directors
as follows:

KHOO Kim Cheng (chairman of the committee])

Peter Loris SOLOMON

Gregory Scott LEONG (appointed member on 5 July 2007)
WONG Wai Ming (ceased to act as member on 5 July 2007)

The primary duties of the Investment Committee are to review
or recommend to the Board the investment transactions of the
Group.

The main duties of the Investment Committee include the

following:

(a] to review, recommend and approve matters relating to
mergers and acquisitions, disposal and formation of any
entities and joint ventures which would NOT constitute
notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules;

(b) to review and recommend matters to the Board for approval

relating to mergers and acquisitions, disposal and
formation of any entities and joint ventures which would
constitute notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules

and

(c) to review and recommend capital market activities.

EEERA
FE

FNEZE S E XA KB
E@H&%%’EE ([T BEsRE]) (B’

R 57 R 3% B.1.3(a) 6k Ko M B <7 A R XX &

B.1.3(b){&) T RIS A Rt B 17 L BiaE
BEALKETRESE TRTAGXMRESE
MEREEREZREE - At

HFMEEEHEE

CRERHE

LN

BEBTEETRESREL

{3 ©

R-FBELFLtA-_THEER_FFLFNAA

=B FMZBEERTEH  BRLIERT
EENSREEBNFIES  HEEE2H

BEEAGHZHMN -

REZES
UTAERBEEERN=[ANITES :

BHR(ZEEEXF)
Peter Loris SOLOMON
FHR (R _ZET+F+HARBEEZERKE)
HEARZZEZLFLARATHEEKE)

REZBENBEEZRBRNEZSERUER
AEENIRERS -

BE

(a)

(b)

(c]

ZEENIERBEETISE

EE ERRMERBAHRKE HE
RAZEMNERBRABELRNEE  %F
EERBETARUTEERET MK
5

AMEFEERLEZEHAHRKE
ERMBIMNERBRAELCENTEYS

KHAE - ZEEFERBE TR BSHENX
BATYTRHRS &

BRLEEREATSESD

—TTLFFR AERE 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

]

BRI E

During the year under review, the Investment Committee held
two meetings to review and discuss the possible investment
opportunities in terms of the target companies’ background,
competitive advantages and expansion plan according to the
investment guidelines of the Group.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Strategy Committee comprises three executive directors
as follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)

Peter Loris SOLOMON

KHOO Kim Cheng

FU Jin Ming, Patrick (ceased to act as member on 5 July 2007)
WONG Wai Ming (ceased to act as member on 5 July 2007)

The primary duties of the Strategy Committee are to formulate
and review the strategies for the development of the Group and
to review and make recommendations to the Board on corporate
strategies for approval and for subsequent implementation by
the chief executive officer and other executive directors.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal
controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls
of the Group. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions.

Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department ("IAD") had conducted a
risk assessment during the financial year ended 30 April 2006.
The risk assessment involved identification and analysis of risks
underlying the achievement of the Group’'s objectives, including
risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating
environment and the Group’s business strategies. Based on the
results of the risk assessment, IAD formulated an Internal Audit
Plan [“IA Plan”) covering a period of three years ending 30 April
2009, which was approved by the Audit Committee on 28 June
2006.
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In accordance with the IA Plan, during the year ended 30 April
2007, IAD had performed an internal control review on the
Group's UK-based business unit, Dowry Peacock, 60% interest
of which was acquired in October 2005 and is principally engaged
in the business of consultancy, design, sourcing, planning,
procurement, quality inspection, brand and warranty
management of home entertainment and consumer electronic
products. The audit scope of work covered all material controls
in financial and operational aspects. Major audit findings and
related recommendations and agreed management actions had
been presented to the Board and the Audit Committee. Further,
IAD has been assisting and following up Dowry Peacock’s
implementation of agreed management actions and reporting

to the Board and the Audit Committee from time to time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ["Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2007.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code ("Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information in relation to the Company and its securities.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other publications of the
Company and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April
2007.
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The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the "Report of the Auditor” contained in this annual
report.

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 30 April 2007 amounted to approximately US$497,000
and US$105,000 respectively. The non-audit services were
related to professional service on indebtedness review, tax
services and interim review.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company follows the practices stated in the CG Code
regarding shareholder rights and investor relations.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders” meetings are contained in
the Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a
poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to
shareholders and are reiterated during the proceedings of
meetings.

Poll results will be published in local papers on the business
day following the shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Investment Committee
and Strategy Committee or in their absence, other members of
the

independent Board committee, are available to answer questions

the respective committees, and where applicable,

at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders” meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

48 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

ARASNEZBENB I TS MG 2 PREEEL
MEBRERAFRAZ ZBERS]

AAGINEZBMREE ST tFMA=T
B 1EFE K T2 IR &I A% AR 75w & 15 19 B
&9 Bl % A&497,0003 7T K 105,000 7T © FEFE %
RB T BEBEKERN BFRE R EHEHD
HERD o

BRREMNRREEBE

ARRETREERTRIMEA BBRRERN R
BREEMENER -

BRZEMBEERNBRRAG EUAREFTAE
RABEZEFERARBDZARMAMAA - A
FAREDARRZENBEARETAKRRE
FZHBEENBERZAABEA > RS
AETHEAELR -

B RERREAG R B ARKBRE
T -

ARABERAGRBRREEESRHUERZ T
B EFCXIRUARERZES FMWZRE
g KREZBEMRBMEEGZIR EINKF
REZBAT  BREQ@ZHEMERELBIE
EZZEE (WER)) FRBRRAE LEERRA -

BHEASH (BRESZMENES) KREEX

SLEUBIRERRESR -

ARABENREEREEZBARKE - &
BReaMEEABEFT EHEBBREEZR
DITEMETHRE  UBRETBARB IR
BREBERL -  ARFRERFEREREEZSE
i e



Following the delisting of Roly International, subject to other
applicable regulatory requirements, the quarterly results of the
Roly International group of companies, including those of the
Group, would no longer be made publicly available; and given
the publication of quarterly results by a Main Board listed issuer
is not a mandatory requirement under the Listing Rules, the
Company has ceased the practice of publication of three-month

and nine-month results.

Besides, as to promote effective communication, the Company
also maintains a website at www.linmark.com, where extensive
information and updates on the Company’'s business
developments and operations, corporate governance practices

and other information are posted.

Hong Kong, 21 August 2007
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
REERIR

Transparency is the underscoring principle of Linmark’s investor
relations efforts. During the year under review, the Group
focused on disseminating information regularly and proactively

to help investors make the most informed investment decisions.

Meetings and conferences continued to be important tools used
by the Group to achieve investor relations goals. During the
year under review, an investor group presentation and a press
conference were organized after the Group’s interim and final
results announcements, and also the proposed delisting from
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited of its
controlling shareholder Roly International.

To better understand investors’ views on the company, Linmark
held 13 one-on-one meetings with investors to facilitate direct
understanding between the Group and the investment
community.

To the Group, the media is an essential means for it to maintain
a transparent operation. Apart from ensuring exposure by
holding timely press conferences, during the year under review,
Linmark issued four press releases to keep local and regional
media up to date on its business development. By providing
background of the industry and information on market trends
and prospects to the media and investors, Linmark helps them
gain a better understanding of its business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESERES

The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2007.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year under review
by business and geographical segments is set out in Note 6 to
the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2007 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 76.

An interim dividend of 1.80 HK cents per share totalling
approximately US$1,529,000 was declared and paid to
shareholders during the year under review. The directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2.5 HK cents per
share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2007, totalling
approximately US$2,150,000. Subject to shareholders” approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
final dividend will be paid in cash on or about 2 October 2007 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 24 September 2007.

Ultimate holding company

Since 10 May 2002, the date of the listing of shares of the
Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”), Roly International Holdings
Ltd. ("Roly International”), a company incorporated in Bermuda
and listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
from February 1996 to April 2007, has been the ultimate holding
company of the Group.

Upon the voluntary delisting proposal from RI Special Holdings
Bermuda Limited ("Rl Special”] having been approved by the
shareholders of Roly International on 26 March 2007 and its
implementation, Rl Special became the controlling shareholder of
the Company and Megastar Holdings Limited ("Megastar”) became
the ultimate holding company of the Company. The ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a director of
the Company.
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Ultimate holding company (continued)

As a result of the abovementioned voluntary delisting proposal
which triggered a change in control of the Company, Rl Special
has made general offers for all securities of the Company during
the year under review. Upon closing of such general offers on
20 April 2007, RI Special, together with parties acting in concert
with it, held approximately 72.16% of the then issued share
capital of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year under review are set out in Note 17
to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements during the year under review in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year under
review are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 April 2007,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
consisted of the aggregate of share premium, contributed
surplus and retained earnings, amounted to US$36,264,000
(2006: US$34,767,000].

Share options

The Company’'s share option scheme ("Scheme”] was adopted
pursuant to a resolution of the then sole shareholder passed
on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. Under the Scheme, the Board or a
committee thereof may grant options to eligible persons [see
summary below) to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution relating to the amendments
to the Scheme passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 16 August 2004, the exclusion of Mr. WANG
Lu Yen from participating in the Scheme so long as he remains
as a substantial shareholder (as such term is construed in
accordance with the Listing Rules) of the Company has been
removed.
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Share options (continued)

Summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1A

Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the Scheme include:

(i) any director or proposed director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive director], employee or proposed employee
(whether full time or part time) of any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company
or any company controlled by a controlling shareholder
of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any business partner, agent, consultant,
representative, supplier of goods or services or
customer of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Maximum number of shares

The initial total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
immediately following the listing of the Company’s shares.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 5
August 2003, the Company’s shareholders approved the
refreshment of the Scheme mandate and the total number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company was re-set at 10% of the shares
in issue on 5 August 2003, the date of approval of the
refreshment (i.e. 64,740,000 shares).
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Share options (continued)

2.

Maximum number of shares (Continued)

Subject to the approval by the Company’s shareholders,
the aggregate number of the Company's shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
Options granted to the independent non-executive directors
or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
shares in issue and with an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5 million resulting in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted
and to be granted to such person under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of grant of such
option must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to
any eligible persons (including those cancelled, exercised
and outstanding options], in any 12-month period up to the
date of the latest grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Company’s shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days inclusive
of the day on which such offer was made, upon payment of
HK$1 per option. Options may be exercised at any time
commencing on the date as the Board may determine and
ending on such date as the Board may determine but shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company’'s shares on the date of grant and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.
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Share options (continued)
5. Remaining life of the Scheme

Subject to the earlier termination of the Scheme in
accordance with the rules governing the Scheme,
expire on 22 April 2012.

Scheme will

Movement of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company
granted to the directors of the Company and employees (Note

(ii)) during the year under review was as follows:

Options granted by the Company

the

ﬁﬁﬂi%w

Zat Bl 2 iE 8 2 BR
BRIFERBEZTEI 2 RAIM AR F K IEZ
e BRIZFEER ZE——FHAZ
+ZRHEm e

Number of underlying shares of the Company

FRRARHZBRERBZ2ARARGEE

AOBEFEARTARBAESERESR (IR
A REBARARAD 2 B I

BERAT

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at as at price Date of
1 May 2006 Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2007 per share grant Exercise period
RZZZXE R-ZBE2LF
TA-H A=+H
i R AT B B BAX HATE SBRITKEE B A M 17 £ 28 IR
(HK$)
(B1)
Directors Ex
Peter Loris SOLOMON 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 2.315 14/10/2005  14/10/2006-13/10/2011
FU Jin Ming, Patrick R 4,200,000 - - 4,200,000 2.550 21/05/2002  21/05/2003-20/05/2008
(Note iii) (B = iii) 600,000 - - 600,000 1.600 06/11/2002  06/11/2003-05/11/2008
830,000 - - 830,000 2.125 30/05/2003  30/05/2004-29/05/2009
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 2.975 30/03/2004  30/03/2005-29/03/2010
6,630,000 - - 6,630,000
WONG Wai Ming HEH 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 2.315 14/10/2005  14/10/2006-13/10/2011
KHOO Kim Cheng B 8 R 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 2.550 21/05/2002  21/05/2003-20/05/2008
2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 1.600 06/11/2002  06/11/2003-05/11/2008
920,000 - - 920,000 2.125 30/05/2003  30/05/2004-29/05/2009
1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 2.975 30/03/2004  30/03/2005-29/03/2010
8,320,000 - - 8,320,000
WANG Arthur Minshiang  F 8% 250,000 - - 250,000 2.315 14/10/2005  14/10/2006-13/10/2011
WOON Yi Teng, Eden SUE 250,000 - - 250,000 2.315 14/10/2005  14/10/2006-13/10/2011
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HELT 250,000 - - 250,000 2.315 14/10/2005  14/10/2006-13/10/2011
Continuous contract HEE 7,644,000 (666,000) (2,306,000) 4,672,000 2.550 21/05/2002  21/05/2003-20/05/2008
employees (Note ii) HER 3,710,000 = (800,000) 2,910,000 1.600 06/11/2002  06/11/2003-05/11/2008
(B EEin) 1,810,000 = (670,000) 1,140,000 2125 30/05/2003  30/05/2004-29/05/2009
6,650,000 (200,000) (2,900,000) 3,550,000 2.975 30/03/2004  30/03/2005-29/03/2010
7,750,000 (1,500,000) (4,000,000) 2,250,000 2.315 14/10/2005  14/10/2006-13/10/2011
27,564,000 (2,366,000)  (10,676,000) 14,522,000
Total &t 45,264,000 (2,366,000)  (10,676,000) 32,222,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EZEREE

Share options (continued)

During the year under review, no share options were granted or
exercised under the Scheme and no theoretical value of share
option is required to be disclosed.

Notes:
(i) The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted were as follows:

i8R
REEEEN  TEREZBSEXTER
B BARERRIE,IEHEE -

CEE

i) BRFAEM2EBERTERMIIANRAKRONE
EERBRERLBBAI RSB 2 KRmELN
T

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant

HK$

RERHAHA

Date of grant & BH ZBRKTE
7 TT

21 May 2002 —TT-#FHA-+—A 2.600
6 November 2002 e Y AN 1.550
30 May 2003 —TTE=FRA=1+H 2.100
30 March 2004 —TTENFE=A=+H 2.950
14 October 2005 —TERFE+A+TEA 2.300

(i)  Employees include employees of the Group and of the subsidiaries
of Roly International (other than the directors) working under
employment contracts with the Group or subsidiaries of Roly
International which are regarded as “continuous contracts” for
the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong
Kong).

(iii)  Mr. FU Jin Ming, Patrick has retired as an employee of the Group
with effect from 30 April 2007, the outstanding share options held
by him, if not exercised, will lapse on 31 October 2007.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive directors

WANG Lu Yen

Peter Loris SOLOMON

KHOO Kim Cheng

FU Jin Ming, Patrick (retired on 5 July 2007)
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Directors (continued)
Non-executive directors
WONG Wai Ming (redesignated from executive director to

non-executive director on 5 July 2007)

Gregory Scott LEONG (appointed on 5 July 2007)

Independent non-executive directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

WOON Yi Teng, Eden (who tendered his resignation which will

take effect on 31 August 2007)

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
KWOK Tai Ki (appointed on 5 July 2007)

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang and Mr. TSE
Hau Yin, Aloysius, in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2)
of the Company’'s bye-laws, and Mr. KWOK Tai Ki and Mr.
Gregory Scott LEONG in accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the
Company's bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations

As at 30 April 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong]
("SFO”]) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

EE=

KPTES

Z2EH RN-ET+E+AROmMMTES
EEHIEEAERTES)

FHE R-_ZETLFLtARBEZRME)

BYFATES

T

ShE (BERERET BH_TTLF
NA=+—HEERR

HENT

BREE R-_ZEZELFLATREERE)

HEPALELE  THEEEEMFZITE4E RIEAR
NaElZ ARIMAAIE8T(11E & 87(2)15) R EBRMAE L
EMEBFEEE (RBBARRAT 2R RHEFE86(2)
%) HREERFEFAE LRE - MEEF
BERWFEEREMF -

EERBEN

BRREERREFASG LBREECEEHNE
EARKEFTLERAAKETAR —FATER
BOEERERIN MR LEZRBEEA -

EERARAREMEBER 2R
7 HEROREST Z2ERE

RZZEZLFMA=+H  ARAIZEERIT
BBEHNARRREEMBEER (FREREE
EPIESNEEZESF LS G ([8BHFMRPE K
1) EXVED) 2 B tn - HBERD REFTHEFER
RARRBRBEFES L EROIEIREFEZ
FrftzoEmkike  H(WMFE)BE L
TAERETEFRGZBRETRIAMAGAR
AR ESERABWT ¢
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EZEREE

Directors’ interests in shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and

its associated corporations (continued)

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations

(a) RALARHEBABEIEZRO P 2ER
RKXR

Company/Name
of associated

Number and class

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class
of securities as

corporations Name of directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2007

R-EZRLHF

mMA=+H

NN D HEHE EERERESSP

AL E Esns g7 &Yl ZREBESL
ZER (Note 1)
(BE=ED

Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.09%
YiN/NE] T A EmEA A ordinary shares
EAERK
(L)

Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 483,535,619 72.07%
PiN/NE T8 corporations ordinary shares
(Note 2) T R
REHEE R (L)

(Bt 5E2)

Company Peter Loris Beneficial owner 350,000 0.05%
¥iN/NE]| SOLOMGN EnEEAA ordinary shares
EAR
(L)

Company KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 420,000 0.06%
ZIN/NE] R 8% 7R EREAA ordinary shares
gl
(L)

Company WANG Arthur Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
PANYNE] Minshiang EnEEA ordinary shares
E B gl
(L)

Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 100,000 0.01%
PANYNE] =EH BEmEA A ordinary shares
I8 A
(L)
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Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and

its associated corporations (continued)

(a)

Interests and short positions in the shares of the Company

and its associated corporations (Continued)

Company/Name
of associated

EERNXK

NS R E
%~ HERG R ES

(a) RAQFARHEAHEZE

RKAE ()

Number and class

B
Rrs
ﬁ
B

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class
of securities as

corporations Name of directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2007
R-EZRLHF
MA=+H
N HEHE EEEBESP
HH B E EEHA g0 X 2 5l ZREBDTH
Z BB (Note 1)
(M&E1)
Megastar WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%
(Note 2) B ExmfEAA gl
(B7E2) (L)
Byford WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 134,709,990 67.35%
International F ¥ B corporation ordinary shares
Limited (Note 3) R
(“Byford”) ZEHAB 2 (L)
(Note 3) (B 5E3)
BEEBERARAR
(regl) (aE3)
Westman Linmark ~ WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 2 preference shares 0.07%
(Thailand) Ltd. F 1% E EREAA 12 % %
(Note 4) (L)
(Bt 5E4)
Westman Linmark Peter Loris Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.03%
(Thailand) Ltd. SOLOMON EmfEAA B R
(Note 4) (L)
(B aE4)
Westman Linmark FU Jin Ming, Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.03%
(Thailand) Ltd. Patrick BEDEEA B
(Note 4) B &R (L)
(B =E4)
Westman Linmark ~ WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.03%
(Thailand) Ltd. B5EH ExmBEAA EFi
(Note 4) (L)
(B aE4)
Westman Linmark KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.03%
(Thailand) Ltd. BB 8% 3R BEDBEEA B iR
(Note 4) (L)
(B aE4)

—TTLFFR AERE
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EZEREE

Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (continued)

(a)

Interests and short positions in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The letter "L" represents the director’'s interests in the
shares.

(2)  As at 30 April 2007, (i) RGS Holdings Limited (“RGS”), a wholly

(3]

(4)

owned subsidiary of Roly International, owned 437,720,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 65.24%
of the issued share capital of the Company; and (ii) Rl Special
owned 45,815,619 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 6.83% of the issued share capital of the
Company. By virtue of the relationship between Mr. WANG
Lu Yen and RI Special as stated in Note (2] to the paragraph
headed “Substantial shareholders and other persons who are
required to disclose their interests pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO” below, Mr. WANG Lu Yen was deemed, by virtue of
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in all
the shares of the Company in which RI Special was interested
and by virtue of the fact that RGS was wholly owned by Roly
International and the relationship between Mr. WANG Lu Yen
and Roly International, Mr. WANG Lu Yen was also deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which
RGS was interested.

As as 30 April 2007, Pacific Genius Group Limited ("PGGL")
held 134,709,990 shares, representing approximately 67.35%
of the issued share capital of Byford. PGGL was a wholly
owned subsidiary of Roly International. Roly International was
held by Rl Special as to 84.4%. Rl Special was wholly owned
by Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited. Rl Holdings Bermuda
Limited was held by RI Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited
as to 92%.
held by each of Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. and Megastar
as to 49.9% and 50.1% respectively. Megastar was wholly
owned by Mr. Wang Lu Yen. Mr. Wang Lu Yen was thus
deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to
be interested in all the shares of Byford in which PGGL was

RI Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited was

interested.

Westman Linmark (Thailand] Ltd.
Company. As at 30 April 2007, the issued share capital of
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd. was 12,000,000 Baht divided
into 2,940 ordinary shares of 2,000 Baht each and 3,060
preference shares of 2,000 Baht each.

is a subsidiary of the

6 O LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

EERARFR
- HERHB R

HEBEIEZR
BEPZERZ W@

(a) RALARHEBABEIEZRO P 2ER
RKAE ()
B 5 -

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

LI E =R iy 2 -

REZZZLFWNA=1TAH " () 2EEEZ
2 Z M B2 A RGS Holdings Limited
(TRGSJ) A 437,720,000/% & A TR -
IEARRRE BT AL 65.24% ; Klii) RI
Special ¥ 5 45,815,6198 AN A Al i + {h
ANRFEBEITIRAL6.83% - AR TX[=E
TR R RAIBIRFE F & BB 551 55 XVEB B
BiEm s Hib A1 — BRI FE2RT M £ 4% R
% A B Rl Special < HIR R - RIRE
REAEARBIEXVED Z 65X » EEBE AR
R B%H Rl Special ﬁﬁ%'ﬁZﬁﬁﬁK”
Mfp 2t - AR RCS A2 BB

%A - buiiﬁz%?ﬁiéﬁiiml%ﬁ‘aﬁm
7R MEBRBEEENEE RS RGS T
REZMABARRARRMDZ#EZE -

RZZZTLFMAB=+H  Pacific Genius
Group Limited ([PGGLJ) 35 & 134,709,990
BB HEEEBETRAL67.35% °
PGOL BRERBKR 22 EMB AR - ZEE
BXE Rl Special R B 84.4%H z ° RI
Special B Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited
2 & %A ° Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited
B Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda
Limited A 92%# 2= ° Rl Investment
Holdings Limited B Rl
Investment Holdings, Ltd. & Megastar 7
B FF A 49.9% 5% 50.1% R % © Megastar B E
REREZERAF - Akt - REEFRB
BIRPIEXVER 2 R - EREEERER
AR PGOL AT AZMEBEMRMD 21

5o

Bermuda

Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd. &R
AIZHBRAR - RZFETLFMA=+
H ' Westman Linmark (Thailand) Ltd. Z
B 84T AR A 4 12,000,0005% & 5 &2,940
I AR E B 2,000% &k 2 EimAR + LA K&3,060
ARSI E B 2,000k 2 E AR -



Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (continued)

(b)

Interests and short positions in the underlying shares of

(b) RADARHEBEEE

the Company and its associated corporations wREE
Number of underlying
Company/Name of shares comprised in
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity the options and warrants
7R A 7] A B BRERIRER
EEZ A EENA 5% FrezHBE@KRHa e
(Notes 1 and 2)
(Bt aE1 5% 2)
Company Peter Loris SOLOMON Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)
/NN EaiEA A
Company FU Jin Ming, Patrick Beneficial owner 6,630,000 (L)
ZiN/NE] 18 1% B5 EnEE A
Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L)
/NN =ZH EaiEA A
Company KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 8,320,000 (L)
Vi N/NE] I §8 5R EnfEA A
Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 250,000 (L)
Vi N/NE] F B EaiEA A
Company WOON Yi Teng, Eden Beneficial owner 250,000 (L)
/NN SAE EnfEA A
Company TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Beneficial owner 250,000 (L)
/NN HENT EaiEA A
Roly International WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 6,650,000 (L)
= B BB B4 EaiEA A
Roly International WANG Lu Yen Interest of spouse 87,500 (L)
= B BB B e (8 2 =
Roly International WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 68,913,971 (L)
2 B B T corporations
ZEHAB 2
Notes: M 5E -
(1)  The letter “L” represents the directors’ interests in the (1) TLIThHEESERBRMD 2R -
shares.

(2) Details of the above underlying shares are set out in the

paragraph headed “Directors’ rights to acquire shares or

debentures”.

(2) LEAABEROZFBERRIEETEERDRK

B2 R — B -

—TTLFFR AERE 6 1
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EZEREE

Directors’ interests in shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and

its associated corporations (continued)

(c) Interests and short positions in the debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2007, none of the directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or short positions in the
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or

debentures

(1) Movement of the options granted by the Company to the
directors of the Company under the Scheme during the
year under review was set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Options” above.

6 2 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures (continued)

(2)

Pursuant to the share option scheme of Roly International,
the holding company of the Company, the directors of the
Company and employees of the Group may, at the discretion
of the directors of Roly International, be granted options to
subscribe for shares of Roly International. Movement of the
options granted by Roly International to the directors of the
Company during the year under review was as follows:

Option granted by Roly International

EERERDIEFZER

(2) REARFZERDA2EERZBRES
g ARREFAKASEEEANZEZHE
REFHNERTEXARBE2HBEREN
ZBERE - RALDBEFERAZHBERET

RRABERZBRRE

2HMT :

Number of underlying shares of Roly International

PRERRHCEREAE2ZABERKRAEA

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
Name of as at as at price
directors Date of grant 1 May 2006 Cancelled 30 April 2007 per share Exercise period
R-BEARE R-BELHE
EA—H B=1+H
EEpA RHEBEH e R 1T 68 &t WARITHE BRITEE AR
(Note] (US$)
(Fft &E) (%)
WANG Lu Yen 23/08/2004 1,600,000 - 1,600,000 0.248  23/08/2005-22/08/2010
E%E
Peter Loris 11/11/2005 200,000 200,000 - 0.165 11/11/2006-10/11/2011
SOLOMON
WONG Wai Ming 11/11/2005 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 0.165  11/11/2006-10/11/2011
ERHA
KHOO Kim Cheng  07/03/2002 1,800,000 1,800,000 - 0.130  07/03/2004-06/03/2010
B 37 R 22/11/2002 1,500,000 1,500,000 - 0.138  22/11/2003-21/11/2008
09/05/2003 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 0.151  09/05/2004-08/05/2009
30/03/2004 1,200,000 1,200,000 - 0.321  30/03/2005-29/03/2010
6,500,000 6,500,000 -
Note: Upon the voluntary delisting proposal from RI Special M : Rl Special REZ BEEREEZR =F

having been approved by the shareholders of Roly
International on 26 March 2007 and its implementation,
the directors of the Company who held options of Roly
International (except for Mr. WANG Lu Yen who was
excluded from the options proposal] have accepted the
options proposal and surrendered all of their options of
Roly International for cancellation.

TLFE=A - +RNAEZREFRRL
ERATE  BEZRBEREREZA
AAEE(BREZEITERERZE
RERIN CERBRERZZ LD
WE 2 A 2B BB B R T LAGESH o

—TTLFFR AERE 63
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EZEREE

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or

debentures (continued)

(3] On 29 April 2004, Roly International issued bonus warrants
carrying the right to subscribe for new ordinary shares of
US$0.10 each in the capital of Roly International to its
shareholders whose names were on the register of members
of Roly International as at 26 April 2004 on the basis of one
bonus warrant for every four existing ordinary shares of Roly
International held by them. Each bonus warrant entitles the
holder to subscribe for one new share at the exercise price of
S$0.75 at any time during the period commencing on 29 April
2004 and expiring on 28 April 2009. Particulars of the warrants
issued to the directors of the Company and remained
outstanding as at 30 April 2007 were as follows:

EERERDIEFZER

(3) R—ZZMEMA-—+hIB » 2EEEE
THANREEZT _ZZTWNFMA =<
H&Z% 2 BERRRS M2 RE - 4LFR
REZENERBEEZEBEBERAFTEREE
010ETT M EBIRZET - BHFENRKRE
BEERIRE LR - &S —HAFR
iR - BHAFRBREZTHIZTEAR
—EENFRNA -+ NABREZEZENFN
A=+ \BHIE - AITEEC. 758 MK TR
B—RFHK R _EEZLFEWA=1+H -
AAREECERITMHARITE Z R
BIAE -

Warrants issued by Roly International
Number of underlying shares of
Roly International outstanding

PREBRHZAREEEE
ZEREBEROHAE
as at as at
Name of directors Capacity 1 May 2006 30 April 2007
R-BEXREF R-BELHF
Esns g7 HHA—H MA=+H
WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 5,050,000 5,050,000
THE EnfEAA
Interest of spouse (Note 1] 87,500 87,500
Tz e (FaE1)
Interest of a controlled corporations (Note 2] 30,310,875 68,913,971
EEGEE 2 s (aE2)
FU Jin Ming, Patrick Beneficial owner 750,000 =
{8 1% B BERERA (Note 3)
(M 5E3)
KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 543,000 -
B 88 R EmEAA (Note 3)
(B 3E3)

Notes:

(1) These warrants in Roly International were held by Mrs. WANG
LIAW Bin Bin, the wife of Mr. WANG Lu Yen.

(2)  As at 30 April 2007, these warrants in Roly International were
held as to 30,310,875 warrants by Megastar and as to
38,603,096 warrants by RI Special. By virtue of the
relationship between Mr. WANG Lu Yen, Rl Special and
Megastar, Mr. WANG Lu Yen is deemed to be interested in
all the warrants in Roly International in which each of RI

Special and Megastar is interested.
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(3] Upon the voluntary delisting proposal from Rl Special having
been approved by the shareholders of Roly International on
26 March 2007 and its implementation, the directors of the
Company who held warrants of Roly International (except for
Mr. WANG Lu Yen who was excluded from the warrant offer)
have accepted the warrant offer.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year under
review was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial shareholders and other

persons who are required to disclose their

interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company
As at 30 April 2007, the following shareholders (other than
the directors and chief executive of the Company whose
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company are set out above] had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

EERERDIEFZER
i ()

(3) RISpecial iREZEREKRIEEZN_ZF
t&F=A= +/\EIZ’1£%FJZIWHx$&t/ﬁ&
WNITR BFEEBERRRESEZAAQA
i%(‘”Hx%ﬁﬁiﬁT@%EWZEﬁﬁﬂ%
SN BENRBREZEZL -

B EXPTIBEESN RARBEFEERERE -
ARBREALMZERAR - B RHE R F M
BRAAMEZ2RITVERNREUNEARRES
A FERE AR R ) SR ] E AR B 2 B 7 3K 1R 75
R A 25

= 2R R KRB 57 A SR B
EXVH AR ERERS Z,Jlﬂ AT

(a) ARAZEFERR
R-ZZEZLFMA=1+H THBREREER
ARRmlz iy RBEERMD 2EEMRARE
HN EXZARBEE RITHAERIN
ARm B EABEROPEERLAN
RAIREBES L EIRIIFEIBHFEZE
Rz ESEIAR :

//

e

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shares of interest as at
substantial shareholders Capacity the Company held 30 April 2007
R-BTLH
BFEAXRH B=+8x2
TERRER g7} ROBE HEIZHMABEILE
(Note 1)
(BF&ED)
RGS Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 437,720,000 (L) 65.24%
EREAA
Roly International Interest of controlled 437,720,000 (L) 65.24%
2 B B corporation (Note 2)
REsDEE 2 Ea (M)
Rl Special Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L) 72.07%

corporations and

beneficial owner (Note 2)

EEGDEEZ R
EmEA A (2

—TTLFFR AERE 6 5
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EZEREE

Substantial shareholders and other
persons who are required to disclose their
interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO

(Continued)

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (Continued)

TERRERBREIZRBE KD
EXVHBERBERES 2 HMAL @

(a) RATZEERE (4)

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shares of interest as at
substantial shareholders Capacity the Company held 30 April 2007
R-EBLHF
BEXRAT mMA=+tHZ
FERREH ) ROHE REEBAEIL
(Note 1)
(FEED)
Rl Holdings Bermuda Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L) 72.07%
Limited corporations (Note 2]
EEGDEE 2 #m (M E2)
Rl Investment Holdings Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L) 72.07%
Bermuda Limited corporations (Note 2]
EEGDEE 2 #m (M E2)
Megastar Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L] 72.07%
corporations (Note 2]
HEGDEE 2 #m (M E2)
Rl Investment Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L] 72.07%
Holdings, Ltd. corporations (Note 2]
HEGDEE 2 #m (M E2)
Asia Pacific Growth Fund Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L] 72.07%
V, L.P. ("APGF V") corporations (Note 2]
EEGDRE 2 #m (M E2)
Asia Pacific Associates V., L.P. Interest of controlled 483,535,619 (L) 72.07%
corporations (Note 2]
EEGDRE 2 #m (M E2)
Arisaig Greater China Fund Beneficial owner 66,469,000 (L) 9.91%
Limited B A A
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Investment manager 66,469,000 (L) 9.91%
Limited (Note 3) REKE
(B FE3)
Lindsay William Ernest Interest of controlled 66,469,000 (L) 9.91%
COOPER (Note 4) corporation
(Bt £ 4) REGEAR 2 S
Moon Capital Master Fund Ltd. eneficial owner 33,595,845 (L) 5.01%
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Substantial shareholders and other
persons who are required to disclose their
interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO

(Continued)

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (Continued)

() RAAFZETERE (8

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of shares of interest as at

substantial shareholders Capacity the Company held 30 April 2007

R=FFBLF
BFEAXRT BA=+Bz2
TERRER ) ROBE HEIZHMABEILE
(Note 1)
(B3
Moon Capital Global Equity Interest of a controlled 33,595,845 (L) 5.01%
Offshore Fund Ltd. corporation (Note 5]
XEGEE 2 s (EED)
Moon Capital Global Equity Interest of a controlled 33,595,845 (L) 5.01%
Fund LP corporation (Note 5)
2 A E 2 #Ea (BT EES)

Notes: B ==

(1) The letter "L” represents the entity’s interests in the Linmark (1) Ll 3 EBRMER D 2=
Shares.

(2) As at 30 April 2007, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of (2) RZZZT+LFWMA=+H  (IZEHKEKRZE2EK
Roly International, owned 437,720,000 shares of the Company, B2 A RGS #E A 437,720,00008 AN A RIRR 5 15
representing approximately 65.24%, of the issued share RRAFBETRAL65.24% &[H] Rl Special
capital of the Company; and (i) Rl Special owned 45,815,619 B 4581561981 @ IEAR BITRAL
shares of the Company, representing approximately 6.83% 6.83% ° 2 BB H Rl Special Hﬁ84 LTSS °
of the issued share capital of the Company. Roly International Rl Special B8 RI Holdings Bermuda Limited &
was held by RI Special as to 84.4%. Rl Special was wholly E A ° Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited B RI
owned by Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited. Rl Holdings Bermuda Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited ¥ 5 92%
Limited was held by RI Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited # % © Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited
as to 92%. Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited was B Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. & Megastar 7
held by each of Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. and Megastar BB 49.9% K% 50.1%# 2 © Rl Investment
as to 49.9% and 50.1% respectively. Rl Investment Holdings Holdings Limitedid APFGV 2 & #H ° APFG V
Limited is wholly owned by APFG V. APFG V is a limited BR—ZRXE¥BERAQA - EE Asia Pacific
partnership which Asia Pacific Associates V., L.P. as its Associates V., LP. fEBEEBEB A » HZE
general partner which is in control of the limited partnership. %5 R A5 HE -

(3) Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited is the fund manager of  (3) Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited & Arisaig
Arisaig Greater China Fund Limited. Greater China Fund Limited Z Z & & I2

(4)  Mr. Lindsay William Ernest COOPER owns 100% interest in  (4) Lindsay William Ernest COOPER st £# &
Madeleine Ltd which in turn owns 33.33% interest in Arisaig Madeleine Ltd 2 100%# %5 - M Madeleine Ltd
Partners (Holdings) Ltd. Arisaig Partners (Holdings] Ltd, B # & Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Ltd Z
through its wholly-owned subsidiary Arisaig Partners (BVI) 33.33%# % ° Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Ltd i&
Limited, owns 100% interest in Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) i H 2 & & 2 FlArisaig Partners (BVI) Limited
Limited. WA Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited Z

100%7# % °
(5) The subject controlled corporation is Moon Capital Master  (5) 3232 #l;%® & Moon Capital Master Fund Ltd. -

Fund Ltd., the issued share capital of which is owned as to
66.66% by Moon Capital Global Equity Offshore Fund Ltd.
and 33.33% by Moon Capital Global Equity Fund LP.

HBE#ITIRZAH Moon Capital Global Equity
Offshore Fund Ltd. A& Moon Capital Global
Equity Fund LP 3 BII#E 7 66.66% 5 33.33% 5 ©

—TTLFFR AERE 6 7



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EZEREE

Substantial shareholders and other

persons who are required to disclose their

interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO

(Continued)

(b) Other persons who are required to disclose their interests
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” and
paragraph (a) above, as at 30 April 2007, no other person
had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which are required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year under review are disclosed in Note 37 to the
financial statements. Save as disclosed below, these related
party transactions fall under the definition of a connected
transaction, but are exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders” approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 37 to
the financial statements also constitute connected transactions
or as the case may be, continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements, if
necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions (continued

As a result of the completion of the acquisition (“Acquisition”]
of 60% interest in Dowry Peacock on 19 October 2005, Dowry
Peacock is 60%-owned by the Company, and 30%-owned by Mr.
Raymond Anthony NUGENT, a director of Dowry Peacock, and
10%-owned by Lucky Marriot Consolidated Limited, an
independent third party. During the year under review, the Group
had the following continuing connected transactions (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) arising on completion of or
subsequent to the Acquisition:

1 Licence Agreements

On 19 May 2005 and 27 June 2005, Linmark Electronics
Limited ("LEL", formerly known as Schneider United
Kingdom Limited], Dual France Sarl ("Dual France”] and
DGC GmbH ("DGC") entered into two trademark licence
agreements (“Licence Agreements”] respectively pursuant
to which LEL granted to Dual France and DGC exclusive
licences in certain countries and territories to use the
“Dual” and “Nordmende” trademarks for a period of three
years for a royalty fee of 0.75% of the net purchases of
Dual France and DGC. Dual France and DGC were licensed
by LEL to sell goods in specified classes carrying the “Dual”
and “Nordmende” trademarks in France (in the case of
Dual France] with licence fee commencing on 1 January
2005 and in Germany, Austria, Switzerland, Liechtenstein,
the Benelux countries, Croatia, Spain and Hungary (in the
case of DGCJ with licence fee commencing on 1 October
2004.

Net purchases of Dual France and DGC refer to exworks
prices, without carriage, duty or other surcharges. The rate
of royalty fee is similar to that of the rate charged by LEL
to an independent third party licensee.

The aggregate consideration received by LEL under the
Licence Agreements from DGC during the year under review
was approximately US$107,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$835,000). During the year under review, there was no
transactions between Dual France and LEL pursuant to
the Licence Agreements.

The Licence Agreements allow the Dowry Peacock Group
to maintain and expand the markets in Germany, France
and some other European countries for the “Dual” and
“Nordmende” trademarks without setting up its own
operations in these markets.

ﬁﬁﬁ%%

ZZETRF T AT NBTAYEE Dowry Peacock
B 60% A% #E ([UW B ]) &  Dowry Peacock B 7N
AN B) ¥ 8 60% + Dowry Peacock % % Raymond
Anthony NUGENT SE 4 #H30% - BYE =7
Lucky Marriot Consolidated Limited 48 10% °
AEEFEEAN - AEBERFETAWES N KER
EIT T RERERS (R EMARNEE) :

1 BaEH=E
RZBEZERAFREATLBRER-_ZEEREFAN
HA=—++H - Linmark Electronics Limited
(TLEL] - T4 Schneider United Kingdom
Limited) * Dual France Sarl ([Dual
Francel) &2 DGC GmbH ([DGCJ) & BIE] 32
M0 ST B ([ReTEmE]) B
itk © LEL @ Dual France X DGC & T 7
H TEXRE#EF A [ Duall &
[Nordmende] an M HI B R EFFTHE - BEI=
# » ¥ Dual France & DGC BB E =58
B0.75%t EEFEE o LEL Fr &
Dual France & DGC E?‘Z‘.(?f Dual
France M5 ' ERFTHER-_STAF —
A—BRBRET) RER - '%iﬁlﬂ fﬁﬁ:t
PIZHHE - —EEREEBER (EE -
FERERR) « REMTE ﬁf)f%&/j%
A (FEDGC M5 ' HEFFHER _TTHF
+HA—BRBEM) HEEEELERE [Duall
K [Nordmende] EEHE M@ ©

Dual France X DGC Y& B F 5 18 1 &
B T"EREEE  MAXEMENE - &F
FMEE L R |LEL ﬁﬁ*miﬁ%ﬁ%%
BEAWRBRHERES

NEEEEAXN - LEL BESTERER
DGCURER ) 48 KB 495 107,0003% 7T (FEE
#7835,000%8 L) - REEFE R * Dual
France 8 LEL B Y EREFHFEH S
BIT2R5

5 5T % 1% 7% Al & Dowry Peacock & B 721
SR B R E A BN B R R A I IE T
[Duall X [Nordmende] @ YT 5 - M
TEELBRETLEREMBHER -

—TT LA AEEE
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Connected transactions (continued)

1

Licence Agreements (Continued)

When the Licence Agreements were entered into by the
parties, Dual France and DGC were each owned as to over
30% by Mr. Raymond Anthony NUGENT who has been
substantial shareholder of Dowry Peacock, a 60%-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, Dual France and DGC, as
associates of a director of a subsidiary of the Company,
were connected persons of the Company. On 30 August
2006, Mr. Raymond Anthony NUGENT ceased to have any
shareholding interest in Dual France and accordingly, Dual
France ceased to be a connected person of the Company.
As at 30 April 2007, DGC was owned as to 64% by Mr.
Raymond Anthony NUGENT and remained as a connected
person of the Company.

The directors of the Company (including the independent
non-executive directors] consider that the above
transactions were conducted in the usual and ordinary
course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms and in accordance with the Licence Agreements. The
directors of the Company (including the independent non-
executive directors) are of the view that the terms of the
above transactions were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Service Agreement

The Company entered into a service agreement ("Service
Agreement”) dated 10 April 2006 with Dowry Peacock for a
term of three years. The Service Agreement serves as a
top-level framework agreement between the Company and
Dowry Peacock to regulate the transactions to be entered
into by the Group and Dowry Peacock and its subsidiaries
which constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules by virtue of Dowry
Peacock and its subsidiaries being associates of Mr.
Raymond Anthony NUGENT.
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Connected transactions (continued)

2

Service Agreement (Continued)
The
administrative and consultancy services by the Group to

services include provision of management,
Dowry Peacock and/or its subsidiarylies], provision of
sourcing services, agency services and/or services in
relation to trading of merchandises or supply chain
activities by the Group to Dowry Peacock and/or its
subsidiarylies) or provision of the sourcing services, agency
services and/or services in relation to trading of
merchandises or supply chain activities to be provided by
Dowry Peacock and/or its subsidiarylies) to the Group,
provision of quality inspection services on merchandises
by the Group to Dowry Peacock and/or its subsidiary(ies)
and provision and receipt of such other services ancillary
or to facilitate the business activities of the Group and

Dowry Peacock and/or its subsidiarylies).

The Service Agreement serves as a platform to allow the
Company and Dowry Peacock and its respective subsidiaries
to enjoy synergies in terms of complementary services that
could be provided by one to another.

During the year under review, the aggregate amount
received by the Group from Dowry Peacock and its
subsidiary(ies) for services provided by the Group to Dowry
Peacock and its subsidiarylies) under the Service
Agreement was approximately US$876,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,833,000]); and no service was provided
by Dowry Peacock or any of its subsidiaries to the Group
under the Service Agreement during the year under review.

The directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) consider that the above transactions were
conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business of
the Group on normal commercial terms. The directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) are of
the view that the transactions were entered into in
accordance with the Service Agreement on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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EZEREE

Connected transactions (continued

All connected transactions were reviewed by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company at the meeting of the
audit committee of the Board held on 21 August 2007. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirmed
that the aforesaid connected transactions were entered into (a)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
on normal commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has also performed certain agreed-
upon procedures and has issued a report to the Board stating
the factual findings resulting from their work that, on a sample
basis, the continuing connected transactions stated in items 1
and 2 above: (a) have received the approval of the Board; (b)
are based on specified percentages of the related shipment/
purchase value; (c) have been entered into in accordance with
the provisions of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and (d) have not exceeded the caps disclosed in
the previous announcements of the Company.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the transactions stated in items 1 and 2
above.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 37 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year under review.

Major customers and vendors of the Group
During the year under review, the five largest customers of the
Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 70.0% of the
turnover of the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 35.7% of the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted
for approximately 20.0% of the Group's total shipment volume
and the largest vendor accounted for approximately 10.5% of
the Group's total shipment value.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in the top five vendors or customers
noted above.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the
year under review.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 166
and 167 of the annual report.

Charitable Donation
During the year under review, no charitable donations was made
by the Group.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 33 to 49.

Sufficiency of public float

From information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
under review.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company to hold
office until conclusion of the next annual general meeting at a

fee to be agreed with the directors.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 August 2007
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHBMBRES

EORUKESTTM SR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LINMARK GROUP LIMITED

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Linmark Group Limited ("the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, “the Group”] set out on pages 76 to 165, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as of
30 April 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

[n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the
Group as of 30 April 2007, and of the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Other matters

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 August 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e R

For the year ended 30 April 2007
BE_TTLFNA=FTHLEFE

2007 2006
—EBELHF ZEERF
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Revenue I = 5 383,583 288,322
Cost of sales B B A 8 (329,897) (229,923)
Gross profit EF 53,686 58,399
Other income H b Y A 7 2,593 1,787
General and administrative expenses — M MfTH X 8 (45,925) (50,521)
Impairment loss on goodwill B REEE 9 (2,494) -
Impairment loss on purchase A] W [B] 4s B XA (B & 18
consideration recoverable 9 (5,699) =
Impairment loss on patents and =R EERREEE
trademarks 10 (51,529) =
Write-back of purchase JE < I B X (B 1 [Tl
consideration payable 10 21,469 -
Excess of interest in fair value of RIEBAKBAREE
acquired subsidiaries’ FEAFEENOER
net assets over cost BAL K AN 2 KR 36 - 3,397
Operating (loss)/profit g (FER) RR (27,899) 13,062
Interest income A B WA 7 905 814
Finance costs BBER 12 (1,164) (549)
Share of loss of a jointly JEfE — K H R HIE
controlled entity Z B8 19 (53) (49)
(Loss)/profit before income tax Fri8 A (B58) %A (28,211) 13,278
Income tax expense s i = 13 (2,659) (2,763)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BER) BR (30,870) 10,515
Attributable to: UT&GERN:
Equity holders of the Company RRAFEZRHAEA (11,062) 10,444
Minority interest A B R R i (19,808) 71
(30,870) 10,515
(Loss)/earnings per share for KAGERFEE AEL
(Loss)/profit attributable to (BR) #iz8K
equity holders of the Company (BR]) &7
(expressed in US cents per share) (A ERREAMWZ71)
- Basic — &K 16 (1.7) 1.6
- Diluted —#8 16 (1.7) 1.6
Dividends KA 15 3,679 4,829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS

EEBER

As at 30 April 2007
RZTEZTELFMA=+H

Group Company
PN | AAH
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EZtE ZTEF CZZELE ZZTRE
Note Us$'000 US$000 Us$°000 US$°000
lik3 TEx TET TER TET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKEE 17 3,501 3,236 - -
Intangible assets B EE 18 57,594 113,415 - -
Other asset HiEE 83 83 - -
Investments in subsidiaries RIERRZIRE 38 - - 43,221 41,509
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—RERZHER
ZRE 19 68 121 - -
61,246 116,855 43,221 41,509
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 9,792 13,540 - -
Trade receivables EKE 5 ER 21 31,351 34,522 - -
Prepayments, deposits BANRE BER
and other receivables H e Uy 3B 22 7,065 6,746 12 3
Amounts due from related [ W B sE Al
companies ZHE 37(c) 64 193 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe%EEA 2 30,405 37,609 7,166 7,105
78,677 92,610 7,178 7,108
LIABILITIES 8
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade payables e E 5 8RR 24 31,331 44,589 - -
Accruals and other [EEH B A R E AR T
payables A 25 13,939 14,815 22 17
Warranty provision REARE 26 2,953 2,358 - -
Short-term bank loans EHRTER 27 5,000 8,850 - -
Trust receipts bank loans ERBERITER 27 1,046 - - -
Balance of consideration WEHBAR,/£%
payable for acquisitions REEZENKE
of subsidiaries/businesses and BE-—FR
assets - due within one year =i 28 3,752 12,286 - -
Dividend payable to a minority AN NG
shareholder of a subsidiary —ZPEREZRE 1,039 - - -
Current income tax liabilities MEmEHasE 3,931 2,901 - -
62,991 85,799 22 17
Net current assets RBEERE 15,686 6,811 7,156 7,091
Total assets less current BEERRD
liabilities & 76,932 123,666 50,377 48,600
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BALANCE SHEETS
EEAER

As at 30 April 2007
R-ZEZELFWA=1+H

Group Company
A58 b NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
“ETtE —ETRF CZEEtE —TERF
Note Us$’000 Us$000 Us$’000 Us$000
B TEx TEL TEx FTET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Balance of consideration WEHBAR,/
payable for acquisitions EBREEZEMN
of subsidiaries/businesses REHBE-—F#
and assets - due after one year =i 28 1,149 17,073 - -
Post-employment benefits & 8 RIREF 29 1,362 1,691 - =
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEmEHAaR 30 116 125 - -
2,627 18,889 - -
Net assets BEFE 74,305 104,777 50,377 48,600
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves ADARERREA
attributable to equity B RAR
holders of the Company it
Share capital AR 31 13,418 13,337 13,418 13,337
Reserves & 33 48,762 61,907 36,959 35,263
62,180 75,244 50,377 48,600
Minority interest PHRRER 12,125 29,533 - =
Total equity EDEE 74,305 104,777 50,377 48,600
WANG Lu Yen Peter Loris SOLOMON
F %A
Director Director
EFE EE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these PBEMZHMEDRERETHRE 2 2D °
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e EmEER

For the year ended 30 April 2007
HE_ZZ+FOA=THILEFE

Attributable to equity Minority
holders of the Company interest
AARERE > Total
BAEMN RERER B
Share
capital Reserves
IR 2= *E
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TET TET TEXT TET
Balance at 1 May 2006 R-BEXRE
EA—HZ&RF 13,337 61,907 29,533 104,777
Loss for the year FEEER - (11,062) (19,808) (30,870)
Currency translation differences EEEN =% = 1,237 2,869 4,106
Total recognised loss for the year FECHAEEAEE - (9,825) (16,939) (26,764)
13,337 52,082 12,594 78,013
Employees share option scheme & B BB #E T 2l
- value of employment services —EERBEEE - 199 - 199
Business combination Eg e
— issue of shares — BT M5 81 1,068 = 1,149
Waiver of dividend receivable from TR W BR FE U — K
a non-wholly owned subsidiary iliiﬁﬂﬂ;l\ Al
Z R = (569) 569 -
Dividends % 2
- paid to equity holders —-B&TF
of the Company RRNRERFERA = (4,018) = (4,018)
- paid/payable to a minority —-Bf BT
shareholder of a subsidiary — R E QA
—HLHBRR = - (1,038) (1,038)
Balance at 30 April 2007 R-BZELHF
B=tBHBzZ&#F 13,418 48,762 12,125 74,305
Balance at 1 May 2005 R-ZEZTEHF
EA—HZ&ETR 13,113 52,206 - 65,319
Profit for the year F 5 i A - 10,444 71 10,515
Currency translation differences BEEERZ5 - 1,742 1,218 2,960
Total recognised income for the year FEEBERN LT - 12,186 1,289 13,475
13,113 64,392 1,289 78,794
Employees share option scheme E%Eﬁﬂﬁ%?ﬁ%
- value of employment services & 8 iR 7% B & = 448 = 448
- proceeds from issue of shares —ﬁfﬁﬂxfﬁﬁﬁ%«#\ 24 224 - 248
Business combination ¥ a0
- issue of shares — BT D 200 2,621 - 2,821
- minority interest — PR RS = = 30,903 30,903
Capital contribution from a minority — R BAR—& D
shareholder of a subsidiary in the R BR LA 4 ZE W R AR B - 569 380 949
form of waiver of dividend receivable ~ ZERZFE
Dividends % 2
- paid to equity holders —-B&TF
of the Company ZN/NEIE: EnES F SN = (6,347) = (6,347)
- paid/payable to a minority —-Bf BT
shareholder of a subsidiary — X E QA
—HLHBRR = - (3,039) (3,039)
Balance at 30 April 2006 R-ZBEXREF
WA=tRZ&RF 13,337 61,907 29,533 104,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MEREMER

For the year ended 30 April 2007
BE_ZZLFNA=THILFE

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
Note uUs$°000 US$'000
Bt 5 FTER TET
Cash flows from operating activities K&K HELRE
Cash generated from operations REXRBFERE 34(a) 5,894 21,107
Interest paid ERNFAPE) (643) (297)
Income tax paid BN PTEH (1,710) (725)
Net cash generated from REXBAERS
operating activities AR 3,541 20,085
Cash flows from investing activities REZB2HELHRE
Acquisition of subsidiaries/ WHEM B R R, EBR
businesses and assets, BE  MEAER: 36 - (1,411)
net of cash acquired
Payment of consideration KB AR, EE &
for acquisition of subsidiaries/ BEMNRKE
business and assets (3,073) (6,461)
Purchase of property, plant and BEDE BEX
equipment Big (2,256) (1,414)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj'éﬁt%% - BB &
plant and equipment RAEFT1S R 34(b) 48 116
Interest received B A A 905 814
Decrease in bank deposits with “EARKEREZ
original maturity over three months RITERREER
and pledged bank deposits HR1T 17 OB - 5,000
Net cash used in investing activities &% & /EB)FTFEIR £ /F58 (4,376) (3,356)
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2007 2006

—EBLEHF —ETRF
Note uUs$°000 US$'000
Bt 5 FTER F=ET
Cash flows from financing activities ®EZB2HELHRE
Drawdown of short-term bank loans  fREZHIER1T B X - 6,550
Increase in trust receipts B BRI ITER
bank loans, net b2 [1wabE % 5] 1,046 -
Repayment of short-term bank loans (EERHIIRITER (3,850) -
Proceeds from issue of shares BATHR 1 PR 15 3E - 248
Dividends paid to the Company’s ERNARR SR
equity holders BAZKRE (4,018) (6,347)
Dividends paid to a minority EN—RMEAF—
shareholder of a subsidary BRI E - (2,090)
Net cash used in financing activities B E EB)FTFEIR £ /F 58 (6,822) (1,639)
Net (decreasel/increase in cash HerRBEELEEER
and cash equivalents CR2) /&g eE (7,657) 15,090
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzRekBE2EE
beginning of the year 1 B 30,609 19,323
Exchange gains on cash and RekHeFEEEED
cash equivalents HNE Wz 453 196
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZE2RBESEHE
of the year 1HH 34(d) 23,405 30,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these BEMZHENLERATHREZ —ZBH °
consolidated financial statements.
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General information

Linmark Group Limited ("the Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company are collectively referred to as “the Group”) are
principally engaged in sales of merchandise and provision
of services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company's shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 10 May 2002.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (US$), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for
issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 21 August
2007.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

These consolidated financial statements comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets at 30 April 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and the explanatory notes.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied in all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

82 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R PR

—REH

Linmark Group Limited (MZE S EHR 2
8) ([RRA]) RIREER AR - AHBLR
A (EARAREHMAINER]) TERES
35 B IR AR -

ARRAR-_ZBZE_F—-—A-_+HBRER
RE-—NN—"FRAEEAREZMAZ
RBIXBRERAR c RAR2EMMEE
ik & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° &2 A i 5
RZEZ_FRATRAEBRABER S
BERQAEREM o

BREBEREIN  ZELRETBRENAE
T2 e

H

ZEGRAVBREENR_EZTLFNAZ
T-HREARFEFSHAEER -

EEHREME

HEGFEMBRERBER _ZETLFHEA
S TRAZEERAREERGBR  MEBZE
%Eﬁif%ﬁé%ﬁ% HARRED
xEkFEeERERER J//(&Izzaﬁﬂlﬁ
BB R FEANE -

RENSEEMBREMAZIEZEFTK
RERTXEI - RABEAEN > %F
BEREEE2NFEMEBEMENT -

(a) MBEE
It F 4R A MBI E TR B M % H
SR ([BERMBREEA]) - RE
SERRAERREL ©



2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’'s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where judgments and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4. These estimates and judgments affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the year. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of events and actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those
estimates.

(il  Amendments to and interpretations of published
standards effective in 2006 and relevant to the
Group's operations

The following amendments and interpretations are
mandatory for annual periods beginning in 2006
and are relevant to the Group's operations:

IAS 39 IFRS 4,
Amendment “Financial Guarantee Contracts”

e Amendment to and
(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2006]). This amendment
requires issued financial guarantees, other
than those previously asserted by the entity
to be insurance contracts, to be initially
their

subsequently measured at the higher of (i)

recognised at fair value, and
the unamortised balance of the related fees
received and deferred, or [(ii] the expenditure
required to settle the commitment at the
balance sheet date. The adoption of this
amendment does not have a significant
financial

impact on the consolidated

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting

(a)

pOliCies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amendments to and interpretations of published
standards effective in 2006 and relevant to the
Group's operations (Continued)

IFRIC-Int 4 “Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2006). It requires the determination
of whether an arrangement is or contains a
lease to be based on the substance of the
arrangement. It requires an assessment of
whether: (i) fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets (the asset); and [ii] the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. The adoption
of this interpretation does not have a
significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

IFRIC-Int 8 “Scope of IFRS 2" (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 May
2006). IFRIC-Int 8 requires consideration of
transactions involving the issuance of equity
instruments - where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the fair
value of the equity instruments issued - to
establish whether or not they fall within the
scope of IFRS 2. The adoption of this
interpretation does not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 21 Amendment “Net Investment in a
Foreign QOperation” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006).
This amendment permits inter-company
loans denominated in any currency to be part
of a net investment in a foreign operation,
and therefore any related exchange
difference to be treated as equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Previously
such loans had to be denominated in the
functional currency of one of the parties to
the transaction. The adoption of this
amendment does not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEBFEHEMEw
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) MBEE(H)

il  Amendments to and interpretations of published ] REZFENFENREARNEEFZE
standards effective in 2006 and relevant to the BEHZE R HERZAEETRZ
Group's operations (Continued) FE (1)

e |IAS 19 Amendment “Employee Benefit” o R FTERIFE 195 (1BE])
(effective for annual periods beginning on or HEE%EE?‘JJ (RZETRF—
after 1 January 2006). This amendment A—Bsz&MmncFEH
introduces the option of an alternative AR o IWIRERTSIA S —
recognition approach for actuarial gains and BERBERRE 2T E I
losses and imposes additional recognition HZERFFEEBBTEIND
requirements for multi-employer plans where BRHRE  BANKEBERRE
insufficient information is available to apply BRI ERARAERMNEA
defined benefit accounting. It also adds new FRRERA o LETEERITRMA T
disclosure requirements. As the Group does MR BRRE - A& Iﬂﬁ
not intend to change the accounting policy BRI R IR S R
adopted for recognition of actuarial gains and TR ﬁﬁ\/,\f{ﬂﬁf
losses and does not participate in any multi- EEGTE - EEALLIES
employer plans, the adoption of this FER %?GET%&#&H:ZEEJ
amendment only impacts the format and ARKESHE -

extent of disclosures presented in the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
il  New standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

The following are the new standards and
interpretations to existing standards that have
been published and are mandatory for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006 or later
periods that the Group has not early adopted:

e |FRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007), IAS 1 "Amendments to
capital disclosures” [(effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007).
IFRS 7 introduces new disclosures relating
to financial instruments. The Group has
assessed the impact of IFRS 7 and the
amendment to IAS 1 and concluded that the
main additional disclosures will be the
sensitivity analysis to market risk and capital
disclosures required by the amendment of
IAS 1. The Group will adopt IFRS 7 and the
amendment to IAS 1 for annual periods
beginning from 1 May 2007.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEBFEHEMEw

pOIiCieS (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) MBEE(H)

lii] 132K 4 3 R 7K 5 B 0 #E 1R B IR
ZHETEAIR B ITER 2 %

been early adopted by the Group (Continued) (#8)

il  New standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009). IFRS 8 supersedes IAS 14,
“Segment Reporting”, which requires
segments to be reported based on the
Group's internal reporting pattern as they
represent components of the Group regularly
reviewed by management. Management
considers the adoption of IFRS 8 will have no
significant impact on the segment disclosures
of the Group. The Group will apply IFRS 8 for
annual periods beginning from 1 May 2009.

IFRIC-Int 9 "Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2006).
Management believes that this interpretation
should not have significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies as the Group has
already assessed whether embedded
derivatives should be separated using
principles consistent with IFRIC-Int 9. The
Group will apply IFRIC-Int 9 for annual
periods beginning from 1 May 2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

il  New standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

IFRIC-Int 10 “Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 November 2006].
IFRIC-Int 10 prohibits impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill,
investments in equity instruments and
investments in financial assets carried at cost
to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet
date. The Group will apply IFRIC-Int 10 for
annual periods beginning from 1 May 2007,
but it is not expected to have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

IFRIC-Int 11 “"IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transfer” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2007). This
interpretation addresses how certain share-
based payment arrangements between group
companies should be accounted for in the
financial statements. The Group will apply
IFRIC-Int 11 for annual periods beginning
from 1 May 2007 but it is not expected to
have any significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

lili] Interpretations to existing standards that are not

(iv]

yet effective and not relevant to the Group's
operations

The following interpretation to an existing
standard has been published that is mandatory
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008 and is not relevant to the Group’s operations:

e [FRIC-Int 12

Arrangements”

“Service Concession
. This interpretation sets out
general principles on recognising and
measuring the obligation and related rights
in service concession arrangements. The
Group has no service concession
arrangements and management considers
the interpretation is not relevant to the

Group.

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for annual periods beginning on
1 May 2006 but not relevant to the Group's
operations

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations are mandatory for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2006 but are not
relevant to the Group's operations:

. IAS 39 Amendment

Accounting of

“Cash Flow Hedge

Forecast Intragroup

Transactions”

e |AS 39 Amendment “The Fair Value Option”

e |IFRS 1 Amendment “
International Financial Reporting Standards”

First-time Adoption of
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv] Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 May
2006 but not relevant to the Group's operations
(Continued)

e |FRIC-Int 5 "Rights to Interests arising from

Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds”
e |FRIC-Int 6 “Liabilities arising from

Participating in a Specific Market - Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment”

e |FRIC-Int 7 “Applying the Restatement
Approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies”

(b) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 30 April.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

9 O LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

2 FEESHHEHRE @

(a)

(b)

fm BLELE ()

iv] RZFBENFRLA—HARAHZE
F ey SERRAE JETE Y F ]
R~ BT R FE (E)

s HRYHEHREREBZES -
BRESRIZHEERER -
ERERFEEEESHESL
a2 A

s HER¥BHREREBEZES -
BREFEOR[2HEEEM S -
BEENREFRBELEZ
af&E]

s HERFBHREREBZES -
BEETR(BREER S5 E
AIFE 29 EEBREEZ
MBmERBEIE]

BaE®
BAMBRERERADREMEM
BAABERA=18 2 HERE -

(- NCIECE SUIRCR - 2k R Y
BAR BEREHEYEREREN
FREER MREEEHTEXEE
BUREERMEAREEENKRSR
B EEEHZERNES T
1 -

MEARREHEEEEEEE A
2ERNEEANAGH W EEHERL
EHEEEDHI -



2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEBFEHEMEw
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) HmEEE(H)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’'s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income

statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 FEESHHEHRE @

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities are entities where the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which
is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic
activity. Investments in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of jointly controlled entities” post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments. When
the Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled
entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
Segment reporting

(c)

(d)

A business segment is a group of assets and

operations engaged in providing products or services

that are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of other business segments. A geographical

segment is engaged in providing products or services

within a particular economic environment that are

subject to risks and returns that are different from

those of segments operating in other economic

environments.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“functional currency”).
These financial statements are presented in
United States Dollar, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO
PR HREE MAE

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

pOIiCieS (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies
The results and financial positions of all

entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflation economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Leasehold improvements over the shorter of
5 years or the terms
of the leases
Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles and yacht 5to 10 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.
An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
Intangible assets

(f)

(i)

(ii)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share
of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary/business/jointly controlled entity at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries/businesses is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of jointly
controlled entities is included in investments in
jointly controlled entities. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated losses, if

impairment any.

Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of a subsidiary/
business/jointly controlled entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the

subsidiary/business/jointly controlled entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
Is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which

the goodwill arose.

Deferred expenditure

Material items of expenditure that do not relate
ely to revenue which has already been

accounted for are deferred to the extent that they

are recoverable out of future revenue, and will

contribute to the future earning capacity of the

Group.

Deferred expenditure is amortised over the period
in which the related benefits are expected to be
realised. Deferred expenditure is reviewed
annually to determine the amount, if any, that is
no longer recoverable and any such amount is

written off to the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(f)

(g)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Patents and trademarks
Patents and trademarks that have an indefinite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and are tested at least
annually for impairment.

(iv] Licence rights

Licence rights are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. They are initially
measured as the fair value of the consideration
given to acquire the licence at the time of the
acquisition, which represents the capitalised
present values of the fixed minimum periodic
payments to be made in subsequent periods.

Licence rights are amortised over the licence
period on a basis that reflects the pattern in which
the

expected to be consumed by the Group.

licence’s future economic benefits are

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested at least annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that
are subject to depreciation and amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’'s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units]. Assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAHE R MYEE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
(h) Loans and receivables

(i)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities greater
than
non-current assets.

12 months in which case they are classified as

Loan and receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment, if any. The Group assesses at each
balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method of costing and comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(j)

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there
is an objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivables are impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the income statement within general and
administrative expenses. When a receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against general and
administrative expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdraft. Bank
overdrafts, if any, are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(v

(m)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liabilities, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws] that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probably that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
(m) Deferred income tax [Continued)

(n)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and

jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of

the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled

by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of the leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group has both
defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
pay
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient

constructive obligations to further
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically,
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and

compensation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

(i)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
with

unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past

assets, together adjustments for
service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid and
that have terms to maturity approximating the

terms of the related pension liability.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in
the income statement, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of time
(the vesting period]. In this case, the past service
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to trustee-administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employment
costs when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

(iii)

(iv]

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share option scheme which
Is an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
under the share option scheme is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth
targets]. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(v)] Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance

sheet date are discounted to their present value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Provision for warranties is recognised when the
underlying products or services are sold, and is
estimated based on historical warranty data as well

as recent trends.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of merchandise
and services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measured until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of merchandise
Sales of merchandise are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Commission income
Commission income is recognised upon shipment
of the underlying goods procured by a group
entity.

(iii] Service income
Service income is recognised when the services
are rendered.

(iv] Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAHE R MYEE

2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(r)

(s)

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction, installation or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases [net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group. Contingent assets are not recognised but
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
pOIiCieS (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract] is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each
balance sheet date by comparing its net liability
regarding the financial guarantee with the amount that
would be required if the financial guarantee were to
result in a present legal or constructive obligation. If
the liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised
in the income statement immediately.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’'s shareholders
are recognised as a liability in the financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders.

3 Financial risk management

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group, no
activities are undertaken by

major hedging

management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

3 Financial risk management (continued
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’'s transactions, trade receivables and
trade payables are mainly denominated in United
States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. As the
exchange rate of United States dollar and Hong
Kong dollar is pegged, management considers the
foreign exchange risk in this respect is not
significant. The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as
the net foreign exchange exposure of the foreign
operations is not significant, the Group does not
presently hedge this foreign exchange exposure.
The Group periodically reviews liquid assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than United
States dollars and Hong Kong dollar to ensure
that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that
sale of products and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. It
also has policies that limit the amount of credit

exposure to any financial institution.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains sufficient cash and credit

lines to meet its liquidity requirements.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits
(Note 23], the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows

are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment provisions of
receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to

the Group for similar financial instruments.

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(i) Useful lives of intangible assets (other than goodwill)
The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives and consequently related amortisation rate
(if any) for its intangible assets (other than goodwill).
These estimates are based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of intangible assets of similar
nature and functions. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in amortisable lives and

consequently increase or decrease in amortisation

expenses in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAHE R MYEE

4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have
suffered any impairment. For the purposes of
impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of
goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations. The value-in-use
calculations and market valuations primarily use cash
flow projections based on five-year financial budgets
approved by management and estimated terminal value
at the end of the five-year period, by reference to prior
years’ performance, current business plans and
market development expectations. There are also a
number of estimates involved in the preparation of
cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budgets. Key estimates include expected
growth in revenues and gross margin, timing of future
capital expenditure, and selection of discount rates to
reflect the risks and cost of capital involved. Changes
to these key judgment and estimates could materially
affect the determination of whether there is an
impairment and the related amounts. If there are
significant adverse changes in the aforementioned
judgment and estimates, it may be necessary to record
significant additional impairment charge in future

periods.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current market
condition, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
each balance sheet date.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)
(ivl] Net realisable value of inventories

(v)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
economic conditions in places where the Group
operates and changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates
at each balance sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due and, where necessary, after
considering advice from tax consultants. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax in which such

provisions in the period

determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

4 FESFHHEFTRER @

(ivy FEZUREFE

(v)

FEZAZRFER/RERTEERBIZ
RZEETEE - REFTEHEERR - %
SHEFADIRERITHAREUMEEE
mZBEHELREL  TRAEHE
REMEMREERFENERE P M
REEREFHTFREBMSMAMIE
HZTBmMEBREAES - ERERE
HEBENFEZSMHE -

Fr 8 i RIE SE B 1R
AEBEEAGMNZEREAEENFAE
B EHBRBERT  HETXHR
BESRKRRBEMNGEARERE -
AEERBEE HIREIN D BB IHE
B REE  EREERBERERL
BRRALEMERBNHEAESS
HEEAWAE - WEXFFENR
RHAGREYREEESELIR - Al
BREES e EFLRTEHHENM
BREELRSHEE -

REBERR ARG BRV L
FRAEREE R ZHAR AR Al
FTEREZBRMREAERABNEL
MBEER THER - HWEHEHRER
EffEAR - RZEEREREZM
AAHBREHMEANRETEHIBEE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)
(vi) Business combinations

Contingent consideration involving post-acquisition
performance of the purchased entities is included in
the cost of acquisition if the contingent consideration
is likely to become payable and can be measured
reliably at the date of the acquisitions. Contingent
consideration is estimated by the Company’s directors
and the Group's management based on financial
budgets approved by management after considering
historical performance and anticipation of post-
acquisition growth and integration synergies expected
to arise after the acquisitions. In making such financial
budgets, management considers uncertainties and that
various outcomes have different chances of being
realised. Judgment is required in determining key
assumptions adopted in the budgets. Changes to these
key judgment and estimates could significantly affect
the related financial budgets and therefore the
estimated consideration for acquisition.

4 FESFHHEFTRER @

(vi) EBAEH

WESRBABRBRERBRRADSK
AREBAANEETXNEREEA
BEER ST E - B AREFT AWE
AR - FRREBARBEFELRA
SEEREBEENEEEMIL AN
BE BEEAERE  FAHRER
BEEFEHWERSROES B RX
mEfbE - REIEERABEER -
EEEERZBEITHRTARARTR
BRETEAMNERKSE RETEH
ETHEANIERREAZELH
B - AEREERHE LA EBEM
BHREEEATE  TeAMFEK
FEHYERTACE -

Revenue U #=
2007 2006
—EELHF —EETREF
Us$’000 US$°000
FExx TFETT
Sales of merchandise HREE 357,287 249,930
Commission income A WA 25,656 32,540
Service income PR 75 W A 640 5,852
383,583 288,322

Sales of merchandise represents revenue from sales of

garment, labels and consumer electronic products.

Commission income represents revenue from garment-

related procurement agency services. Service income

represents revenue from provision of value-added services

relating to the procurement agency business, including

inspection and social compliance auditing service.
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(a)

6 Segmental information 6 7EER
Primary reporting format - business segments (a) Iiiiﬁﬁﬁ EX %)
At 30 April 2007, the Group is organised on a worldwide RZZEZLEMA=1H  KNEEF
basis into two main business segments: (i) Sales of iﬂ'%ﬁ% SMRMIEEEERE S A
merchandise (garment, labels and consumer electronic [l]?ﬁuﬂﬁﬁ% (KK BELEEETE
products); and (ii) Provision of services (procurement m) ¢ KRR AR (BRBE AR 75 A K% B2
service and value-added services relating to the FEEREXBE @G %) o
procurement agency business).
The segment information for the year ended 30 April HE :zgtimﬂ THIEFER
2007 is as follows: DEERWMT
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
BmEE RER®K A&t
US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000
TER FER FTER
Revenue I 2=
External revenue SR W 2 357,287 26,296 383,583
Segment results DRER 9,563 3,444 13,007
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE - (2,494) (2,494)
Impairment loss on purchase A] Yo [B] 4y S X (B
consideration recoverable RN ] - (5,699) (5,699)
Impairment loss on patents BN EEERESE
and trademarks (51,529) - (51,529)
Write-back of purchase FERT BB B #
consideration payable 21,469 - 21,469
Interest income A2 WA 905
Finance costs MisE R (1,164)
Share of loss of a jointly FEAE — R HERE I E 5
controlled entity ) F | (53)
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 Bt (% X (2,653)
Loss before income tax B PT 1S B A B 1B (28,211)
Income tax expense FTig i X (2,659)
Loss for the year FEEE (30,870)
Segment assets DHEEE 107,958 24,787 132,745
Unallocated corporate assets AOBETEEE 7,178
Total assets BEMAE 139,923
Segment liabilities DHEEE 45,289 10,213 55,502
Current income tax liabilities BIEiFT 5 F & & 3,931
Deferred income tax liabilities Fkﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ% 116
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBETCEBE 6,069
Total liabilities BIRAHE 65,618
Capital expenditure BEARAX 2,198 465 2,663
Depreciation charge mEER 731 844 1,575
Amortisation of intangible assets & & & # §H - 921 921
Impairment of trade and FEU E 5 BR 3k & Hfth
other receivables (excluding JE W SR IR R (B
impairment of purchase (B4 AT g
consideration recoverable) WEE R (E R E) 1,646 1,741 3,387

—ETLEFR MEKE 1 1 3



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R & e
6 Segmental information (continued) 6 7EER®w
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (a) EEEHRAIN-—E¥KS8 ()

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 30 April

BE_TTZRFNA=THILFEN

2006 is as follows: DEEHNAT -
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
7 on SH B EHE R A3
Us$:000 Us$'000 Us$:000
TET T=ET FET
Revenue U %5
External revenue L &S 249,930 38,392 288,322
Segment results DEEE 5,996 4,708 10,704
Excess of interest in fair value REBANBRREE
of acquired subsidiaries’ FEATFEENEZ
net assets over cost BB K AN 2 SRR 3,397 = 3,397
Interest income B WA 814
Finance costs 81 7% & B (549)
Share of loss of a jointly JE& {5 — K H [R] 22 il
controlled entity ER2ER (49)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEERE (1,039)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %1 A /i A 13,278
Income tax expense P15 Bt 5 X (2,763)
Profit for the year F 12 A 10,515
Segment assets DEEE 158,885 43,472 202,357
Unallocated corporate assets AOBECEEE 7,108
Total assets BERME 209,465
Segment liabilities nEaE 78,163 14,632 92,795
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFR SR B & 2,901
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFGREE 125
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROEEEEE 8,867
Total liabilities BERE 104,688
Capital expenditure BB X 65,953 920 66,873
Depreciation charge HEEZER 305 1,134 1,439
Impairment of trade and fE W B 5 8RR K B A
other receivables & W R IE 2R E 104 5,749 5,853
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6 Segmental information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Primary reporting format - business segments
(Continued)

Segment assets consist of primarily property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, inventories,
receivables and operating cash attributable to
individual business segment. They exclude assets held

for corporate use.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They
exclude items such as taxation and corporate
borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets as set out
in Notes 17 and 18, respectively, including additions
resulting from the acquisitions through business
combinations.

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
The Group’s two business segments operate in five
main geographical locations. The following table
provides an analysis of the Group’'s revenue, total

6 7EEHw

(a) FEEHKAHFX —X¥K5%8E (B
PHEEETERRENE BELER
B EREE &TE- fI%IJ%ﬁAz D ¥R

FERURBARRERS D HEEE
T HrEEFECERECEE -

DHRAGERREERE - NHEAEBY
TEEHREREEEE -

MM 17 R 18FTE - BAR X B
ME BMERIKBZAE  EFE
EUPEEREREMETWERR
EERNRE °

F-2HASX -HEIE
AN ER 7 T 3 B I8 AR A IR T
D TRRAEENKZE BEMAE
N ERFE R ST

(b)

assets and capital expenditure by geographical
locations.
Revenue Total assets Capital expenditure
U 3 EE#AE EREX

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELE —ETREFE —BELE —TTNF —BELE —TTNEF
us$'000 UsS$'000  US$’000 US$'000  US$’000 US$'000
FEx TET FEx FXET FEx FXET
Europe BOM 268,173 172,749 55,627 106,070 457 65,550
Africa FEM 34,098 30,531 19 52 - =
Australia SEM 33,981 33,447 - = - =
North America 3k 3 M 21,749 29,990 - = - =
Hong Kong a5 7,530 8,753 81,375 99,607 2,039 979
Others Hfth 18,052 12,852 2,902 3,736 167 344
383,583 288,322 139,923 209,465 2,663 66,873

Revenue is allocated based on the location of
customers. Total assets and capital expenditure are

allocated based on the location of those assets.

WEIRBEEFAELIE - BEER
BREARAXDIRBEZEEEMEL
ol vy

—TTLFFR AERE 1 1 5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

7 Other income 7 HiblrA
2007 2006
—EELHE —ETRF
us$°000 USs$'000
TER FET
Interest income A2 WA 905 814
Reimbursement income from customers 2K B & F 8 & {5 U A 682 737
Handling fee income FEBWA 893 618
Others H A 1,018 432
3,498 2,601
8 Expenses by nature 8 RMHEEESIZHX
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
us$°000 USs$'000
TER FET
Depreciation of property, ME - BB MR
plant and equipment ZiIE 1,575 1,439
Amortisation of intangible assets E B B 921
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERKE
plant and equipment 2 E1E 392 10
Provision for impairment of trade FEWE 5 8RR R E A
and other receivables (excluding & W SR IA 2 B B
impairment of purchase (DB 1E AT Y E Y i
consideration recoverable) KRAE R E) 3,387 5,853
Employment costs including PBREEMEER
directors’ emoluments Z B B R
(Note 11) (BF&E1) 26,730 28,198
Changes in inventories FE & 3,748 (13,485)
Inventories purchased BEBEZFE 299,315 231,244
Provision for warranties R FA B A 20,407 6,772
Freight charges BB 3,553 3,751
Operating lease rental in respect of EBNATEE 2LEEHENK
- office premises and staff quarters —WAEBEMREIFE 1,723 1,805
~ furniture and equipment — XA R R 93 145
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses SVE (W zs) /B 1R IF 8 (696) 1,499
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 256N B & 497 189
Other expenses H i 14,177 13,024
Total cost of sales and general and 5 & AR DA R — R R AT IR
administrative expenses i X 48 5A 375,822 280,444
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Impairment loss on goodwill and
purchase consideration recoverable

In November 2003, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in ISO International (Holdings) Limited ("ISQ”) for
a consideration of approximately US$19,872,000 (equivalent
of approximately HK$155,000,000]. This consideration is
subject to downward adjustments if the profit after taxation
of 1SO cannot achieve the pre-determined levels for each
of the years ended 30 April 2004, 2005 and 2006.

For the year ended 30 April 2006, the profit after taxation
of ISO did not achieve the abovementioned pre-determined
level. According to the related sale and purchase
agreement, the purchase consideration (and consequently
goodwill] has to be reduced by approximately US$7,686,000.
During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group has
recorded a reversal of the outstanding consideration
payable for the acquisition of ISO of approximately
US$1,987,000, a receivable from the vendor (who is also a
director of ISQ) of approximately US$5,699,000 and an
impairment of goodwill of approximately US$2,494,000.

The Company's directors and the Group's management
were of the view that there is uncertainty associated with
the collectibility of the aforementioned receivable and,
accordingly, an impairment of the entire amount of
approximately US$5,699,000 was recognised in the income
statement for the year ended 30 April 2007.

PR R TS B 2 AL
A

RZZEZE=F+—H XEEKEISO
International (Holdings) Limited ([1S0OJ) &
AR AR - KB4 /19,872,000% 7T (48
FX#)155,000,00087C) ° fHRBEE—FF
ME - ZZETRAFR_ZTTFEOA =1
HIEFESF  ISOZKBiEEFREEET
FEEKRFE - Bl R b RE -

HE_ZTXFNAZ=Z+HIFE IS0z
BRE B aF T EER FREEAKTE - BIE
EHREEWSE  WEREREREAZE
EIEH D 47,686,000 T c REE-ZTZE
TtEMNA=ZTHILEFE  AEBEEE K
BEISOFE 15 i 18 R AT AR B 491,987,0003
T WESEWE R (RISOZEE) 2 RIE
#95,699,0003 7T & B & R (B #92,494,0003%
IT o

ARREZEERAEEEEERSE =467
e it IE S R T EERE - Bt
REE_ZTT+LFONA=ZTHIEFEZK
mx P EREHUREX5,699,000% T ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

10 Impairment loss on patents and

11

trademarks and write-back of purchase
consideration payable

In October 2005, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest
in Dowry Peacock Group Limited ("Dowry Peacock”), a
company incorporated in the United Kingdom, for a total
consideration of approximately US$41,774,000, of which
approximately US$21,915,000 (equivalent of approximately
£11,220,000) was payable according to a pre-determined
formula contingent on Dowry Peacock’s achievement of
specified profit targets during specified periods after the
acquisition. The Company's directors and the Group’s
management were of the view at the date of the acquisition
that the achievement of the aforementioned profit targets
was probable and, accordingly, the entire amount of the
contingent consideration of US$21,915,000 was recognised
as part of the purchase consideration and a liability.

The profit targets for periods up to 30 April 2007 have not
been met. In this connection, the Company’s directors and
the Group’s management have revised their estimates of
(i) the amount of the contingent consideration that is
probable, and (ii] the fair value of the patents and
trademarks acquired as part of the acquisition by reference
to a valuation performed by Sallmanns (Far East] Limited,
an independent firm of valuers, as at 30 April 2007. Based
on these revised estimates, the estimated purchase
consideration was reduced by approximately US$21,469,000
and an impairment of patents and trademarks of
approximately US$51,529,000 was recorded. These amounts
were recognised in the income statement for the year ended
30 April 2007.

Employment costs, including directors’
emoluments

10%ﬂ&%@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&@ﬁ

BAER

RZZEZERFTA  AEBRE—RER
B 5% fff B 32 2 A &) Dowry Peacock Group
Limited ([ Dowry Peacock]) Z 60%R% 7~ 4
o BRENBLLTTL000FET - EF Y
21,915,0005 7T (A8F KX 4911,220,000% )
AU B8 1% 45 & HAfE M Dowry Peacocki El| 45
EmMBEEREEEARNIMN - RARE
ERAEEEEERWEE BRE + Dowry
PeacockB AJgE#Z I Fuls 7 B2 - Bt E
#5 bt s SRR fB 21,915,0005 T iR B UK B8
REzZ o k—HAE-

BE_TTHFNUA=TH I AT &EE
AEMER BT E  ARFEFELAR
SEEEEC2EBELGEMTAMN GE
RERRBAR-_ZEZLFWNA=THMHE
B S 1B T EF A 5T (18 Al e X HY SR A R(E
T8 RINVEKBETRREENREE
ZRAVEE - ERZELERIEE - Aa
WHRE BRI 421,469,000 T » WERSH
A M BRI E4951,529,000% T - ZE 2
ERBE_ZTTLFHA=THILEFER
Uz R P HER -

MM EERKX (BREEMHS)

2007 2006

—EBLEHF —EERF

Us$'000 US$'000

FER FTET

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - JEALRERL 23,481 24,444

Pension costs RIKE AR

- defined contribution plans (Note a) — ERE KRG8 (fFaEa) 551 329

- defined benefit plans (Note 29) — E R M T &l (BT 5E29) 155 531
Share options, value of BRE EERBEE

employment services 199 448

Staff welfare and benefits B TR &E 2,344 2,446

26,730 28,198
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11 Employment costs, including directors’
emoluments (continued)

(b)

M EERE (BREEEWNE) »

(a) The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees (a) "EECELHERSRERELESHR
to join the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund HMAERETE ([RERETE] -
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution AEIEBYEREATE ZEBEHRK
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under tEl - RIE®REESE - AEE BlE
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer] F)EEFSEESHAREBEGIER
and its Hong Kong employees makes monthly BT E 2 EH T A UEE KA Z5%
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ FrEMZETEELHMER - EEXHES
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident ZHREBERE /T H1,0008 T -
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of
the employer and the employee contributions are
subjected to a cap of HK$1,000 per month.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the relevant BRAEBEBIINERZ KA RERIR
overseas countries, the Group contributes to defined EAEBEREBABIRIESREHE
contribution retirement plans for its employees in the HRETEMEL K - KEE (BEE)
respective countries. The Group (the employer] and BLH E BB INEI R Bl E B T IS
its employees contribute approximately 1% to 15% and E DRLAEEHFESHANF1%E15%
1% to 20%, respectively, of the employees’ salary as BN F1%ZE 20%E H 7K -
specified by the overseas countries’ jurisdictions.
During the year ended 30 April 2007, the aggregate BHE_ZTH+FHOA=THILFE
amount of the Group's contributions to the AEEMREMRKRSFTE ZHROA
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately 551,000 7t (ZZF = /X4 : 329,000
US$551,000 (2006: US$329,000). As at 30 April 2007, L) c RZZTEZEELFMWMA=1H ' &
the Group was not entitled to any forfeited B I 8 7 15 (E fa] 08 WA R 2 HE A DARL
contributions to reduce the Group's future DPAEEBRBHR(ZZEZXREF -
contributions (2006: Nil). &) -
The Group has no further obligations for the actual MAKERFEHRRIIN  HEE—F
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits ERBNERRKEHNERAREENZE
beyond the annual contributions. £ -
The number of persons employed at the end of the year (b) FEZERREEZAH
2007 2006
—E2ELHF —EEREF
Full time o 744 981
Part time R - 25
744 1,006

—TTLFFR AERE 1 1 9



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

11 Employment costs, including directors’

emoluments (continued)
(c) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of each director for the year ended

30 April 2007 is set out below:

M EERE (BREEEWNE) »

(c) EE=M=
RE-TTLFMAZHALFES
EE2MEFI LT ¢

Pension

costs - defined
contribution

plans
Salaries and  Discretionary Other Bk e
Name of director Fees allowances bonus benefits ~ HA-E&E Total
BEnyg e HeREW MiEA At @A ] EH)
US$'000 US$ 000 US$:000 US$'000 US$'000 US$:000
TET TER TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HUTES
WANG Lu Yen THE - 349 - - 10 359
Peter Loris SOLOMON Peter Loris SOLOMON - 639 75 14 60 788
FU Jin Ming, Patrick [i] (&) - 469 10 6 13 498
WONG Wai Ming (i) =) - 33 - 14 2 49
KHOO Kim Cheng BHER - 100 - 8 5 113
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang T 8% 33 = = 3 - 36
WOON Yi Teng, Eden SUE 33 - - 3 - 36
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius T 33 - - 3 - 3
99 1,590 85 51 90 1,915
Notes: B3 -

(i) Retired on 5 July 2007 as an executive director.

(i) Redesignated from being an executive director to a non-

executive director on 5 July 2007.
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11 Employment costs, including directors’ 11 EERAXZ (EREEML) »
emoluments (continued)

(c) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (c) §$EH:% (&)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended BHE_ZTZAFNA=THLEFES
30 April 2006 is set out below: %%Z@Hﬁﬁwu I

Pension
costs - defined
contribution

plans

Salaries and  Discretionary Other Bife
Name of director Fees allowances bonus benefits RA-EH8 Total
ESpg we HEREK BEEL EftRA 5 at & @zt
US$'000 US$ 000 US$:000 US$:000 US$:000 US$:000

Y TEL TER Y TERL TEL

Executive directors BTES
WANG Lu Yen I%E - 366 - - 10 376
Peter Loris SOLOMON (il Peter Loris SOLOMON (i) - 61 42 12 6 121
FU Jin Ming, Patrick B - 309 10 36 13 368
WONG Wai Ming (i) BRI 33 - - 12 - 45
KHOO Kim Cheng BHR - 100 - 50 5 155
KWOK Chi Kueng liii) 0358 i) - 150 10 - 7 167
Steven Julien FENIGER (iv] 5B #(iv) - 1,310 112 - 18 1,640
Independent UFHTES
non-executive directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang ~ E 8 33 - - 3 - 36
WOON Yi Teng, Eden SUE 33 - - 3 - 36
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius [v) — #Z6i(v) 32 - - 3 - 35
131 2,296 174 119 59 2,779
Notes: B 5t
(il Appointed on 28 February 2006. (i) ZEERF_A-T\BEZE -
(i) Redesignated from being an independent non- (i) R=ZZAFAA+N\BEBEZIEH
executive director to an executive director on 18 May TEESEMHER/ATES -
2005.

(iii) Resigned on 24 January 2006. (i) RZBEENF—A-THABMT-
(iv] Resigned on 28 February 2006; amounts included (iv] RZZZXRE_AZ+/\BEIE: It
the payment in lieu of notice period. HEAFEBRABANRBAETS -

(vJ Appointed on 18 May 2005. v)] RZZETRAFHRATNBEZF-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAHE R MYEE

11 Employment costs, including directors’
emoluments (continued)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Other benefits include the amortisation in the income
statement of the fair value of share options measured
at the respective grant dates, regardless of whether
the share options would be exercised or not.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 30 April 2007 (2006:
Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include three (2006: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid/
payable to the remaining two (2006: two) individuals
are as follows:

M EERE (BREEEWNE) »

(c)

(d)

EsME (8

HA RN e RN g BRER L B HE
ERBEAFEERNKRERA 2 #H
(THRBERESEITENA)

BE-FELFMA=TALFE
BEEFHRETNELASHRE
AME (ZBEAF : 1) -

nEREMEER
AEELEREMEEED =4 (=
TEAF: ZH)AEE  HERLEX
2502 SRR - BN E S
A% (ZEEAE MR EEOME
mF -

2007 2006

—EELF —EEREF

US$’000 US$'000

FER TET

Salaries and allowances e KOERE 761 628

Discretionary bonus B 15 TE AL 75 83
Pension costs - defined RRE —ERER

contribution plans st 2l 27 2
Share options, value of BRE EERD

employment services B1E 10 89

873 802
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11 Employment costs, including directors’

emoluments (continued

(d) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

(d)

M EERE (BREEEWNE) »

TEREMESES (B)
HMENFUTEHR :

2007 2006
—ETLE ZETRX
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T Z 3,500,0007% 7T
(equivalent to US$384,616 to (FEE N 384,616ETLE
US$448,718) 448,718 JT) 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T = 4,000,0007% 7T
(equivalent to US$448,719 to (FHER448,7T19FETLE
US$512,820) 512,8203% 7T) 1 S
2 2

(e) During the year ended 30 April 2007, no emolument (e) REBE_ZETLtHFWHA=THIEHF
was paid by the Company to any of the directors or B ARaEREMNESSA B
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to = e E S XN ERME AMEREE
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for MAZR DA E g R sk K &
loss of office (2006: Nil). BummE(CTTAF  8) -

12 Finance costs 12 BMBER
2007 2006
—EBLEHF —ETRF
us$’000 USs$'000
FER F=ET
Interest expense on FERE
- short-term and trust — R H R FEWIE
receipts bank loans RITE K 643 297
- amortisation of balance —WEMB AR
of consideration payable for EBREE
acquisition of subsidiaries/ etz KB
businesses and assets £ 58 2 4 521 252
1,164 549
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

13 FTBHF <

13 Income tax expense

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda and, as such, is not liable for taxation in Bermuda
on its non-Bermuda income.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong. Taxation on overseas
(other than Hong Kong) profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

ARAB/—RKRBRETMALNOZHR R
BRATE - Ak BARTIFXRBEBAREN
WABMBLIA ©

BAENMNERDOBEBERESELENIRBE BB
ZAEHERFRFIZ17 5% (BT NEF ¢
17.5%) 2 TR+ E o JFHN (FHE AN 535 A
ZHEREBEMTERFEFIZAEBRLE
XBEMERRERNBREGE -

ERaBERTMERZRBESENOT

2007 2006
—EELF —EER
Us$’000 US$°000
FEx FETT
Current income tax BN HAFT 15 Hd
- Hong Kong profits tax —HBNEH 1,329 1,624
- Overseas taxation — BN IR 1,341 1,139
Deferred income tax IR IE TS FR (11) -
2,659 2,763

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits less losses of the

AEBBBERBEAERNHAEZRE RS
S PRI 5 B A B) e )RR RS 18 RO DR SF 19 AR
EMFAENERRBHOZHRNT ¢

group companies as follows:

2007 2006
—EBELHF ZEERF
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FXET
(Loss)/profit before income tax KBTS R AT (B518) % F (28,211) 13,278
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates RBERARBER"EERD
applicable to profits in the respective HWHZ B Rt E
countries/jurisdictions Z 1A (5,214) 917
Income not subject to tax B E R B UA (4,011) (1,423)
Expenses not deductible AT BB 2
for tax purposes 10,793 1,068
Tax losses for which no deferred A 4 T R AL R IE B IR
tax asset was recognised BEZHIBEEIE 890 1,632
Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses AMARERRIEEE (27) (48)
Under-provision in prior years TFEBREIR 228 617
Tax expense IR X 2,659 2,763

1 24 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007



13

14

Income tax expense (Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18.5% (2006:
6.9%). The change is mainly caused by a change in the
distribution of the profit among group companies in
different tax jurisdictions.

In January 2007, Linmark International (Hong Kong] Limited,
a subsidiary, received from the tax authority in India certain
assessment orders relating to the operations of the Group’s
liaison office in India for tax assessment years 1999/2000
to 2004/2005. The total amount of the tax assessment
amounted to approximately US$10,500,000 (equivalent of
approximately INR474,884,000). The Group has lodged
objections to the India tax authority against the aforesaid
assessment orders and paid a deposit to the India tax
authority of approximately US$280,000 (equivalent of
INR12,500,000]).
orders, the Group has already maintained a tax provision

Prior to the receipt of the assessment

of approximately US$800,000 in respect of the operation of
its India liaison office for tax assessment years 1999/2000
to 2004/2005. Having considered the advices from a firm of
attorney in India and an independent firm of certified public
accountants (who is not the Company’s auditor], the Group
has recorded a further provision of approximately
US$228,000 in respect of its tax obligation of the tax
assessment years up to 2007/2008 during the year ended
30 April 2007.

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company includes a profit of approximately
US$4,447,000 (2006: US$1,895,000) dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

13 FT BB < )

14

MEFHERME B185% (ZTZ/NF
6.9%) - MEZEBHEERNEBRFTRT
Hm%uzr*ﬁmuz oK & B BT ER ©

R-ZBZELF—F  HBRAMEBRR (&
B)BERARMWEINENREE RATE L
AEBENENBENEER - AN

—EREE_TTN TR AFRFE
BEENFHES  BHEITRNESELD

#%10,500,0003% 7T (FBE 5 47 474,884,000E

BEL) - ARBERZHNEREE BiRRD
RE EFHES  YERZEHNERBKE

B X & & # 280,000 7t (#H & R
12,500,000E0E E Lt) o R EI E it 5E 57 5
2H  AKBRKER —NANAN S/ ZBET
E_TTN /ST AIHEEEHED
JE Bt 4% 3% =2 52 B B E4E 5 49800,000% 7T 2
MIBEE KERODE —HREMITR M
BYMESTAT WIEAR R ZZEED)
2ERE AEECREE-_ZTTLHFN
A=+RLEFERABEE=_SZL =%
ENENTIRFE 2 MBEE(EL#E—

B HE#9228,0005 7T °

RATBIERFEAEN (BHE)
/v Fl
AARERIFEARMN (BB SafleiE
EARB B BHRERFPERZEMND
4,447,000 70 (ZZEE/5F : 1,895,0003%
JT) °

E)’ﬁ Lv
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R 5 P EE
15 Dividends 15 R &
2007 2006
—EBLEHF —ZEER
Us$’000 US$'000
FTER TET
Interim, paid, of 1.8 HK cents 2T EAR B
(2006: 2.7 HK cents) T mAR .8l
per ordinary share (ZZEZTREF : 2.780) 1,529 2,350
Final, proposed, of 2.5 HK cents BR R AR S
(2006: 2.9 HK cents] TR AR 2.5
per ordinary share (ZZZR]F : 29811 2,150 2,479
3,679 4,829
At a meeting held on 21 August 2007, the Company's E_ZETE+FENA-T -—HREITNEE
directors proposed a final dividend of 2.5 HK cents per FARAREFERBREHE_TT+
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2007. FOA=Z+HIEFERAKRESREBR
This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable 2.5781l o L IEH R AR B0 R P 7% 5 B S R
in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an EPRMBEMKRE EXeRBAEE
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 30 —EEN\FEHA=ZTHILEFERBNEN
April 2008. DK ©
16 (Loss)/earnings per share 16 B8 (BE) EF
(a) Basic (a) EZX
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing BREX (1) BIRREARA T
the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Baima ARG (BB &FRFEA
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary EETEBERMNEFHEGE -
shares in issue during the year.
2007 2006
—EBBLEHF —EER
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AR REzEIHHE AREMN (FE)
holders of the Company (US$'000) w A (FZ%E7T) (11,062) 10,444
Weighted average number of ordinary B %17 % i J& 0 # F 15 £k
shares in issue ('000) (FR) 667,839 661,534
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREXR (BB /&F
(US cents) (=4 (1.7) 1.6
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16 (Loss)/earnings per share (continued) 16 B8R (BB) BR w
(b) Diluted (b) ¥k

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended
30 April 2006 is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: share options. A calculation
is performed to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual quoted market price of the
Company’'s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.

BE_ZTEFOA=tHLFEZ
FREE(BR) BIRERRME
BELECEEBARCEBERNEBER
T BRAECHITEBRBRMNEFIH
AAE - ARAA-HEEHELEEA
B B - ARREREBERARITRE
BRI M RBEEEFE - UE
EAEAFEERARARNNFEE
FHMIGRENE) MEANKRNHK
B LEFTEMSOERMNEKE HER
REZEERBEETERBSHTHAR
MEE L -

2007 2006
—EERLF —EETR

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AR REzEFEHH AMEMN

holders of the Company (US$'000)  (&5#8) /% F| (F=7T) (11,062) 10,444
Weighted average number of BEBITERERIME T8

ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (Fm) 667,839 661,534
Adjustment for share options ('000) &t &8 IR 4 (E H AR (FAR) - 3,475
Weighted average number of AESREERNG

ordinary shares for diluted 3 AR N4

earnings per share ('000) SEHE(FRR) 667,839 665,009
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share BR#E (BB &F

(US cents) (A (1.7) 1.6
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17 Property, plant and equipment

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

17 % - BMERKRE

Furniture Motor
Leasehold and vehicles and
improvements equipment yacht Total
HEWMEHEE KRRREHE REREERE &5t
us$:000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 May 2005 R=-—ZZTRFHA—A
Cost DN 1,063 5515 672 7,250
Accumulated depreciation ZE&FITE (353) (3,527) (251) (4,131)
Net book amount REFE 710 1,988 421 3,119
Year ended 30 April 2006 HBZE_-ZTZ K&
MA=tHLFE
Opening net book amount  F ¥R E /FE 710 1,988 421 3,119
Exchange differences ERERR = (12) = (12)
Additions NE 369 788 257 1,414
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — R E 2 A
(Note 36) (Bt 5% 36) 116 163 1 280
Disposals & - (105) (21) (126)
Depreciation e (421) (906) (112) (1,439)
Closing net book amount  F4RERE /FE 774 1,916 546 3,236
At 30 April 2006 R-ZEEXFMA=TAH
Cost DN 1,533 6,033 797 8,363
Accumulated depreciation ZE&FITE (759) (4,117) (251) (5,127)
Net book amount BREFE 774 1,916 546 3,236
Year ended 30 April 2007 EBEZE_-ZZt &
MA=tHLFE
Opening net book amount  F ¥R E /FE 774 1,916 546 3,236
Exchange differences ERERE 8 17 (1) 24
Additions NE 1,719 537 - 2,256
Disposals k= (240) (194) (6) (440)
Depreciation e (637) (817) (121) (1,575)
Closing net book amount  F4RERE FE 1,624 1,459 418 3,501
At 30 April 2007 R-ZEZELFMA=+AH
Cost DN 2,470 5,003 718 8,191
Accumulated depreciation ZE&FITE (846) (3,544) (300) (4,690)
Net book amount BRME FE 1,624 1,459 418 3,501

Depreciation has been
administrative expenses.
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18 Intangible assets 18 |MILEE

Deferred Patents and Licence
Goodwill expenditure trademarks rights Total
BE ELpx HIRHE YT RE &t

US$ 000 US$'000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$'000
TET TET TER TET TET

At 1 May 2005 R-ZZBZEEFHEA—H
Cost and net book amount A K R (B 42,446 3,014 - - 45,460
Year ended 30 April 2006 BE-2TARHF

MA=tHILFE
Opening net book amount FHREHE 42,446 3,014 - - 45,460
Exchange differences EREH - - 2,776 - 2,776
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-—RWBLAE

(Note 3¢) (Kt 5£36) - - 65,179 - 65,179
Closing net book amount FRIEEHE 42,446 3,014 67,955 - 113,415
At 30 April 2006 R-EEXEMA=TAH
Cost and net book amount A K R (B 42,446 3,014 67,955 - 113,415
Year ended 30 April 2007 BE_2%tHF

MA=tHILFE
Opening net book amount FHREHE 42,446 3,014 67,955 - 113,415
Exchange differences EREH - - 6,402 - 6,402
Additions NE = = = 407 407
Adjustment to purchase HYBE-RINERR

consideration for acquisition 2 BN B {E

of a subsidiary (Note 9) EESCES) (7,686) - = - (7,686)
Impairment loss REES (9% 10)

(Notes 9 and 10) (2,494) = (51,529 = (54,023)
Amortisation BiER < - (921) - - (921)
Closing net book amount FRIEEHE 32,266 2,093 22,828 407 57,594
At 30 April 2007 R-Z2Z2LtFMA=1H
Cost 2N 32,266 3,014 22,828 407 58,515
Accumulated amortisation g 3 - (921) - = (921)
Net book amount RE A 32,266 2,093 22,828 407 57,594
Deferred expenditure comprises mainly amount incurred FERX T2 EBRBREREME
for renewing a buying agency agreement, which is to be EBE BBEDRRBEABRREZ=
amortised over the three-year period of the buying agency FHIREE  HEAMENRESRSTUE
agreement, in which the related benefits are expected to e
be realised.
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NOTES TO
PR HREE MAE

18

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intangible assets (continued) 18 ML EE
Patents and trademarks relate to certain brands of ENEEENDEEANRAREERAEEE
customers electronic products which the Company's BERASERmEONFALEMESER
directors and the Group’'s management consider to have EEAFH AT HEEEFEMME ° F
indefinite useful lives due to the enduring nature of the REEBE_ZE-—TF-HAERBENET
brands. Licence rights represent the contractual rights to mMEEBOHHEEFEMZIARER -
distribute consumer electronic products under certain
brand names in the United Kingdom up to January 2010.
Impairment tests for intangible assets BEREERENR
Intangible assets are allocated to the Group's cash- BREAEDNSEZRBELERR ER
generating units identified according to country/place of XBoEMBANNAEBERIGR B -
operation and business segment.
A segment-level summary of the allocation of intangible EREESEMNENEEMREZEZSNAT -
assets is presented below.
2007 2006
ZBELE ZEERE
Sales of Provision of Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total merchandise services Total
BmiHE RUEERHK &t HmEE  RERK At
USs$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER TET TET TET
Goodwill S
- Hong Kong — &% 26,266 6,000 32,266 26,265 16,181 42,446
Deferred expenditure BAE R 2
- Hong Kong — &5 - 2,093 2,093 - 3,014 3,014
Patents and trademarks BH R EE
- United Kingdom — K[ 22,828 - 22,828 67,955 - 67,955
Licence rights LS
- United Kingdom — R 407 - 407 - - -
49,501 8,093 57,594 94,220 19,195 113,415

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculations of goodwill are calculated using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. The value-in-use
calculation of patents and trademarks is calculated using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using

estimated growth rate of 3% per annum.
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18 Intangible assets (continued) 18 ML EE

Impairment tests for intangible assets (Continued) BREEEREIR (B

Management determined financial budgets based on past EERENDRBEAERREEETSERD
performance and its expectations for the market TR EMREE - mEZERATEEMN
development. The pre-tax discount rate used in the value- AR AITINEL R5.8%(Z T X F :
in-use calculations of goodwill is approximately 5.8% (2006: 5.8%) ' BRI REECFERAFEEMANT
5.8%) and the pre-tax discount rate used in the value-in- BT EDBI0S5%(ZF T X F -
use calculations of patents and trademarks is 10.5% (2006: 10.4%) * RELBBEARD EREERR -

10.4%), which reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.

19 Investment in a jointly controlled entity 19 R—RAFEZHIEB 2 KRE

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
USs$’000 US$'000
FEn TETT
At beginning of the year R E A 121 170
Share of loss of a jointly B —RKHEREZEHEE 2
controlled entity &5 18 (53) (49)
At end of the year RE 68 121
Details of the jointly controlled entity as at 30 April 2007 is RZZEZLFMA=+HZHAZEFER
as follows: BT
Percentage of
Place of attributable
Name establishment Principal activities equity interest
=x! FR 3L it B TEXH FEaRER D (%)
CSC Consultancy Co. Ltd. Mainland China Provision of business 50
R RERAERA A information, management

consulting and social

compliance services
REXBENR  BEFBHAR

HEEELETAESRE
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BAHE R MYEE

20 Inventories 20 =&
2007 2006
—EELF —EBEX
Us$’000 US$'000
FER F£5
Finished goods BIAK 9,792 13,540

21

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to US$303,063,000 (2006:
US$217,759,000).

Trade receivables
The credit terms granted to customers range from 60 to
90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as

T EKAT#ER ARSI A#303,063,000
EL (ZZEZERE - 217,759,000E 7T) 2 5

ERAZA -

21 EIRE Z BRI
BRYTEPZ—REEHHORKEIOKRDT
Z - EBWEFERZEREDITWOT :

follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —EER

Us$’000 US$°000
FExx TFETT
0 to 30 days 0—30K 23,035 22,687
31 to 60 days 31— 60K 4,375 8,116
61 to 90 days 61—90K 2,790 2,205
91 to 365 days 91—365K 2,065 4,644
Over 1 year BB 1F 5,696 2,447
37,961 40,099

Less: Provision for impairment of & : FEUE 5 IR R B & 1
trade receivables (6,610) (5,577)
31,351 34,522

During the year, the Group recognised a loss of
US$2,917,000 (2006: US$5,749,000] for impairment of its
trade receivables. The loss has been included in general
and administrative expenses.
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21 Trade receivables (continued) 21 EWWE 5 RN )
Trade receivables were denominated in the following BB SERDIEATER.SE :
currencies:
2007 2006
—EBBLHF —ETREF
Us$'000 Us$'000
TER FTET
United States dollars =TT 27,743 34,389
Sterling (United Kingdom)  Z#% 8,248 5,000
Euro BX T 1,225 309
Others H Aty 745 401
37,961 40,099
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate FEWE 5 2 BRE B B A AT EE M
their fair values. A e
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade HRASENDEFEME F58 - WA
receivables are limited due to the Group’s large number of REBTEE  WEBAERKESERNE
customers, who are geographically and industry dispersed. ERBZETPEAR - ERLEFERE &
Due to these factors, management believes that no BEMRE BRARBE (KERER) BE 28
additional significant credit risk beyond amounts provided BN - ANEEEWE F IR & A H A
for impairment (collection losses] is inherent in the Group's EXEERR -
trade receivables.
22 Prepayments, deposits and other 22 HNRIE > RERHEMEWK
receivables b |
Group Company
rEH AN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—RRLFE —TTRF ZEFtHE —TTHF
Us$’000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FER F= FER F=ET
Prepayments T8 5 518 1,671 1,136 12 3
Rental deposits HEeRE 579 454 - -
Other receivables H A & U R IR 4,815 5,156 - -
7,065 6,746 12 3

Other receivables comprise primarily amounts recoverable
from customers for payments on their behalf, majority of
which are denominated in United States or Hong Kong
dollars.

The carrying amount of rental deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

During the year, the Group recognised a loss of U5$350,000
(2006: US$104,000) for the impairment of its other
receivables. The loss has been included in general and
administrative expenses.

HMBEYKBEETZEERATFEEARTZ
HIE - RBMOLAETRABTIINE -

HERSMNHEMBRKFBAZFEEERELR
FEEMEE -

FRN ANEBREREMERIERAERIE
350,000 T (ZZFZ /4 © 104,000%7T) °
EREBEBEDTA—REITHREASZET -
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PR HREE MAE

23 Cash and cash equivalents

23BREeERBELEEIER

Group Company
KEE AN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETEFE 2T RF ZBELFE ZZZTTRF
Us$’000 us$-oo0 us$’000 us$:000
FER FET FER FTET
Pledged bank deposits EBERRITER
(Note 27) (Bt 3£ 27) - 7,000 - 7,000
Bank deposits with original #R777F ZR ZIHi B
maturity
- Within three months —={@EANUR 625 6,330 15 50
- Over three months —Z =18 A 7,000 - 7,000 -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEE S 22,780 24,279 151 55
30,405 37,609 7,166 7,105

The effective interest rate on cash at bank and bank

deposits was approximately 2.8% per annum (2006: 2.1%).

Cash at bank and bank deposits with original maturity within

three months have an average maturity of less than one

month. Bank deposits with original maturity over three

months as at 30 April 2007 have a maturity of six years

while pledged bank deposits as at 30 April 2006 have a

maturity of seven years; both of which are included as

current assets as there is an early termination clause.

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the

following currencies:

ROTASERBROTEFANERFNEZNR

28%(ZFTERF : 21%) - REHA LR
E{IﬂZﬂQﬁiﬁf‘ﬁ&fE”‘T,ﬂZ%ﬁﬂJHﬂ
Eli% —f@AA R-_TTLFEOA=

'J%ﬁEU%xxiZJ? BB ER=EAZ
ﬁﬁTM'M&W_77A$EE +H
PR EFLEERRTERIBSIR
BERIGRR - BN ARDEE -

BehReEEEE NRATEEIE

Group Company
AEE KD F

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF —_TTRFE ZEBEEBELFE ZITTRF
Us$°000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx TET FER TETT
United States dollars =TT 20,989 28,277 7,132 7,077
Sterling (United Kingdom) — H &% 5,775 7,190 - -
Hong Kong dollars & TT 1,706 1,437 34 28
Euro B T 895 27 - -
Others H A 1,040 678 - -
30,405 37,609 7,166 7,105
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24 ERE ZFERX
FBNESERZNRESMTAOT :

24 Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

2007 2006

—EBLF —ETREF

US$’000 US$'000

FTER TET

0 to 30 days 0— 30K 24,940 20,002
31 to 60 days 31— 60K 3,168 15,485
61 to 90 days 61— 90K 361 5,093
91 to 365 days 91—365K 2,430 4,009
Over 1 year BB F 432 =
31,331 44,589

NESRATIRATERSIE

Trade payables were denominated in the following

currencies:

2007 2006

—E2ELHF —ZETERF

Uus$’000 Us$'000

FER F=T

United States dollars ETT 22,871 28,360
Sterling (United Kingdom] BLgE 6,601 9,589
Euro BT 937 4,910
Hong Kong dollars T 922 1,727
Others HAb - 3
31,331 44,589

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their

fair values.

ENESEFNEESREERFEEM

++

= o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

25 Accruals and other payables

25 Bt ER R HMENRE

Group Company
rEH b N

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELFE —ZZEZRX —EELFE —TTREF
Us$’000 us$-oo0 us$’000 us$:000
FErx F=x7T FErx FE7T
Accrued bonuses ZETIE4L 1,727 1,014 - -
Accrued expenses S 2,706 2,045 22 4
Licence fees payable BT EE R 407 = - =
Other payables H b JiE 5 K18 9,099 11,756 - 13
13,939 14,815 22 17

Other payables comprise primarily amounts received from
customers in advance for future payments on their behalf,
majority of which are denominated in United States dollars.

The carrying amounts of payables approximate their fair

EHENRETERRATPALKIRZ
R - KRB AEZTIHE -

ENFEZ FHEEE A FEBRRSE -

values.
26 Warranty provision 26 R AiR1E
2007 2006
—EELHF —EER

US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
At beginning of the year R E 7)) 2,358 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B A A - 5,460
Provision B 20,407 6,772
Exchange differences ERER 237 101
Utilised A (20,049) (9,975)
At end of the year NGRS 2,953 2,358

A 60%-owned subsidiary of the Group offers warranties for
certain consumer electronic products it sold, for periods
from 12 months from the date of purchase by end
customers or 15 months from the date of manufacture.
The Group’'s management uses historical warranty claims
experience as well as recent trends to determine the
amount of warranty provision.
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27 Bank loans

27 RITERK

2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Short-term bank loans MHEEITER 5,000 8,850
Trust receipts bank loans EREWIERITE R 1,046 =
6,046 8,850
The effective annual interest rates at the balance sheet REEBZ2EBRFEREROT :
date are as follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —ZEER
Short-term bank loans MHESRITER 6.3% 4.8%
Trust receipts bank loans ERREBERITER 6.3% -
Bank loans were denominated in the following currencies: BITERATIEESE :
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx TE
United States dollars = 5,000 8,850
Sterling (United Kingdom) o 1,046 -
6,046 8,850

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings
approximate their fair values.

At 30 April 2007, the Group had total banking facilities of
approximately US$58.0 million (2006: US$60.5 million],
including borrowing facilities of approximately US$8.6
million (2006: US$9.1 million).

AEEEEZRASEERE QN FEEMR

o

g

£ : 460,500,000 7T) -
#8,600,0005 0 (==

o)
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27 Bank loans (continued)

27 ﬁﬁﬁ E%ﬂ ()

At 30 April 2007, there was a fixed and floating debenture
over the assets of a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company
amounting to approximately US$%$33,797,000 (2006:
US$39,427,000) to secure certain of the Group’s banking

facilities.

mE’\JBH%”AT*ﬁEJEQE‘E%ME%Z%’U

33,797,000k T (= EF

JNAE ¢ 39,427,000

T ZBEERFEES  WERETAEH

ZIRITRE -

28 Balance of consideration payable for 28 WEKB AT (¥ REEZ
acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses B ERTE
and assets
2007 2006
—EELE ZEETREF
us$°000 Us$:000
FTER FET
Balances payable: J& S RIRBRAR ¢
Within one year —F R 3,752 12,286
Between one and two years —FFE _F 1,149 10,299
Between two and five years —FERE - 7,697
4,901 30,282
Less: Amount representing B B EE D 2 FREE
interest element - (923)
Present value of consideration ERMREZRE
payable 4,901 29,359
Less: Current portion (included in B mENE S (B
current liabilities) ERBEEAN) (3,752) (12,286)
1,149 17,073
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28 Balance of consideration payable for

acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses
and assets (continued)

As at 30 April 2007 and 2006, the balance of consideration
payable for acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses and
assets represents the estimated amounts payable for the
acquisition of Dowry Peacock, ISO and the businesses
(including certain related assets and liabilities) of Stirling
(HK] Limited ("Tamarind”, formerly known as Tamarind
International Limited), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong, discounted using a rate based on the Group's average
borrowing rate.

Certain portions of the consideration for the acquisition of
Dowry Peacock, ISO and Tamarind are subject to
adjustments based on pre-determined formula contingent
on achievement of specified target profits during specified
periods after the acquisitions. The Company's directors and
the Group's management have estimated the amounts
payable as at 30 April 2007 based on (i) the profits of Dowry
Peacock and ISO stated in their audited financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2006 and in their management
accounts for the year ended 30 April 2007; (ii) the profits of
Tamarind stated in its audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2006 and in its management accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2007; and (iii) the estimated
profit of Dowry Peacock for the year ending 30 April 2008.

The carrying amounts of balance of consideration payable
for acquisition of subsidiaries/businesses and assets
approximate their fair values.

MEAR RXBEREEZ
R EERE @

RZF 2 +tERZZTTAFONA=FH -
WENMBAR, EBEREEZEMRER
B J%ZE%Dowry Peacock * I1ISOM —REF
76 ot flt A 32 2 2 Al Stirling (HK) Limited
([Tamarind] * BT#8Tamarind International
Limited) WEK (BEE THBEERE
&) TR AT 25 E*ETJ%$E.Z$
HEEEXRMEEMNTIAXGTE -

ms&
2

I B& Dowry Peacock * ISO& TamarindZ &
FHAIRE STIFRKEEREECHRANR
EIEEENEEMZEEAXELH
% ARREERAEEETEEDEER
(i)Dowry Peacock X ISOBIE Z T T )X F M
A=TRHILFENKEZVBREREE
“TEEHFNA=THILEFENERER
BAT i E/ &R (iTamarind& ZE=F
ERF-A=T—HALEFENKERTE
WMERBEZZEZLF=A=1T—HILF
EMEERERE i Tamarind®&s 5 0 &
liiilDowry PeacockEiZE —TZE NF WM A =
THIEFENMEESN  MEFRZZET
+tEOA=THEN SR -

WEEHE A T/%ﬁk&é{FZfﬂ‘Hﬂﬁﬁ%
BZEREEEZEQFEERS
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29 Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits were mainly contributed by the

Group's operation in Taiwan. Movements of post-

employment benefits in the liability recognised in the

consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

20 EERKEF
EERNEFNEEMAEER A EHEY
X REAREBBRTRRARMS
EEERAENZHMT :

2007 2006
—EELF —ZTRX
Taiwan Others Total Taiwan Others Total
=% | Hith aar =) H CE
US$°000 US$’'000 US$’000 US$'000 US$000 US$ 000
FTExx FExR FER TET TET TET
Note (a) Note (a)
Mtz (a) B 5 (a)
At beginning of the year R 4] 1,130 561 1,691 1,107 544 1,651
Exchange differences  JMEX Z= %8 (38) (5) (43) (19) (13) (32)
Amounts charged to £ Y 2 = R HBR
the income statement Z &%
- Pension costs - other —BK %A A
post-employment —Hipfg 8
benefits BARAE T - 53 53 - 48 48
- Pension costs — RIK® AR
- defined benefit — ERRREA
plans (Note 11) sHEl (FFEE11) 65 90 155 200 331 531
Payments made during R F AR
the year (230) (296) (526) (158) (349) (507)
Transfer from accruals EE B ETE A K
and other payables H &~ 5108 - 32 32 = = =
At end of the year NGRS 927 435 1,362 1,130 561 1,691
Notes: M 3

(a] According to laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is

obliged to pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement,

disability or death, post-employment benefits based on the

number of years of services and final average salary. The

Group carried out an actuarial valuation in April 2007 of its

obligation for post-employment benefits payable to employees

in Taiwan.
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29 Post-employment benefits (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in

(%)

MR &)

29 EERKER )

MisE - (&)

ARMEREN 2 BERIKE

respect of the post-employment benefits due under the laws MREaEERBRTPHEAZESE T
and regulations in Taiwan is analysed as follows: T
2007 2006 2005 2004
— 2 —TBNF —TZRF —ZEENE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
FER TET TET TET
Present value of obligations EREHN ETIRE 807 1,049 1,088 870
Unrecognised actuarial gains 7 s 15 & W 2 120 81 19 83
Liability in the consolidated RiRABEBERX
balance sheet ZEfE 927 1,130 1,107 953
Experience adjustments on 1B & AC B ¥ 51 &
plan liabilities BEMEAER - - 64 59

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the plan in Taiwan is analysed as
follows:

(b) FEBEEFMERGANRSZRERZESH
DT ¢

2007 2006

—EELHF —ZTTRF

Us$°000 Us$'000

FERx F=ET

Current service cost IR B R KA 43 139
Interest cost A B A 22 61
65 200

The charge for the year has been included in general and
administrative expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

AEEAZERBIR—BREITBRAX -

IAZEE2REMRKRMAT

2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF

Discount rate (per annum) WHRE (F) 2.8% 3.5%
Expected rate of salary increases REHFEERE

(per annum) (54) 2.0% 1.5%

Expected contribution to the plan in Taiwan for the year EHREE—TT N \FHNA=THIFE

ending 30 April 2008 is approximately US$72,250.

HE B TIEERRAAT72250%F T ©

—wzren peem | 4]
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30 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes related to the same fiscal authority. The net
amounts are as follows:

30 IERIEFT B8
fial 7 3R AT AR E B 1T B9 I LA #8538 B B IR
EEHARARIBEERE @ miETHIEHR
Rl — B #IERRE - BIIKEEEMSEHE

EREE - RERGFEDT :

2007 2006
—EERLF —EEREF
Us$’000 US$'000
FErx FE7T
Deferred liabilities to be settled 15128 A 12 E 1
after more than 12 months ZIRIEEE 116 125
The movements on the deferred income tax account, which FEREMR RERRIEE ZBELEE
arise primarily from accelerated/decelerated tax BT :
depreciation, are as follow:
Deferred income Deferred income
tax assets tax liabilities Total
BEREHEE ELFEHERE G
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE ZTTRF ZEZAE TR ZBELE —TITRE
Us$'000 US$°000 Us$’000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$000
FER F=T FER F= FER FEx
At beginning of year REA] (4) (2] 129 120 125 118
Acquisition of a WE—-ZKMELA
subsidiary (Note 36) (Pt £36) - - - 7 - 7
(Credited)/charged to the RERAMIES
consolidated income (GtA) / 1k
statement (Note 13] (B 3E13) (6) (2) (5) 2 (11) =
Exchange differences EREE - - 2 - 2 -
At end of year NS (10) (4] 126 129 116 125
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30 Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses

31

carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. The Group has not recognised deferred income
tax assets of approximately US$6,902,000 (2006:
US$6,039,000) in respect of losses amounting to
US$39,440,000 (2006: US$34,509,000] that can be carried

B0 EZEMBH @

forward against future taxable income. These tax losses H o

have no expiry date.

BILFEHREE ARBHREH BB
R PR P FR A v ) B 3R 1 mE P A B 2 B S B
BRER AR o 7N & B 37 £ 5t 7] 45 85 DA 8
R FE SR B A 2 E51839,440,0003 7T (=
T TN 34,509,000 7T) M FRIE T FT
B EE#6,902,000F 7T (Z BT N F ¢
6,039,00037T) ° % B BRI & 8 m B

Share capital 31 R
2007 2006
—EBLEF —EEREF
US$’000 UsS$'000
FER TET
Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,0000% & i& m B
US$0.02 each 0.02& Tz EBE 40,000 40,000
Number of
Nominal value shares
HE g 4=
US$'000 ‘000
F=ET T i
At 1 May 2005 R-ZEFTRFRA—H 13,113 655,634
Issue of shares upon exercise of ITIE B IR ERFT BT 2 IR 1D
share options (Note (a)) (B 3% (@) 24 1,210
Issue of shares upon acquisition of a W BE — KM & A R B FTET
subsidiary (Note (b)) Z B (B 5% (b)) 200 10,001
At 30 April 2006 —EEXRFWEA=1H 13,337 666,845
Issue of shares to settle consideration 1T AT IKE — R B
payable for acquisition of NAIERRRE
a subsidiary (Note (c]) (B3 (c)) 81 4,075
At 30 April 2007 —ETLFNMA=+H 13,418 670,920
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31

32

Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 30 April 2006, 1,210,000 share options
were exercised at an exercise price of HK$1.60 per share to
subscribe for 1,210,000 shares of US$0.02 each. Proceeds
from such issue amounted to approximately US$248,000.

(b)  On 19 October 2005, 10,001,000 shares of US$0.02 each of
the Company were issued at a price of approximately HK$2.20
(equivalent to US$0.28) per share as part of the consideration

for the acquisition of a subsidiary (see Note 36).

(c) On 1 February 2007, 4,074,635 ordinary shares of US5$0.02
each of the Company were issued at a price of approximately
HK$2.20 (equivalent to US$0.28) per share as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary (see Note
36).

Share options

The Company's share option scheme (“the Share Option
Scheme”], was adopted pursuant to a resolution of the then
sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years up to 2012. Under the Scheme, the
Company’'s Board of Directors or a committee thereof may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price per share of not less than the
highest of (i) the nominal value of a share; [ii] the closing
price of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
the date of the offer of the relevant option; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer. A consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of options. The
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme to be adopted by the
Company from time to time must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time. The Company has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in cash.
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32

i N

G

a) BE-_ZZEXRFOA=TBILFER
1,210,00017 B8 AR R LA T AR 1.6078 T 2 17 2
BETE  URBERE(ECNRETZ
1,210,0008 8% 0 - B B E1T Z P 1S IR AT
248,000 7T ©

b) R=ZFFTRAF+A+NE  ARAIUEZR
#9220 7t (FBER0.28%7T) 2 B &ETT
10,001,000R% & A% EI{E0.025= 7T Z AN A &) Bk
? - EAKE—RHBARZIDRE K
iE36) ©

() RZZET+F_A—H8 KARAEERH
2208 T (S MR028%T) 2 BT
4,074,6358% B IR M fH0.023% T 2 A QA BR
B EBKRE—RMBRRAZIHH RE (K
$£36) ©

B

RRmz EREE ([BRERTELD IR
ZEEFHNAZTZHRBERE R
RBRBZAZRMRN  TEZEHRER
FHHEERATHAEBMELERGSE
HeBR - BREAEK—BEER BEZE
T ZFRIEABTF - BEZE
ARRESENESTZESHERER
FTEERALTURBAQARG - SR
BETNLRI—BEROZEE : (ii)|E B
ERGMBRAREMzEAKRTERER
B AR A & — R AR 0 1A B B BB AR A L 1 A HR
EBZHME: Ri|BEBBARSHBR
NAEMZBHBMERMAIIARRRE
EMEAHAAEEER Z2RMFEHKT
BEUARSERE) - EEBALTREMNE
PR B BB - RIEEIRER 2
RAARBFRAZ EAMEMTEE R
BERITHEZEBRETER AT ZRM
B TEBAEARATREERITRAZ
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32 Share options (continued)
Movements in the number of shares options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:

32 B

R ARTTIE < FE AR 2K B S L AH R 2 I %
BITEEZZSHOT

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price price
per share per share
gREY Options BRFEH Options
THEE iE R TEE i IR
HK$ "000 HK$ 000
BT ¥ % B IT T4
Beginning of the year N 2.404 45,264 2.411 63,834
Granted i - - 2.315 10,500
Forfeited R U - - = =
Exercised 1118 - - 1.600 (1,210)
Lapsed e 2.480 (10,676) 2.411 (27,860)
Cancelled i 2.437 (2,366) - -
End of the year RE K 2.386 32,222 2.404 45,264
During the year ended 30 April 2007, no options were REBEZ2_ZEZT+FNHA=Z+HILEE -

granted or exercised under the Share Option Scheme. As
at 30 April 2007, approximately 29,222,000 (2006: 27,609,000)

EREERERT IR Bk TR -
—EELFMWA=+A8

S % K

#9748 29,222,00019

share options were exercisable. (ZZEZRF : 27,609,00015) BBk Rl F17
f&E o
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the LA A0 6 4R B 8 RAT R 2 BB IR A2 2 fE
following expiry dates and exercise prices: HEIRATEEE -
Exercise
price
per share Shares
BRITEE gy
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$ 000 ‘000
Expiry date =N =R BT F B T &
20 May 2008 —EZENFRAZ=TH 2.550 12,672 15,644
5 November 2008 —ZEENEFE+—HAAR 1.600 5,710 6,510
29 May 2009 —EEAFRA=-TNAE 2.125 2,890 3,560
29 March 2010 —E-THE=A=+A1H 2.975 5,950 9,050
13 October 2011 —E——%+HtT=H 2.315 5,000 10,500
2.386 32,222 45,264

—TTLFFR AERE 1 45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

32 Share options (continued)
The weighted average fair value of options determined using
the Black-Scholes valuation model was approximately
HK$0.29 (equivalent to US$0.04) per option. The significant
inputs to the model were as follows:

32 R

ERMNAR—FANEEEAEEZEBR
RN TR FEENRENBRE 298
TT(HEZER0.04ETT) - UZBRAAERME
WANBEREBEBRLT

30 March 14 October

2004 2005

—TENEF e

Grant date RH B =A=+H TAHA+ImA
Number of share options granted ROz BRERE 16,200,000 10,500,000
Share price at date of grant (HK$) RELBRHEE (BT 2.975 2.275
Exercise price (HK$) T8 (BT) 2.975 2.315
Annualised volatility % 5T R 8 43.03% 37.40%
Annual risk-free interest rate 7 B fr T 3R G K 2.22% 4.13%
Life of share options (years) BIRERMEH (F) 4.0 to 4.5 3.5t0 4.5
Dividend yield i B 2 2.13% 2.85%

The volatity measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices of the Company’s
shares over one year immediately preceding the grant date.

1 46 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

BREEARNOBNEEZABZRK
g DERBEREBH-—FARAKN
MEAREZSRAINAAE -



33 Reserves 33 &

(a) Group (a) *%H
Share-
based
payment Capital
reserve redemption
Share BAR{3A  Special  reserve  Capital Translation  Retained
premium BB reserve X reserve reserve  earnings Total

BfeE NRERE SHER ROBE EFEE BEGE RERN aif
US§000  USE000  US§000  USH000  USE'O0D  USS000  US$'000  US§000
TRL X TR TR TR TR TEn TER

Balance at 1 May 2005 RZZERERA-RER 16,651 = 184 48 = (857) 36,180 52,206
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - 10444 10,444
Employee share option scheme, (& B & iR #E5T 3]
value of employment services -EERKER - 448 - - - - - 448
Premium arising on issue of RATSERTROEE
shares upon (8
- exercise of share options -fIfeERE
(Note 31) (K&3n) 224 - - - - - - 224
- acquisition of a subsidiary -WE-FHBAA
(Notes 31 and 36) (W31 R30) 2601 - - - - - - 26
Exchange differences ERZER - - - - - 1,742 - 1,742

Capital contribution from a minority —XHBA %D &
shareholder of a subsidiary in the  REMNHE

form of waiver of dividend L Eva

receivable (Note 37(b)) 2K (M) - - - - 569 - - 569
Dividend paid BERRE - - - - - - (b3 (637
Balance at 30 April 2006 RIEEXEMA=ZTHER  1949% 448 184 48 569 885 40,277 61,907
Balance at 1 May 2006 RZEE ERA-BER 19,496 448 184 48 569 885 40,277 61,907
Loss for the year EEBR - - - - - - (1082 (11,082
Employee share option scheme,  [EE B E: 2

value of employment services -EERKER - 199 - - - - - 199

i

Premium arising on issue of shares RWE—RHBAAE
upon acquisition of a subsidiary  EfTRHELZEE

Notes 31 and 36) (P &E31R36) 1,068 - - - = - - 1,068
Exchange differences ERZER - - - - - 1,87 - 1,237

Waiver of dividend receivable from  HEKRER-FE2E
a non-wholly owned subsidiary ~ HEAFZKE

(Note 37(b) GER() - - - - (569) - - (569)
Dividend paid BERRE - - - - - - g 08
Balance at 30 April 2007 WZES+EMA=TRER 20564 647 184 48 - 12 25197 48762
Representing: f%:

2007 final dividend proposed RE-ZZCERAR 2,150
Others Hfy B.047
25,197

—TTLFFR AERE 1 47



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

33 Reserves (continued) 33 f@#ME
(b) Company (b) AAT
Share-
based
payment Capital
reserve redemption
Share IR reserve Contributed  Retained
premium RER BX surplus  earnings Total
RHEE f(RFEE BERE BH2% KREEF &t
US$:000 US$:000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$:000
TR TEL TEL TERL TEL T
Balance at 1 May 2005 RZZZRERA-AER 16,651 = 48 9946 9777 36,422
Profit for the year EE % F = - - - 1,895 1,895
Employee share option scheme, (€ 8 BBkt &l
value of employment services  —EERBEE - 448 - - - 448
Premium arising on issue of AU NEBETRMHEE
shares upon B
- exercise of share options —TiE R E
(Note 31) (B zE31) 224 - - - - 224
- acquisition of a subsidiary  —WEHBA A
(Notes 31 and 3¢) (R 331 % 36) 2,621 - - - - 2,621
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - (6,347) (6,347)
Balance at 30 April 2006 RZEZREMA=TEER 19,496 448 48 9946 5,325 39,263
Balance at 1 May 2006 RZEZRERA-RER 19,496 448 48 9,946 5,325 35,263
Profit for the year ERRT - - - - 4 44T 4,447
Employee share option scheme, {E B i M5t 2l
value of employment services —[EEREERA - 199 - _ - 199
Premium arising on issue of ~ RKBE-FKWBAAE
shares upon acquisition BIRNELEZEER
of a subsidiary (B #E31 R 36) 1,068 - - - - 1,068
(Notes 31 and 36
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - (4,018) (4,018)
Balance at 30 April 2007 RZZEZ+EMA=TRHER 20,564 647 48 9,946 5,754 36,959
Representing: RE&:
2007 final dividend proposed ~ BE-ZEtFRBRK S 2,150
Others Bt 3,604
5,754
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33 Reserves (continued)

Special reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of share capital of the Company issued and
the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital of
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange
of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is distributable to equity
holders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or (ii] the realisable value
of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

33 @@=

FRlFEEARAMBETRABERELRR
BIA R B0 77 AW R 2 B X A) 2 UK
HEEAEME ZEZR

REBRE-NN—FREE AREZ
ERBRREAHIRTESFEA - A
m > AREETIBERNEE RN K
BHREHBEAKTIELEDIR  (NRNEEZE
XNz aE SR EEZ A #HR(E
BLREBERDBE#ITRANEEND G E
BR B -
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34 Cash flow statement

M mEBRERER

(a) Cash generated from operations REXBRERS
2007 2006
—E2ELHF —EERF
US$’000 UsS$'000
FEx FET
(Loss)/profit for the year F[Z (B8 & (30,870) 10,515
Adjustments for: TR
Income tax expense FrisiM> 2,659 2,763
Share of loss of a jointly JE 1 — K H [E 2
controlled entity ERZEE 53 49
Interest expense BN 1,164 549
Interest income B A (905) (814)
Impairment loss on goodwill RSN RIEN SR] 2,494 =
Impairment loss on purchase GRS - XA =
consideration recoverable BB B 18 5,699 =
Impairment loss on patents and =R EERREEE
trademarks 51,529 -
Write-back of purchase J& 1~ I i (X (B 5 [l
consideration payable (21,469) -

REBANBAREEFE

NFEENEDERD

A 2 R - (3.397)
ME - BERRENE

Excess of interest in fair value of
acquired subsidiaries’” net
assets over cost

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 1,575 1,439
Amortisation of intangible assets & E B 921 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BB RREB

plant and equipment &5 18 392 10
Share options, value of BRE-EERKEE

employment services 199 448

Changes in working capital EEESEH
(excluding the effects of (TBEEREEEKRE
acquisition and exchange U B OB R =8
differences on consolidation): ZHE)
Inventories FE 3,748 (9.241)
Trade receivables e W 5 B 3K 3,171 9,090
Prepayments, deposits and FENFKIE - Ze Kk

other receivables H b fE W 5K IE (319) (2,802)
Amounts due from FE UL B8 2 A Al

related companies Z FRIE 129 1,545
Trade payables B 5B (13,258) 6,311
Accruals and other payables FE&H & A I H A~ 5R08 (1,284) 2,244
Warranty provision R FA B 595 2,358
Post-employment benefits & B R IK1E 7 (329) 40
Cash generated from operations REXBFSRE 5,894 21,107
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34 Cash flow statement (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

34 &2 &

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from

disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

(b)

HERER®
REARLRBEN  HEWE K
ERBERERERE

2007 2006

—EELE —ETRF

Us$'000 Us$:000

TER FTET

Net book amount (Note 17) BREFE (FEEE17) 440 126

Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BER

plant and equipment RiEBE (392) (10)
Proceeds from disposal of property, &Y - WE & & EFS KA

plant and equipment 48 116

The principal non-cash transaction was the issue of (c) EEZIRERFHRETRHUERK

shares as consideration for the acquisition of a

subsidiary (Note 36) and the acquisition of licence
rights which were not settled as at 30 April 2007 (Notes

18 and 25).

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow

statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(d)

B—XME AR (ME36) A & E R
HFEMN-_EZLFMA=+HERN
) (s 18K 25) 2 KB -

MEReRERME  Be kB e
FEIEHBRE

2007 2006

—EELF —ETRF

US$’000 US$'000

Fxx TET

Bank balances and cash IRTT&EFE MR E 30,405 37,609

Less: Fixed bank deposits with B =& A A £ 2 B

original maturity over ZEHBRITER K
three months and pledged bank EERRITER

deposits (Note 23) (M 3E23) (7,000) (7.000)

Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER 23,405 30,609
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

35 Commitments
(a) Operating lease commitments - where the Group is
the lessee
staff
furniture and equipment under non-

The Group leases various office premises,
quarters,
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum lease payments
are as follows:

Office premises and

35 FiE
(a) REHERE-UXEEHERBEA

AEBERESAIHMEEEHERZEM
HEZEBRAZEEN - BIES K
e -  2FHEZHE  ARHE
EZIERREOERSE TR - KK
REBERBANT :

Furniture and

staff quarters equipment
WAZEEBNREIRS HFEMREE
2007 2006 2007 2006
—E2EELE —ETETERF ZEELE —TITF
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FER FET FErx FET
Not later than one year —F A 1,314 1,581 132 127
Later than one year —FLAE
but not later than BRF
five years AR 1,566 1,558 405 213
Later than five years R F A L 277 493 - -
3,157 3,632 537 340
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAREE

The Group had the following capital commitments for
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment:

MTRASEHBEYE  BEER
B2 EAELE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
us$’000 Us$:000
FExx FETT

Contracted for but not provided in B 5] #1{B R EF B R E
the financial statements A 335 280
Authorised but not contracted for B iZEEBKREI4 2 13
337 293
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36 Business combinations

On 19 October 2005, the Group acquired a 60% equity
interest in Dowry Peacock, a company incorporated in the
United Kingdom. This transaction is accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting. The acquired business
contributed revenues of US$107,973,000 and net profit of
US$177,000 to the Group for the period from 19 October
2005 to 30 April 2006. If the acquisition had occurred on 1
May 2005, the Group's revenue would have been
US$364,853,000 and profit for the year ended 30 April 2006
would have been US$11,228,000.

Dowry Peacock and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the design and procurement of consumer electronic
products, supplying supermarkets and mass merchandise
retailers in the United Kingdom.

Details of net assets acquired, fair value of purchase
consideration and the net cash outflow in respect of the
acquisition are as follow:

36 £ 45 pt

RZZEZERAFTATNA AEBKET
— FE A 2R B 5 ffft X 3Z A ] Dowry Peacock
Z60% M o WTER HEA KRB EET
R -HZZTERAFTATNAAEZZTETAX
FOA=1+HEHA FIKEBZEBEALE
E % %k #9107,973,0003 T 2 Wz K& 4
177,000 o 2 @A) - EWER —TTHF
FA—BE4AL  AIAEEBE_TTF
MA=Z1+THLEFEZHRE=HKAO AR
364,853,000 7t - M F E & f #§ 8 &
11,228,0003 7T °

Dowry Peacock X E B R Al EM EXR5
FREBEETFER  RAREBZHETR
AREmEERHE -

FEAZESEY HE  WEREZAT
BB R KA EE Y B SR L FERS
mT

US$'000
FTET
Fair value of net assets acquired (shown as below) W EEFE 2 A FEE (RT3 77,257
Less: Minority interest W D EIREE S (30,903]
46,354
Fair value of purchase consideration: WEREBZ AFEE :
Consideration shares RERHD
- issued on 19 October 2005 (Note 31) —RZZEZRF+A+T B BT (ME3) 2,821
- issued on 1 February 2007 (Note 31) —RZZTZTEF=A— B8 %77 (BsE31) 1,149
- to be issued — i F#&T 2,298
Cash consideration (Note 10) BReRE (FHEE10) 35,506
Direct costs relating to the acquisition B REAE A BB R 1,183
42,957
Excess of interest in fair value of acquired REARBARIEEFEATFEBENEZ
subsidiaries’ net assets over cost HARB X AR 2 FRER 3,397
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAHE R MYEE

36 Business combinations (continued) 36
The consideration shares to be issued will be issued during
the period from July 2006 to July 2008 subject to the terms
and conditions of the relevant sale and purchase
agreement.

An analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of the

acquisition is as follow:

EBEH @

BT ETZRERDBREENER
MGERREER -EEAELAS
NE£ A BB -

RKBFREEAZRESRLFEZ TN
T

US$'000

FTET

Fair value of purchase consideration WEREBZAFERE 42,957

Less: Consideration shares issued W B EITZRERD (2,821)
Outstanding purchase consideration payable M AR XA 2 BT U R R (B

(Note 10) (Pt 5E10) (21,915)

18,221

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BARERREEEIEHR (16,810

1,411

The details of assets and liabilities acquired are as follows:

FIRBEERBBZHBHINGT :

Acquiree’s

carrying

amount

Fair value WWER 2

RNEEE RESHE

US$'000 US$'000

TET FTET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BER&E 280 280

Patents and trademarks 2R R EE 65,179 1,564

Inventories FE 4,244 4,244

Trade receivables FEW B 5 BR 3K 23,304 23,304
Prepayments, deposits and AN FRIE - e R EAM

other receivables & W 5K I8 235 235

Loan to a related company BT —RXBEQRAIZER 1,432 1,432

Amounts due from related companies  fEUWBFE A A 2 FKIA 306 306

Tax recoverable Al B 1A 591 591

Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER 16,810 16,810

Trade payables T & 5 BR R (29,134) (29,134)

Accruals and other payables FE &t & A I H h FE < 5K IE (5,983] (5,983)

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMEH AR (7) (7)

77,257 13,642
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37 Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common

control or common significant influence.

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the

37T EREALXRS

BREALRAIERAHEZESN ST
FEEHT R EERKEH S —H17E
BEAXENZAL - HRAZMAZEHHF
MABREEZALINRSBREAL -

(a) AEEEBFHUBEALTETZIEARS

Group and related parties are summarised as follows:

FHEHmT

Identity of related parties Nature of transactions 2007 2006
EBEALTSHG REZMHE —EERLF —ETREF
Note Us$'000 US$'000
Bt 5 TER FTET
Subsidiaries of Roly Rental expense (i) 16 95
International Holdings Ltd. &R
2R ERERE R A A
N NG
Turmar Limited Rental expense (i) 109 130
BEBRAR] HeRX
Ken Ball Limited Rental expense (i) 108 108
He X
Premier Consultants Limited Consultancy fee (i) 38 73
ERER
DGC GmbH Inspection income (iii) 50 9
mEWRA
DGC GmbH Royalty income (iv] 93 27

BR B A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR HREE MAE

37 Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Subsidiaries of Roly International Holdings Ltd. are
fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

Turmar Limited is 100% owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen,
a Director, and his spouse.

Ken Ball Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Peter Loris
SOLOMON, a Director.

Premier Consultants Limited is 100% owned by Mr.
Barry Richard PETTITT, a director of ISO, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

DGC GmbH is 64% owned by Mr. Raymond Anthony
NUGENT, a director of Dowry Peacock, a 60%-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses are determined based on market rate
and floor area.

(i) Consultancy fee was charged in accordance with the

terms of the agreement made between the parties.

(iii) Inspection income was determined based on the rate

agreed by both parties.

(iv] Royalty income was charged in accordance with the
terms of agreement made between the parties.

During the year ended 30 April 2006, a minority
shareholder of Dowry Peacock, a 60%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, waived its entitlement of
dividends of US$949,000 declared by Dowry Peacock.
During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group waived
its entitlement of dividends of approximately

US$2,077,000 declared by Dowry Peacock.
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T EBEALTRF @

(a)

(b)

€ )
PEHEREZERERARZHBRAR
ARARZRAFZHBEAR °

BEAERABDA/S—HAEHEBELE (R
NREAEF) REEFR2EHERZRT -

Ken Ball Limited & — [ & = Peter
Loris SOLOMON %4 2& A 2 A
= e

Premier Consultants Limited & — & B
Barry Richard PETTITTA. A (KA AR Z
2EWBRAISOZESR) 2 EHBZ

NEGIR

DGC GmbHA Raymond Anthony
NUGENT% & (AR 1 Bk 60%HE = 2 P
B A 8] Dowry PeacockZ 2 %) A
b4%EEE Z N A) °

B RE

() HeERXDH2EHEESREE@EE
B -

(i) RS2 FRAR 48 2T 407 2T 37 38 2 1
5

i) MERARBETHE 2 WE XE

TF o
liv) SRR AR 3T 4077 3T S 1 2 166

HE_ZTZ A AFOA=TRHLFE -
N Al 60%4E z5 2 I & A 5] Dowry
Peacock®) — fiZ 2> AR R m & W X
Dowry Peacock®E Jk 2 % B.949,0003%
TLZERN  REBEEZFTTLFMA=
THIEFEA KK EKERKRR
Dowry Peacock® &k Z & B 4
2,077,000% T 2 HEF o



37 Related party transactions (continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

The outstanding balance at 30 April 2007 was
receivable from DGC GmbH. The amounts due from

related companies were unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable within one year.

(d) Key management compensation

T EBEALTRF @

(c) EEERMEAT &
R-ZEZTZLFEMA=Z+HZARENE
#2 BEWDGC GmbHZ FX1E - kA
BEARIZRELAEERF  2EREA
R—FREE -

(d) EREEEZHM

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERX
Us$’000 US$°000
FEx FETT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances & - {E4L K& 2L 1,674 2,601
Pension costs - defined BRINEKA — TR
contribution plans ARG 2l 90 59
Share options - value of BRE—EERY
employment services BEE 42 119
1,806 2,779
38 Subsidiaries 38 Kf B 1 7]
2007 2006
—EEtLHF —EERF
Us$’000 US$°000
FExx FETT
Unlisted shares, at cost K EMRRD G A) 9,987 9,987
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W2 Bt BB 1 B 3 IE 33,234 31,522
43,221 41,509

Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding

by the Company to the respective subsidiaries and are

measured in accordance with the Company's accounting

policy for investments in subsidiaries.

BB B 2 7 TR R A R B
ARMZBARE - TRIEAD T LB
ATMBREZ BHBEME -
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38 Subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 30 April

2007 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of

38 M B 2 7 )

ZN/NE]

R-ZTLFMA=

ARBMT

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

THHHEB R

Percentage of

operations registered capital attributable
Name EMEL B, ERITRHAZRA,  Principal activities  equity interest
M TEREHH & FEXK EERER DL
Benchmark Profits Limited i) British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
REERRES ERRI1ET REZK
CU Packaging & Design (BVI] British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
Limited (i) RBEBRES ERBIET REZR
CU Packaging & Design Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2  Trading of 100%
BREBRERDA B LER2E T merchandise and

Dowry Peacock Group Limited

eServices (BVI) Limited (i)

eServices Limited

Ever Eagle Limited (i)

Golden Rules Enterprises
Limited (i)
BEARAAI)

IGCS Group Limited (i)
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United Kingdom
RE

British Virgin Islands
REEARES

Hong Kong

BE

British Virgin Islands
REXARES
Hong Kong

e

British Virgin Islands
RBEBRES

Ordinary share GBP300

T @ AR3005E

Ordinary share US$1
TRERIET

Ordinary shares
HK$100,000
58 1% 100,0007% T

Ordinary share US$1
TERIET

Ordinary share HK$1

EERIET

Ordinary share US$1
TERIET

procurement agent

AmE s kRBHE

Investment holding

REZK

Inactive

TEXK

Inactive

LR
Investment holding
RERK
Investment holding

REBEZK

Investment holding
REZR

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



38 Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of

38 M B 2 7 )

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of

operations registered capital attributable
Name MR B BRTKRHAZRE  Principal activities  equity interest
8 TELEHE &R FTEXK EERER G
IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$1 Provision of social 100%

IGCS Limited

Inspire World Limited
BERERAA

International Laboratory
Services Limited

BIfR i E R BR A A

ISO International (BVI) Limited

ISO International (Holdings)
Limited

REEARES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B
British Virgin Islands

RERARES

Hong Kong
B

EER1ET

Ordinary shares HK$2
LER2E T

Ordinary share HK$1
TERIETT

Ordinary share HK$1
TERIET

Ordinary share US$1
EERIET

Ordinary shares
HK$100
LA 1004 T

compliance services
REHLEEELE
TR EB RS

Provision of social
compliance services

RHEMEERELE
SFRIEE R

[nactive

TERE

Provision of laboratory
services

R RE RB

Investment holding

REZK

Provision of technical
support and
management services,
and trading of home
lifestyle consumer
electronic products

RERMERER
R% - RRXERE
ETEMES
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38 Subsidiaries (continued)

Name

aH

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of
operations
MR B
TELEHE

38 M B 2 7 )

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTRBERE
EMEAR

Percentage of
attributable
equity interest

BERERMLL

Principal activities

FEXRK

Linmark Agency (BVI] Limited

Linmark Agency [Hong Kong]
Limited

Linmark Agency (Mauritius) Ltd
Linmark Development (BVI)

Limited

Linmark Electronics Limited

Linmark (HK) Limited
WE(BE)BERAQA

Linmark International
(Bangladesh) Ltd.
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British Virgin Islands
REEARES

Hong Kong
ER

Republic of Mauritius
EERHHME

British Virgin Islands
REXBARES

United Kingdom
RE

Hong Kong
B

Bangladesh
oIk

Ordinary shares
US$50,000
I A 50,000E T

Ordinary shares
HK$10,000
LA 10,0008 T

Ordinary shares US$2
LREkoET

Ordinary share US$1
TERIET

Ordinary shares
GBP12,500
¥ 5 1% 12,5003 £

Ordinary shares HK$2
LER2E T

Ordinary shares
Taka20,000
T mAR 20,000 R

Investment holding and 100%

procurement agent

RERBRRRBAE

Procurement agent 100%

RERE

Procurement agent 100%

REARE

Procurement agent 100%

REARE

Design and procurement 60%
of entertainment and
customer electronic
products

RERHEBESFEmM
& R RE

Investment holding and 100%

procurement agent

REZEBRRRBERE

Procurement agent 100%

REAE



38 Subsidiaries (continued) 38 Ft B A A
Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of

Issued and fully

paid share capital/ Percentage of

operations registered capital attributable

Name MR B BRTKRHAZRE  Principal activities  equity interest

=1 TREEHH HMEX FEXRK BERERMLL

Linmark International Hong Kong Ordinary shares Investment holding, 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited BB HK$200,000 procurement agent

MEBRK (FE) ERAF

% 3% 200,000 7T

and trading of

merchandise
REZKR  RERE

LEmE

Linmark Merchandise Mainland China Registered capital Provision of marketing 100%
Consultancy [Shenzhen) H RMB1,500,000 consultancy and
Limited [ii) R E A product development
WER @ s 85 A (RN AR #1,500,0007T services
BRAAL) REDSEEL AL
EmRAERE
Linmark (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares Provision of market 100%
R GBP100 trend consultancy
LB 1005 8 services
REDSHRER
o R
Linmark Westman British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares US$11 Investment holding 100%
Investments Limited (i) EEEBRRHS ETERNET REZRK
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Inactive 100%
WERRAA BE ERR1ET TEXK
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands  Ordinary share US$1 Inactive 100%
RERBARES EERIET TEEK
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Procurement agent 100%
BB HK$10,000 R
EEAR 10,0008 T
Pacific Technologies Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares Inactive 60%
RE GBP45,000 EEREY

38 A% 45,0005 §5
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38 Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of

38 M B 2 7 )

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of

operations registered capital attributable
Name MR B BRTKRHAZRE  Principal activities  equity interest
aH TREEHH HMEX FEXRK BERERMLL
Power Path Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Inactive 100%
BEERRA B EERIET TEXG
Tamarind Agency Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary share US$1 Inactive 100%
RBEBRES ERBIET TEXK
Tamarind International British Virgin Islands  Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%
Holdings Limited (i} RERARES LERIET REZK
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 Investment holding 100%
BB TERIET and trading of
merchandise
RERBREARE S
Tamarind Marketing Services Macao Ordinary shares Trading of merchandise 100%
(Macao Commercial Offshore) P MOP$100,000 BmE 5
Limited (formerly known as I 3% % 100,0008 #
ISO Marketing Services
(Macao Commercial Offshore]
Limited)
KRBTSR ORFIBER & X RH%)
BB A (1150 5 MR 1%
(RMBEFEERE) ERQA)
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) Mainland China Registered capital Procurement agent 100%
Limited Hh RMB5,500,000 and trading of
AEMLES (LB)ERAT FL & A merchandise
AER#¥5500000 HRERBKERES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd. Bangladesh Ordinary shares Provision of market 100%
A Taka20,000 trend consultancy
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38 Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of

38 M B 2 7 )

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of

operations registered capital attributable
Name MR B BRTKRHAZRE  Principal activities  equity interest
8 TELEHE EMEAR FTEXK EERER G
Trend Xpress, Inc. (i) British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding 100%

Trend Xpress Limited
BHRABRAT

Trend Xpress (S) Pte. Limited

Westman Linmark (Thailand)
Ltd.

REEARES

Hong Kong
BE

Singapore

K

Thailand
2B

EERIET

Ordinary shares HK$2
TER 2B T

Ordinary shares S$2
AR 28T M3 T

Ordinary shares
Baht5,880,000
Preference shares
Baht,120,000 |iii)

¥ % R 5,880,000%%
& 5 R 6,120,000
Ze 4 i)

and provision of
market trend
consultancy services
REERRREHTIS
O 16 37 A RS

Investment holding, 100%
provision of
market trend
consultancy services
and trading of
merchandise
REZK - REEHH
O 16 37 A RS
LAamES

Provision of market 100%
trend consultancy
services

R TS BN 1E R

o W R A5

Procurement agent 100%

RERE
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38 Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
principal place of

38 M B 2 7 )

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of

operations registered capital attributable

Name MR B BRTKRHAZRE  Principal activities  equity interest

aH TREEHH HMEX FEXRK BERERMLL

Westman (Singapore] Private Singapore Ordinary shares Procurement agent 100%
Limited g $$200,000 R

3% 12 200,000 A0 3% 7T

Westown Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Procurement agent 100%

BRERRA B HK$100,000 R

AR 100,000% T

Notes:

G

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The shares of these subsidiaries are held directly by the

Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen] Limited is a
wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China for a term of 15 years
up to 2019.

The Group has beneficial interest in these preference shares
which are held by nominees through a scheme of
arrangements. Holders of the preference shares are entitled
to a dividend equivalent to 3.5% of the paid-up value of the
preference shares, before any dividend could be distributed
to the holders of the ordinary shares. Each of these
preference share carries one-tenth of the voting right (when
compared to ordinary share) in the company's general

meetings.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ARARBEEREZSEHBRARZEND - &
B AR 2 RMAIMEIEE -

MEFRESHACRIDERARTR K
RPBEERERINKIZZIIEEELE
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AEBENZERBERTHEEERER M
ZFEEBRTIBREABE AR
ﬁ*ﬁ R EBEREE ARNEABRE
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Hx%&iﬁi?k{ﬁ{ES 5% RSB - BRZER
ERERRARZBRRAG LREE TS
PRLL &) o
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TYZISEVW{E{THTFﬁ
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B2 EEAR -
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39 Ultimate holding company

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Company was
approximately 65.24% to 65.64% owned by RGS Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. RGS Holdings Limited was wholly owned by Roly
International Holdings Ltd., a company incorporated in
Bermuda. Roly International Holdings Ltd. was listed on
the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited until 30 April 2007, when it was delisted

voluntarily.

Effective from 28 March 2007, Rl Special Holdings Bermuda
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda, became the
majority shareholder of Roly International Holdings Ltd. Rl
Special Holdings Limited is controlled by Megastar Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The directors of the Company regard Roly International
Holdings Ltd., a company incorporated in Bermuda, as
being the ultimate holding company of the Company up to
28 March 2007, and thereafter regard Megastar Holdings
Limited as being the ultimate holding company of the
Company. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is
Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a director of the Company.

40 Approval of financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issued by the Board of Directors on 21 August

2007.

39

40

RAER AT
REBEZ-_TT+tFNA=+THLEFER -
AN A RGS Holdings Limited (— R R &
BERRBESEMRIZAAEAELN
65.24%% 65.64% ° RGS Holdings Limited
HERBERERERARZERE - 25
B ERERAAREREIMEKY - &
HNEELERGMARAB LT - EER
—ZTLFNA=TRABERE AL -

—ETHE=AZ+//\HE REREE
Eff K 2 2 A& Rl Special Holdings
Bermuda Limited X /& 2 B BIBR 2 IR B R
ANEZEBRE Rl Special Holdings
Bermuda Limited & B # @ = 5 &
P32 2 ‘A @] Megastar Holdings Limited %
il o

HE_ZZ+F =A==+ N \BAH ' XAF
EERAREFTMAL DA 2B HRE
BRERRABRARAZEERAR - WH
1% A48 Megastar Holdings Limited &2 2
AIRARERAR - RAB 2 &EERAR
RAREFEHRBETE o

B IE $ak 2 #HEfE
EFRERN-FTTLFNA-tT-ARE
Bl LA MBRE -
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBEE
RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 30 April
BENA=1+HLEE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
ZEE=F —2T@mg  —TThE  ZTTRE ZEELE
US$'000 Us$:000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$’000
Txx T%x TET TET Txxn
Revenue W & 44,294 44,338 89,837 288,322 383,583
Cost of sales HE AR (7,104) (5,652) (41,513) (229,923) (329,897)
Gross profit EF 37,190 38,686 48,324 58,399 53,686
Other income Hip A 520 787 1,122 1,787 2,593
General and administrative —RRITRAX
expenses (26,233) (26,861) (35,112) (50,521) (45,925)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEAEBRE - - - = (2,494)
Impairment loss on purchase EEER G
consideration recoverable AR - - - - (5,699)
Impairment loss on patents ENMRERRERSR
and trademarks = = = = (51,529)
Write-back of purchase J& 5 MBS (K (B ¢ e
consideration payable - - - - 21,469
Excess of interest in fair REANBAREE
value of acquired subsidiaries’ FEATEERNE
net assets over cost mBB KA 28 - - - 3,397 -
Gain on disposal/dissolution HE /BB
of subsidiaries NI §: - - 13 = -
Operating profit/(loss) meRn/ (B18) 11,477 12,612 14,347 13,062 (27,899)
Interest income BB A 1,237 2,160 1,321 814 905
Finance costs HBER (2) (4) (22) (549) (1,164)
Share of loss of a jointly it —K A
controlled entity ZH B BR - - (12) (49) (53]
Profit/(loss) before income tax FEBAEN/ (B1) 12,712 14,768 15,634 13,278 (28,211)
Income tax expense ERAX (384) (143) (880) (2,763) (2,659)
Profit/[loss) for the year FERA/ (B1B) 12,328 14,625 14,754 10,515 (30,870)
Attributable to: AT & 77 e -
Equity holders of the Company ARAERFAA 12,328 14,625 14,754 10,444 (11,062)
Minority interest DERE R - - - 71 (19,808)
12,328 14,625 14,754 10,515 (30,870)
Dividends &2 4,920 5,872 6,216 4,829 3,679
Earnings per share FHRAMN
(US cents] (ML)
Basic P 1.9 2.3 2.3 1.6 (1.7)
Diluted B3 1.9 2.2 2.2 1.6 (1.7)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE

As at 30 April

ROA=1+AH
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
“ET=F —ZEMFE —ZTERFE —TTERE ZBEBtE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
TEL FTET TEn TEn TEx
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,033 21,454 48,832 116,855 61,246
Current assets MEEE 45,437 47,715 51,395 92,610 78,677
Total assets EERE 50,470 69,149 100,227 209,465 139,923
Current liabilities MEEE (3,777) (7,255) (25,947) (85,799) (62,991)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,042) (5,247) (8,961) (18,889) (2,627)
Total liabilities BELH (4,819) (12,522) (34,908) (104,688) (65,618)
Net assets EEFE 45,651 56,647 65,319 104,777 74,305
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG Lu Yen (Chairman)

Peter Loris SOLOMON (Chief Executive Officer)
KHOO Kim Cheng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WONG Wai Ming
Gregory Scott LEONG

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WANG Arthur Minshiang

WOON Yi Teng, Eden

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

KWOK Tai Ki

AUDIT COMMITTEE

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
WOON Yi Teng, Eden

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

KWOK Tai Ki

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
KHOO Kim Cheng

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
1101-1108,

Hong Kong International Trade & Exhibition Centre,

1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
The Bank of Bermuda Limited

The Bank of Bermuda Building,

6 Front Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Standard Limited
(formerly known as Standard Registrars Limited)
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
2nd Floor, HSBC Building Mong Kok,

673 Nathan Road, Mong Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.
48th Floor, Citibank Tower, Citibank Plaza,
3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

1 68 LINMARK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2007

S
HITES

B (£E)

Peter Loris SOLOMON (77 #2 %)
B 3% R

FHATES
=25
FiHe

BIYBTES
T & rE
FUE
il % m

CllEos

At B A

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

%W$E&£2M¥ﬂ%

&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
The Bank of Bermuda Limited
The Bank of Bermuda Building,
6 Front Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

BROBFBELEERDE
PEBRARAT

a@%iuaﬁﬁﬁ al)
éaﬁz&f

5917 I
m@@m
lﬁlﬂ::ﬁé@
BRE g
r }HH]NEH

g\
S
5

>+ g &,
il 35 24 o2

Rl

L\
/I

%ﬂ“ﬁﬂt

FEDADH >t
m@&c\nﬁw o e
ﬁﬁh_\\

H+ N

B

=

10 S

>HFA

5 T
e
o

oF
a

5

S

Ell

JiE D
1
i B <,

e
—

HESE SaS
=N\ H AN
K

oA o
S b S
ot

S ol
Rl
N
=



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
RERER

Listing Listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since
10 May 2002

Stock Code 915

Board Lot 2,000

Par Value US$0.02

Trading Currency HK$

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2007

Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Ex-dividend date for final dividend
Register of members closed

30 April 2007

21 August 2007

18 September 2007
20-24 September 2007

Annual general meeting

Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants
Interim results to be announced

24 September 2007

24 September 2007

on or about 2 October 2007
in the 3rd week of

January 2008*

* subject to change

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 2.5
HK cents per share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2007.
Subject to shareholders” approval, the final dividend will be paid
in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 24 September 2007.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or
about Tuesday, 2 October 2007.

In order to determine the entitlements to the final dividend in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2007, the register of members
will be closed from Thursday, 20 September 2007 to Monday, 24
September 2007, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar not later
than 4.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 19 September 2007.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

(formerly known as Standard Registrars Limited)
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’'s shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrar promptly of any change of addresses.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Unit A, 29th Floor, Admiralty Centre I,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2527 0490
Facsimile: (852) 2804 2789
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LINMARK GROUP LIMITED
MEEEERQE"
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REFEEMRIZBRAR])
1101-1108 Hong Kong International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENENEEREE SREERET 0 1101-1108F
Tel &% : (852) 2734 0888
Fax {5E : (852) 2721 6554

http://www.linmark.com
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